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Abbott Laboratories Limited, Montreal, 175

Allan Memorial Institute, Montreal, 285-92

Allmark, M«G. Dept. National Health and Welfare, 46

American Cyanamid Company, Pearl River, N.Y., 315-30

Ayerst, McKenna & Harrison Ltd., 172

Bertrand, J«A. (Cyanamid of Canada Ltd), 321-3

Bibliography on Drug Safety by Canadian Pharmaceutical
Manufacturers' Association, 235

Brien, F.S. University of Western Ontario, 445-61

Buckley, F.C. (Proprietory Association of Canada), 337-46

CIBA Company Limited, Montreal, 181

Cameron, D. Ewen M.D. McGill University.
Memorandum re Safety of Drugs, 397-399

Cameron, Ge.DeW. Deputy Minister of National Health, 480

Canadian Govermnment Specifications Board... Drugs, 431-441

Canadian Medical Association. (Committee on Pharmacy)
Brief, 56-63

Canadian Pharmaceutical Association, Inec., Toronto, Ont.
Brief, 96-105

Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers* Association,
Bibliography, 235
Brief. "Drug Safety in Research and Manufacturing", 191-244
Member Companies, 244

Committee on Standards for Drug Manufacturers and
Distributors, 431.441

Conder, Stanley M. (Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers®
Association), 159-87

Consumers' Association of Canada, 247-66

Curran, Mr. R.E. (Dept. of National Health & Welfare), 351-70

Cyanamid of Canada Limited. Letter re visit to Pearl
River Laboratories, N.Y., 53-5

Cyanamid of Canada Limited, Montreal.
Brief, 297-310
Witnesses, 310-32

Deans, Dr. Sidney A.V. (Pfizer Company Limited), 159

Drug Safety - Bibliography, 235

Drug Safety in Research and Manufacturing, 191.244

Drugs, Quality Control of, 394-6

Drugs, Safety of, 397-9

Farquharson, Dr. R.F. Chairman, Medical Research
Council, 123-37

Ferrier, Mr. Robert. Dept. of National Health & Welfare, 470
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SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON FOOD AND DRUGS
Chairman: Mr. Harry C. Harley
Vice-Chairman: Mr. Rodger Mitchell

and Messrs.

Armstrong Gauthier Orlikow
Asselin (Richmond- Horner (Jasper-Edson) Prud’homme

Wolfe) Howe (Hamilton South) Roxburgh
Basford Jorgenson Rynard
Casselman (Mrs.) Macaluso Slogan
Cété (Longueuil) Mackasey Whelan
Enns Marcoux Willoughby—24
Francis . Nesbitt

(Quorum 8)

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.



= R E S

ORDERS OF REFERENCE

MoONDAY, March 9, 1964.

Resolved,—That a Special Committee be appointed to continue the enquiry
into and to report upon (a) the hazards of food contamination from insecticides,
pesticides, and other noxious substances; and (b) the safety and cost of drugs,
begun by a Special Committee at the past Session;

That the Committee consist of 24 Members to be designated later by the
House;

That the Committee be empowered to send for persons, papers, records,
and to report from time to time, and to print such papers and evidence from
day to day as may be deemed advisable;

That the minutes of proceedings and evidence of the Special Committee at

the past Session be referred to the said Committee and be made a part of the
records thereof;

That the provisions of Standing Orders 66 and 67(1) be suspended in
relation thereto.

Attest.

Fripay, April 17, 1964.

Ordered,—That the Special Committee on Food and Drugs appointed March
9, 1964, be composed of Messrs. Armstrong, Asselin (Richmond-Wolfe), Bas-
ford, Casselman (Mrs.), Coté (Longueuil), Enns, Francis, Gauthier, Harley,
Horner (Jasper-Edson), Howe (Hamilton South), Jorgenson, Macaluso, Mack-

asey, Marcoux, Mitchell, Nesbitt, Orlikow, Prud’homme, Roxburgh, Rynard,
Slogan, Whelan, and Willoughby.

Attest.

FriDAY, April 24, 1964.

Ordered,—That the quorum of the Special Committee on Food and Drugs

be reduced from 13 to 8 Members; and that the said Com:mttee be empowered
to sit while the House is sitting.

Attest.

TuEsDAY, May 19, 1964.

Ordered,—That the Special Committee on Food and Drugs be empowered
to meet in Montreal on Thursday and Friday, May 28th and 29th, 1964.

Attest.

LEON J. RAYMOND,
The Clerk of the House.

20796—13%



REPORTS TO THE HOUSE

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs has the honour to present its

FIRST REPORT

Your Committee recommends:
1. That its quorum be reduced from 13 to 8 members;
2. That it be empowered to sit while the House is sitting.

Respectfully submitted,

HARRY C. HARLEY,
Chairman.

(This Report was concurred in Friday, April 24, 1964)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs has the honour to present its

SECOND REPORT

Your Committee recommends that it be empowered to meet in Montreal
on Thursday and Friday, May 28th and 29th, 1964.

Respectfully submitted,

HARRY C. HARLEY,
Chairman.

Note: This report was concurred in Tuesday, May 19, 1964.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, April 23, 1964
(1)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 11.00 o’clock a.m. for
organization purposes.

Members present: Messrs. Asselin (Richmond-Wolfe), Basford, Enns,
Francis, Harley, Howe (Hamilton South), Macaluso, Mackasey, Marcoux,
Mitchell, Prud’homme, Roxburgh, Rynard, Slogan, Whelan (15).

The Clerk of the Committee attending and having called for nominations,

Mr. Asselin moved, seconded by Mr. Howe, that Mr. Harry C. Harley be
elected Chairman of the Committee.

There being no other nominations, Mr. Francis moved that nominations
close.

Mr. Harley was declared duly elected Chairman and took the Chair. He
thanked the members of the Committee for his election.

On motion of Mr. Mackasey, seconded by Mr. Rynard, Mr. Mitchell was
unanimously elected Vice-Chairman.

The Chairman read the Order of Reference.

On motion of Mr. Francis, seconded by Mr. Enns,

Resolved (unanimously)— That a subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure
comprising the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman, and one representative of each
of the groups of the House be appointed.

Mr. Enns moved, seconded by Mr. Roxburgh, that the quorum of the

Committee, set at 13 pursuant to Standing Order 67(2), be reduced to 8
members.

Whereupon Mr. Mitchell, seconded by Mr. Macaluso, moved in amendment

thereto “That the quorum be reduced to 10”. The amendment was negatived
on the following division: YEAS, 6; NAYS, 7.

The motion of Mr. Enns having been put was resolved in the affirmative
on the following division: YEAS, 9; NAYS, 2.

It was therefore resolved to recommend to the House that the quorum of
the Committee be reduced from 13 to 8.

On motion of Mr. Asselin, seconded by Mr. Howe,

Resolved (unanimously),—That pursuant to its order .of reference, 750
copies in English and 500 copies in French of the Committee’s Minutes of
Proceedings and Evidence be printed.

On motion of Mr. Macaluso, seconded by Mr. Francis,

Resolved (unanimously),—That the Committee seek permission to sit
while the House is sitting.



6 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

The Committee agreed that the order of business be left to the sub-
committee on Agenda and Procedure and submitted to the Committee for
its approval.

At 11.20 a.m. on motion of Mr. Basford, the Committee adjourned to the
call of the Chair.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.

TuEsDAY, May 12, 1964
(2)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 9.40 a.m. today. The
Chairman, Mr. Harry C. Harley, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Asselin (Richmond-Wolfe), Basford, Francis,
Harley, Jorgenson, Macaluso, Mackasey, Marcoux, Orlikow, Roxburgh, Rynard,
Whelan (12).

The Chairman announced the names of the Members who will act with
him on the steering subcommittee on agenda and procedure, namely, Messrs.
Mitchell, Francis, Rynard, Marcoux, Howe (Hamilton South), and Gauthier;
he presented the First Report of the said subcommittee as follows:

“The Subcommittee recommends:

1. That the Committee hold its meetings on Tuesdays and Fridays at
9.30 a.m.;

2. That the Committee first consider the safety of drugs;

3. That the Committee invite the Honourable Minister of National
Health and Welfare and the Director of Food and Drug Directorate
and his officials before calling other witnesses;

4. That in view of the absence of Dr. Morrell until the 11th of May,
the Committee do not hold meetings before his return;

5. That the Committee seek permission of the House to sit in Montreal
on May 28th and 29th, that the Clerk of the Committee accompany
the Committee, and that the payment of any reasonable travelling
and living expenses incurred therefor be authorized.”

After discussion, on motion of Mr. Macaluso, seconded by Mr. Marcoux,

Resolved,—That the First Report of the Subcommittee on Agenda and
Procedure presented this day be adopted.

The Chairman submitted a schedule of meetings and a list of proposed
witnesses. After discussion, it was agreed to invite associations or persons
wishing to present briefs to send a sufficient number of copies for the use of
the members one week in advance of the formal presentation of their sub-
mission.

At 10.30 a.m., on motion of Mr. Macaluso, the Committee adjourned to
9.30 a.m. Thursday, May 21st, to hear the Director of the Food and Drug
Directorate.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.




DELIBERATIONS

TUESDAY, May 12, 1964.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, there now is a quorum. If I may call the
meeting to order, I first would like to announce the names of the members

of the steering committee: Messrs. Mitchell, Francis, Dr. Rynard, Dr. Marcoux,
Dr. Howe, Mr. Gauthier and the Chairman.

The steering committee met on Thursday, April 30, 1964.
Members present: Messrs. Harley, Mitchell, Rynard, Howe and Francis.
I would like to read its first report:

The steering committee agreed to recommend that the order of
business be as follows:

1. That the committee hold its meetings on Tuesdays and Fridays at
9:30 a.m.

2. That the committee first consider the safety of drugs;

3. That the committee invite the Hon. Minister of National Health and

Welfare and the director of the food and drug directorate and his
officials before calling other witnesses;

. That in view of the absence of Dr. Morrell until the 11th day of
May, the committee do not hold meetings before his return;

5. That the committee seek permission of the house to sit in Montreal
on May 28 and May 29, that the Clerk of the committee accompany
the committee, and that the payment of any reasonable travelling
and living expenses incurred therefor be authorized.

Would the committee like to take up these items one by one? The first is:

o That the committee hold its meetings on Tuesdays and Fridays at
9.30 a.m.

Mr. MAcaLuso: I so move.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps we might go over the whole report and adopt
it as a whole.

The second item is:
That the committee first consider the safety of drugs.
The feeling here was that the whole thing be developed along with the

* medical services which have not yet reported. I think Dr. Rynard asked a

question in the house the other day and the answer was that the committee
would not be reporting at the earliest before the end of May.

Mr. MacaLuso: They also are going into the question of safety.

The CHAIRMAN: This is one of the matters and perhaps the most con-
troversial.

Mr. MacALUSO: Is it not the intention of this committee to deal with the
question of the cost of drugs; that is, that we will deal with it anyway, either
by dealing with the royal commission report or the calling of our witnesses.

The CHAIRMAN: Oh yes, eventually we will get into that subject.

Mr. MacaLuso: Why not include both subjects now; we could deal with

the cost after we have dealt with the safety of drugs, and by that time the
report should be available.
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The CHAIRMAN: You mean to try and cover both references at the same
time?

Mr. Macaruso: No, no. I, for one, do not know how you are going to
divide these subjects when we have witnesses appear before this committee.

Is it the intention of the steering committee that we deal with the safety
of drugs first and then when the report comes in, if there was a suggestion to
deal with costs, the same witnesses would have to be brought back again?

The CHAIRMAN: That is possible. However, I am assuming the subject
of the safety of drugs will take some time and probably we would not get
into the matter of the cost of drugs until the fall. But, if the committee wishes,
there is no reason, when these witnesses are here, why they cannot be examined
on both subjects at the same time, if they are prepared to answer questions
on both topics.

Mr. OrLikow: Mr. Chairman, why do we not commence as you suggest.
It will only be a couple of weeks until we get the report of the commission, at
which time we can peruse .it. I think we have to bear in mind how little has
been done up until now despite the fact the restrictive trade practices commis-
sion has looked into this subject, and we are going to have to spend some time
on that. I believe we should leave the question when we shall commence it
until we see what is in that report.

Mr. JORGENSON: Mr. Chairman, it is going to be difficult, as has been sug-
gested, to divide the two subjects as the witnesses called for one will be the
same witnesses called for the other. It might be that after we receive the report
we may want to accentuate the cost factor.

The CHAIRMAN: May we follow Mr. Orlikow’s suggestion, that we proceed
with the witnesses which I will suggest and, if anyone wishes to ask these
witnesses questions in respect of costs at that time they will be free to do so.

Mr. Basrorp: Mr. Chairman, I think the steering committee should con-
sider how quickly we are going into the question on the cost of drugs. I do not
want to see this subject put over until sometime in the fall. I must say this is
one of my interests in the committee, and I think the bulk of the members
would agree with me in this respect. I certainly would disapprove of the steer-
ing committee putting examination in respect of the cost of drugs over until
next fall.

The CHAIRMAN: I made that statement because there is only a certain limited
number of meetings to be held before the summer recess, if we have one. If we
did start now it would be fall before we completed the discussion.

Mr. Basrorp: But, if we started in the fall it would be possible that we
may not complete it at all.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps we would the day before Christmas.

Mr. MacaLuso: Mr. Chairman, why not deal then with the safety feature
first. I do not know how we can divide the two topics unless we call witnesses
who do research work in respect of the safety of drugs and then the cost
accountant witnesses so far as the cost is concerned. That would seem logical
to me. Why not leave our topic of discussion safety and cost; we then could deal
with the safety feature first and then the cost after the report comes out, as
Mr. Orlikow suggested.

Mr. Rynarp: Mr. Chairman, I think that is a reasonable suggestion. In
my opinion the prime consideration must be the safety and then the cost comes
later. Anyone who has had any experience in prescribing drugs, as you your-
self have had, always does his best to make sure he is prescribing a safe drug.
We could deal with the cost later.

Mr. MacaLuso: I would agree that the safety feature is the most important
one at the present time.
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The CHATRMAN: If that is satisfactory to the committee we will continue.

The third recommendation is that the committee invite the Minister of
National Health and Welfare and the director of the food and drug directorate
and his officials before calling other witnesses.

I am sure most members are aware that the minister has just been dis-
charged as a patient from hospital. You will remember that at the beginning
of our committee meetings last year the Minister of National Health and
Welfare gave a full statement covering all of the terms of reference. It is my
feeling there will be very little purpose in inviting her to attend at this time.
However, if it is the wish of this committee to call her in respect of specific
aspects, then the committee may do so at a later date. She will be available at
any time. She has not returned to her work as yet. Is this satisfactory to the
committee?

Some hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: Dealing with the fourth item on this report, that in the
absence of Dr. Morrell the committee do not hold meetings until his return,
today is May 12 and I think Dr. Morrell has returned. In view of that fact,
and in view of the fact that on Friday a great many members of this com-
mittee will have to be elsewhere it is my feeling that we should start our
meetings one week from today at which time we shall hear the head of the
drug directorate, Dr. Morrell.

Some hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: The fifth point is that the committee seek permission
from the House of Commons to sit in Montreal on May 28 and 29.

An hon. MEMBER: What is the purpose of this, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: The purpose of this recommendation is seek permission to
visit some drug companies in Montreal. Your steering committee felt that other
than the doctors and druggists who are members of this committee a great many
of the members are not aware of the methods drug companies use in manu-
facturing drugs, and the precautions and safety measures which are em-
ployed. We felt that a visit to two drug firms and a research laboratory would
be very worth while to members of this committee. We have actually lined
up, for the consideration of this committee, a trip to Montreal during which
we will visit these two drug companies and a clinical laboratory. There are
very few companies which manufacture drugs in Ottawa. The two drug
manufacturing centres are Toronto and Montreal, and in view of the fact
that Toronto is much further away than Montreal we felt that it would be to
our interests to visit these companies in Montreal. I might point out that we
have received invitations from these companies in Montreal. We have chosen
a Thursday and Friday for our visit. We will visit the Ayerst, McKenna &

Harrison firm in Montreal. Dr. Rynard, is that firm a British controlled firm.
or a United States company

Mr. JORGENSON: I believe it is a United States company, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Rynagrp: All the drug companies which operate in Canada are con-
trolled by the United States, with the exception of the Frosst Company.

The CHAIRMAN: Ayerst, McKenna & Harrison Company is a United States
controlled firm. We also intend to visit the Frosst company which is a com-
pletely Canadian company. We would then visit the Hotel Dieu Hospital clinical
investigation unit under the direction of Dr. Jacques Genest who will give us
some idea of how these drugs are applied in clinical investigations. Our trip
is scheduled to last two days, which I suggest is a short period of time,
considering what we intend to cover. We are scheduled to leave early on the
morning of Thursday and depart from Montreal at eight o’clock daylight
saving time Friday evening. Any members who wish to stay in Montreal will, of
course be able to do so, and that is their own concern.
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Mr. RoxBURGH: Why would a member wish to stay in Montreal?
The CHAIRMAN: I have never seen it myself.
Mr. RyNarD: You are not too old to dream.

Mr. RoxBURGH: One is never too old to dream, but that is a poor place to
dream.

Mr. MacaLuso: Mr. Chairman, I think the recommendations of the steering
committee are excellent. I certainly feel, as perhaps do many lay members of
this committee, that such a trip would be of great interest. Can we expect
to attend briefing sessions during this trip?

The CHAIRMAN: It is very obvious from our schedule that this will be a
very packed and concentrated visit. Once the members of this committee arrive
in Montreal they will be more or less in the hands of the officials of these firms
who intend to: present their manufacturing procedures to us as quickly as
possible.

Mr. MacaLuso: I take it during our tour through the facilities we will be
briefed? I am very interested in this aspect of drug production.

The CHAIRMAN: At the Ayerst, McKenna & Harrison company we will
receive some introductory remarks and then be taken on a tour through the
chemical laboratory and a pilot plant. We will then go to luncheon, following
which we will receive some explanatory remarks in respect of the biology
aspect by the medical director and the director of quality control. We will
then be taken on a tour through the biological quality control facilities.

Speaking personally, I have been through a drug firm before and I found
it a very rewarding experience. What is the feeling of the committee on this?
Are the dates suitable? These dates are quite suitable to the firms concerned.

Mr. RoxBURGH: Let us not worry about the dates. If some of us cannot be
there, that is it.

Mr. MacarLuso: I think it will help us in our deliberations here, Mr.
Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: As is mentioned, we will have to ask the permission of the
house for this because we do not have authority to move from place to place.
We can present this report on Wednesday and then make our arrangements.
We will obviously go down by train, and as I said we will be completely in
their hands when we get there as far as what we do is concerned. There will
be more than adequate time for you to ask questions.

Mr. WHELAN: Would it be necessary to ask permission for every trip we
plan, for every visit to one of these plants?

The CHAIRMAN: We would have to ask permission each time unless we ask
for authority to move from place to place, but as I remember it, this was in
the original terms of reference and it was deleted. If what we have said meets
the approval of the committee, would someone move that the steering committee
report be adopted?

Mr. MacaLuso: I move that the report be adopted.

Mr. Marcoux: I second the motion.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I would like to discuss the proposed agenda
with you. I will mention to you whom we have invited and from whom we
have received letters of acceptance. I will then throw the meeting open for
any suggestions on who the members think should appear before the committee.
On May 19, 22 and 26 we have invited Dr. Morrell of the food and drug
directorate. We have given that department three full days. It was my feeling
that during this time we should probably only have meetings from about
9:30 a.m. to 11 a.m. In this way the committee would not be rushed and would
not have to get all the information at one sitting. We have therefore given
Dr. Morrell’s department three different days of sitting.
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Mr. MacaLuso: If things go right, we will be off on Monday?

The CHAIRMAN: There has been no word from the house.

Mr. MacaLuso: I think it will be a little difficult to get a quorum here on
Tuesday, May 19 at 9:30 a.m.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it definite we are not sitting on Monday.

Mr. MAacaLuso: It is pretty definite, as I understand it.

The CHAIRMAN: Would it be suitable to make that Wednesday from 9:30
am. to 11 am.?

Mr. RYNARD: Why not Thursday?

Mr. MacALUusO: Thursday would be best because Wednesday is a full
caucus day.

The CHAIRMAN: Thursday and Friday. Is it suitable to the committee that
we meet on Thursday, May 21 and Friday, May 22, the two consecutive dates,

and have Dr. Morrell and his department appear before us?
It is agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: I did not realize that we would be having a holiday.

Dr. Morrell and his department will be here on May 21, 22 and 26.
On May 28 and 29 we will go to Montreal if the House of Commons so approves.
On June 2, representatives of the Canadian Medical Association will be present;
Dr. Kelly has accepted. At that time, Dr. Kelly will be appearing with two
other doctors; he will have with him Dr. Wightman, who is a very well known
professor at the University of Toronto, an expert in therapeutics and medicine.
I was expecting to call him as a second witness, but this may save the com-
mittee some time.

On Friday, June 5, the Canadian Pharmaceutical Association will be here;
Mr. Turnbull has accepted for that date. Mr. Turnbull is the president of the
Canadian Pharmaceutical Association.

For Friday, June 19, the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers’ Associ-
tion will be presenting a brief.

~ All these people have been asked to present their briefs a week ahead of
time so the committee members can read them before the witnesses appear.

Mr. Basrorp: Have they been asked to present a brief only on the safety
of drugs?

The CHAIRMAN: We could write a letter and ask if they would be prepared
to discuss safety and cost.

Mr. Basrorp: That would help to eliminate any misunderstanding.

The CHAIRMAN: The original letter asked only for a submission on safety.

Mr. BasrorDp: The steering committee wrote letters before the committee
had an opportunity to discuss it.

The CHAIRMAN: I did that; I take full responsibility for it.

Mr. RynarD: I would support that. We want to make sure of the safety
before we go into cost. Cost should be of secondary importance for considera-
tion. I support you on that point.

The CHAIRMAN: I am prepared ‘to write letters asking them to consider
cost at the same time. :

Mr. OrrLikow: There is not much point in that because when they come
down there will be very lengthy and extensive questioning with regard to
cost. I think, therefore, it would be better to space them—about one every
two weeks.

Mr. MAcaLUuso: You could write to them advising them to prepare a
separate brief on cost.
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The CHAIRMAN: I will write to them and ask them if they would be pre-
pared to discuss cost at a later date.

Mr. Mackasey: I would imagine experts on cost and experts on safety are
not necessarily the same people.

The CHAIRMAN: The people to whom I have been writing are not neces-
sarily individuals, but organizations.

Mr. RoxBURGH: There is only one way in which a witness can consider
cost and safety at one and the same time; that is by stipulating that, for ex-
ample, safety be considered on Thursday and cost on Friday. It will be im-
possible to discuss safety and cost in one meeting.

Mr. MacaLuso: I agree that safety should be considered thoroughly, but
I think prospective witnesses should be notified that we will be considering
the cost of drugs and they will probably be called at a later date for that
purpose. I suggest they be asked to prepare a separate brief on costs or an
attachment to their safety brief.

The CHAIRMAN: I will do that.

Mr. MacaLuso: Then, when they come forward we will have a chance to
look at them.

The CHAIRMAN: During the last session, the committee always tried to
obtain briefs a week ahead of time from associations or persons wishing to
appear in order that the committee could read them before the meeting, and
save time by so doing.

Mr. Basrorp: Does the list of names you have given to us comprise all
the people or associations who have been invited?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Basrorp: I suggest a letter be written to the Canadian Labour Con-
gress asking them if they would like to present a brief on the safety of drugs.
This is an organization which is representative of a great many people; they
concern themselves with issues of this nature. They might well have some
valuable information.

The CuARMAN: A few other people have been invited but they have not
as yet answered our letters. We are ready to accept suggestions from members.
Would someone like to move that associations or persons wishing to present
briefs be required to send a sufficient number of copies for the use of members,
the reporters and the press one week in advance of the formal presentation
of their submission?

Mr. Basrorp: I would like it suggested to people who wish to appear that
it would be a wise thing to do, but I would not like it to be made a require-
ment that they have facilities for preparing 50 copies.

Mr. MackASEY: I imagine they can get 50 copies; they need only to have
them mimeographed. If we do not make it obligatory, as we know from past
experience, we will not receive any copies.

The CHAIRMAN: I think Mr. Basford was thinking of individuals who might
want to appear before the committee and who would not have any facilities.

Mr. MacarLuso: That is a different case. There is no problem with
associations.

The CHAIRMAN: Will you leave it to my discretion? I will ask these people
to send briefs.

Mr. MacaLuso: Has there been any invitation to druggist associations or
pharmaceutical associations

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. The Canadian Pharmaceutical Association will be

here on June 5; the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association will
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be here on Friday, June 13. We have invited, but as yet have had no response,
from the College of General Practice of Canada and the Canadian Association
of Consumers, Mrs. Plumptre.

We would like to have as witnesses some experts in clinical medicine. Dr.
Wightman, who is coming here with the Canadian Medical Association, is an
expert in this field. I think we should try to call as witnesses members of the
special committee on drugs which looked into parnate, for example, and the
World Health Organization.

Mr. Rynagrp: I think that would be very useful.

May I interject something here which may not be in order at the moment?

As I remember, at the last meeting of this committee we decided to set
up a standing committee of people with whom we could get in touch immedi-
ately in Ottawa who could give us information on the safety of drugs. As far
as I know, that committee was not set up. Dr. Brien was head of that. I wonder
if we should call Dr. Brien back and re-emphasize that we do need a standing
committee We should not just copy what another nation does holus bolus:
the United States cuts them off; England does not. We just follow the United
States. I think we are big enough—and surely smart enough—+to have our own
policy. I wonder why this standing committee was not carried through.

The CHAIRMAN: You are referring to Dr. Brien from London?
Mr. Rynarp: From Western.

The CHAIRMAN: May we wait until Dr. Morrell comes and then ask him
what is the status of this committee?

Mr. RynarD: I would be glad to wait. We did something last year, as I
understand it, and then we never carried it through. We did not achieve the
very thing we were trying to accomplish. This is all I know. This is what I
want taken up: Why did we not do it? Why did we not have that committee?

Why do we follow the United States and not have our own people in Canada
making some decision?

Mr. ORLIRKOW: I have no objection to the list of organizations you have
suggested we should call. I am sure they all have a contribution to make.
However, it does seem to me that so far we are very heavily weighted with
organizations which are directly involved in the business. We can hardly
expect the drug companies to tell us that they have not been doing everything
they spould. I am not saying they have not been doing so, but they have a
stake in the status quo and, as I say, we cannot expect them to tell us the
whole story. We can hardly expect our own department to tell us they have
not been doing everything they should have done. It does seem to me that
we ought to be calling people, for example, who are doing research in the
universities.

The year before last I gave the chairman of that time a list of a half dozen
people who should be called, and I think I could dig it out of my files. I can
think of Dr. Nickerson at the University of Manitoba, who was called to
Washington to testify several times by the United States committee. At the
University of British Columbia there is Dr. Fowkes, the pharmacologist, and
there is Dr. Selye, who spoke last week to the health committee. Dr. Lehman
at Verdun, who is world famous in this field, should also be called. There are
at least half a dozen people of that type who could give very pertinent in-
formation to this committee. I think their testimony is at least as important
as that of anyone else because they are doing the actual work of testing drugs
and they are not involved with what has been done. They can tell us if what
we have done up to this stage has been sufficient or not.

Mr. RynaArD: I think Dr. Harley has Dr. Wightman on his list, and he
knows the whole score on the very point you are bringing up, Mr. Orlikow.

Mr. OrLikow: I do not think anyone knows the whole story.
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Mr. RynARD: I certainly think he does. He knows it from the university
standpoint.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not want to give the impression that this list is final;
it is merely a beginning. We approached these people because they were avail-
able and we knew of them. We will probably end up with more individuals
than associations, and we will be pleased to listen to suggestions. If you can
find your list, Mr. Orlikow, we will be pleased to consider it. Mr. Basford has
suggested that we ask the Canadian Labour Congress, and we will do that.

Mr. RoxBURGH: I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that you would not want to have
all the drug organizations following immediately upon each other and then all
the individuals at the end. I suggest it be set up with individuals and organiza-
tions interspersed. In my opinion that would give us an opportunity to study
the whole matter efficiently.

The CHAIRMAN: You will have noticed that we will be visiting some of the
drug companies as well as calling the pharmaceutical manufacturers’ associa-
tions. Probably the committee would like to hear some of the evidence from
some of the individual drug companies. I think we should extend our invita-
tion to the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers’ Association, and perhaps
ask one wholly owned Canadian company such as Horner.

Mr. RoxBURGH: We have a few, have we?

The CHAIRMAN: Oh, yes, a few—two!

Mr. MacaLuso: What about the drug association?

The CHAIRMAN: They will be coming in June. Then I think we should
ask a company with headquarters in Europe and another with headquarters
in the United States. In that way we will obtain different opinions and learn
how it is done elsewhere.

There is one other gentleman we might like to call—and this goes back to
some extent to insecticides and pesticides. Dr. Robert Imrie of the Sick Chil-
dren’s Hospital is the gentleman who looks after the poison control centre at that
hospital. He would give us a different approach to the safety of drugs—safety
as far as children are concerned—and at the same time he would be able to
discuss the poisoning aspect of drugs.

Mr. MacaLuso: There is either a Senate or a congressional report of the
United States from their committee which discussed the safety and cost of
drugs very thoroughly. I think they studied it for a year to two years. Would
you write to the United States state department and ask if some of these reports
are available?

The CHAIRMAN: You mean the Kefauver committee?

Mr. MacaLuso: There was another one after the Kefauver report.

Mr. RynarD: It is very voluminous.

The CHAIRMAN: If you can give me the exact name of the report I will
make inquiries and try to obtain several copies.

Mr. Macaruso: I think it would be most helpful.

The CHAIRMAN: If anyone would care to give me a list of names of people
they think we should call, I would be most pleased to write to them and invite
them to appear before the committee.

Mr. Basrorp: Will the steering committee consider lining up the discus-
sion of the cost of drugs?

The CHAIRMAN: As I have mentioned, I will write to the people to whom
I have already written and I will tell them that in the near future we will be
discussing cost and that we would like them to appear at that time also.

In connection with lining up the discussions on cost, I think it was Mr.
Orlikow’s suggestion that we should wait until the royal commission on health
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services report is handed down and then see what they have obtained. That
will give us some basis upon which to decide how much further we should go.

Mr. BAsForRD: Yes, but I do not want to see the consideration of the cost
of drugs side-tracked until heaven knows when. I think the steering committee
should give some thought now to lining up those hearings and deciding who
would be suitable witnesses. I would like to see them give some thought to
having representatives of the Department of Finance here so that we can
consider the ramifications of the 11 per cent sales tax on the cost of drugs,
and also a matter which is of importance to me coming from British Columbia,
namely, the recent action of the province of British Columbia in passing orders
in council pursuant to the pharmacy act, which is now a subject before the
combines investigation branch, prohibiting any effective competition in the
price of drugs in British Columbia. A great many people in British Columbia,
particularly those in low income groups, have been deprived of the possibility
of finding cheap drugs by the action of the Pharmaceutical Association of
British Columbia in prohibiting its members advertising the price of drugs.
This has seriously affected people in British Columbia. I would like to see the
steering committee give some thought to this.

I am sure some people will raise the objection that this is not a fit subject
for the committee, and for this reason I want to give warning that I think it is
a fit subject for the committee to discuss.

I also request the steering committee to call the attorney general of
British Columbia before the committee, as well as those people who have made
the complaint before the director of the combines investigation act, and the
Pharmaceutical Association of British Columbia whose action, as I say, has
materially deprived people in low income groups from buying drugs.

Mr. Rynarp: Would this be a provincial matter?

Mr. BasrForp: It is because I know some people will say it is a provincial
matter that I raise it now and give some warning that I intend to pursue it.
It is now before the combines investigation director and it comes under that
act; therefore it could properly be investigated by this committee. Even if it
were a provincial matter, our terms of reference are to consider the cost of
drugs and therefore we are entitled, when we come to the subject, to examine
all aspects of the ingredients of cost.

It can be said that we have not the legislative power to do anything about
some of those ingredients, but I think the committee is entitled to examine
those ingredients of cost and thereby shine the light of publicity upon them.

The CHAIRMAN: The steering committee will consider what you have said.

Mr. MacALUsO: From listening to Mr. Basford it has just occurred to me
that we should ask the Ontario department of health and welfare to give
evidence before this committee. Their officials can tell us what actions they
take with regard to research and investigation as far as the safety of drugs is
concerned. They do a great deal of work in this field and their brief would be
most interesting and informative. That department is doing a great deal of
work not only in regard to the safety of drugs but also in regard to the cost
factor, although they are most involved in safety.

Mr. RoxBURGH: There is to be a report. When will that be handed down?

The CHAIRMAN: Do you mean the report of the health services?
Mr. ROXBURGH: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Not before the end of May.

Mr. RYnaRD: I believe it will be approximately the middle of June; it was
delayed a little.

Mr. OrLikow: I would be very surprised if they undertook the kind of
detailed investigation which is going to be required. Anyone who is interested
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only needs to look at the work done by the United States committee to see how
much is involved. If we are going to do a good job I think it is necessary to
go to the government and ask for assistance in the form of accounting services
and so on, because drug companies will not be overly enthusiastic about letting
this committee, or anybody else, know what is the complete situation.

Mention has been made of the provincial departments. On the question of
cost, I think we should consult with some of them because they have been
able to buy drugs in quantity for a fraction of the price that is paid by most
people.

Mr. RynarD: I think they are able to buy them without sales tax.

Mr. OrLiKOwW: It is not just an exemption of sales tax that is concerned.
In Manitoba—and I am sure Manitoba is no different from any other province—
the government has been able to go to the big companies and buy the drugs
more cheaply by telling them that if the price is not reduced they will buy
from small companies using the generic names. They have been able to buy
these drugs for a few cents as compared to dollars, and they have saved hun-
dreds of thousands of dollars in this way. We could learn from their experience.

Mr. MacaLuso: This committee could be one of the most important special
committees that has been set up in this house. The matter we are to study is a
field in which everyone is interested. The public, of course, will be most in-
terested in the work we do.

The royal commission report will be informative for us as a committee,
but I do believe that this committee can perform a greater function than could
the royal commission in certain fields. Although the royal commission is en-
abled to call any witnesses it wishes, I think perhaps the power of the house
will enable this committee to obtain more information than the commission
was able to obtain. Of course, I do not know what is contained in the report of
the commission, and therefore I cannot say this with any degree of certainty,
but I do think that, as far as the public is concerned, we form one of the most
important committees in this field of drugs, and our discussions will be ex-
tensively publicized. It is therefore imperative that the steering committee
and the general committee carefully discuss the course we should follow and
then make as thorough and complete an investigation as possible.

Mr. Francis: There has been a tremendous amount of work carried out on
the cost of drugs by different departments. The research and statistics branch
of the department of health and welfare has done a great deal of work. The
restrictive trade practices commission has done a great deal of work, but I
do not know whether they have published reports. Then the Department of
Agriculture has studied the cost of drugs at length. For example, they have
studied the use of drugs for veterinary purposes, and I remember their striking
conclusion that it was much cheaper to buy penicillin for use with animals
than for use with humans.

At the time we lay down our procedure with regard to costs we should
lay down our whole agenda carefully. Our agenda concerning costs should en-
compass different witnessese and a different type of investigation from our
agenda on safety. At that time, I think the committee should review its pro-
cedure and the witnesses it wishes to call.

Mr. Mackasey: The way in which the conversation has veered in this
particular meeting is indicative of the problems we will encounter if we try
to discuss cost and safety at one and the same meeting. To be against the high
cost of drugs is like being against sin. We are all against the high cost of drugs.

Mr. Basrorp: What about sin?

Mr. MACKASEY: I am afraid that because of the impact of the high cost of
drugs we will find ourselves losing track of the necessity of ensuring the safety
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of drugs. What has happened in this 20 minutes has been an indication that it
is impossible to consider both at the same time.

If this committee considers that our main functxon is to worry about the
safety of drugs, then it is to that end that we should gear our efforts. If we
have a witness who is prepared to talk first about safety and then about the
cost of drugs, quite obviously his time and our time will be taken up with cost
because we are all so familiar with that aspect.

I had an open mind when I came into this meeting, but after listening
I am convinced that we should consider safety as much as possible.

The CHAIRMAN: I think that is the general feeling of the committee.

Mr. MAcALUSO: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Rynard made the point earlier that when one is

dealing with cost one is dealing with someone’s pocketbook and when one is

dealing with safety one is dealing with lives; and this is a point that we must
remember.

Mr. RoxBURGH: Yes. I do not see how they could be brought together.
The only way in which one could do it would be for a witness to deal with

one aspect on one day and the other aspect on another day; we certainly can-
not work them together.

Mr. MacaLuso: I move that we adjourn, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAN: The meeting will adjourn until Thursday, May 21.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, May 21, 1964
(3)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 9:40 am. this day.
The Chairman, Mr. Harry C. Harley, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Enns, Harley, Howe (Hamilton South), Jorgen-
son, Macaluso, Mackasey, Marcoux, Orilkow, Prud’homme, Roxburgh, Slogan,
Whelan, Willoughby—(13).

In attendance: From the Food and Drug Directorate, Department of
National Health and Welfare: Dr. C. A. Morrell, Director; Dr. L. I. Pugsley,
Associate Director; Dr. Frank Lu, Head of the Pharmacology and Toxicology

Division; Dr. Richard Graham, Dr. D. C. Jessup, Mr. M. G. Allmark, and Miss
E. M. Ordway.

The Chairman introduced Dr. Morrell and invited him to address the
Committee.

Dr. Morrell read a statement of action taken by the Department of National
Health and Welfare since the appointment of the Special Committee of the
Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons to study the procedures used by
the Food and Drug Directorate for dealing with new drugs.

Dr. Morrell, assisted by Dr. Lu and Dr. Pugsley, answered questions
thereon.

The Chairman announced that the Director of the Food and Drug Direc-
torate will be available for further questioning Friday, May 22, and also
Tuesday, May 26.

At 11 o’clock a.m. the Committee adjourned to 9:30 a.m. Friday, May 22.

Fripay, May 22, 1964
(4)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 10 o’clock a.m. today.
The Chairman, Mr. Harry C. Harley, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Armstrong, Coté (Longueuil), Ennsa Harley,
Howe (Hamilton South), Mackasey, Marcoux, Rynard, Slogan, Willoughby
—(10).

In attendance: From the Food and Drug Di?'ectomte, Department of
National Health and Welfare: Dr. C. A. Morrell, D1rectpr; Dr. L. 1. Pugsley,
Associate Director; and Mr. M. G. Allmark, Assistant Director of Drugs.

The Chairman briefly outlined the proposed itinerary for the Montreal
visit of the Committee on May 28 and 29.
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Dr. Morrell made a further statement on the question asked by Mr. Slogan
yesterday with regard to the bureau of standards. He was further examined

about marketing of new drugs, introduction of new drugs for clinical trial in
Canada, testing, and related matters.

Questioning concluded, the Chairman announced that the Secretary of the
United Nations, Mr. U Thant will address the House of Commons next Tuesday,

May 26, at 10 a.m., and the Committee agreed to cancel its meeting for that
day. ‘

At 11 o’clock a.m. the Committee adjourned to meet in Montreal Thursday
next, May 28.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.




EVIDENCE

THURSDAY, May 21, 1964.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, there is a quorum present and we will start
our meeting.

First of all, I would like to ask the members if they received last year
issue number 16 of the proceedings, which included the final report of the
committee on insecticides and pesticides. I know I did not receive that report
and I was wondering if everyone else was in the same position as I?

Some hon. MEMBERS: No.

The CHAIRMAN: Then, we will have them sent out to you from the
distribution office.

Gentlemen, we have with us this morning Dr. Morrell, the director of
the food and drug directorate along with a good number of his staff; I will
not attempt at this time to introduce them.

Dr. Morrell will be with us for three days. We have set this time aside
because we thought there would be a lot of evidence and a great number
of questions which the committee would wish to put to Dr. Morrell.

It was the feeling of the steering committee that we probably should
meet until approximately 11 o’clock this morning and then break off at a
convenient time. Dr. Morrell will be back tomorrow and again on Tuesday.

Dr. Morrell has furnished copies of the Food and Drug Act and regula-
tions for those who did not receive them during our last hearings. There
probably will be some new members who have not received copies of these
to date.

I think the best thing to do at this time would be to introduce Dr. Morrell
to the committee. I think most of you already know Dr. Morrell. I would ask
him to give a statement which he has prepared in respect of changes which
have taken place since the last time he appeared before this committee.

Mr. MACKASEY: Are there copies available of Dr. Morrell’s statement?

Dr. C. A. MorreLL (Director, Food and Drug Directorate, Department of
National Health and Welfare): I gave a copy of my statement to the reporters
and I have just the one copy left. :

Mr. Chairman, do you wish me to read my statement or have you any
other wishes in this respect?

The CHAIRMAN: I think it would be better to have Dr. Morrell read his
statement to the members of the committee. Is that agreed?

Some hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

Dr. MorgeLL: The statement which I am going to read is a statement
of the action that has been taken by the Department of National Health
and Welfare since the appointment of 'the special committee of the Royal
College of Physicians and Surgeons. A number of things have been done
and I will enumerate them in this report which I am going to read to you.

Since the appointment of the special committee of the Royal College of
Physicians and Surgeons of Canada to study the procedures use;d by .the
food and drug directorate for dealing with new drugs. apd especially since
the report of that committee was received by the minister, a n}1mber of
actions have been taken to increase the protection of the p1'1b11c in respect
. of the sale and use of drugs by the Food and Drugs Act and its enforcement.
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These actions include (1) an amendment to the Food and Drugs Act
itself, (2) additional regulations or amended regulations under this act, (3)
an increase in staff of the food and drug directorate, (4) the planning of a
drug adverse reaction reporting program and first steps to implement such
program, (5) the use of special ad hoc committees of experts to advise on
a number of matters related to enforcement of the law in the interests of
public safety.

Now, in more detail I will enumerate these.

1. Amendments to the Food and Drugs Act.

The Food and Drugs Act was amended by parliament in respect of
several sections on December 21, 1962:

(a) Section 14 of the act was amended to provide authority for closer
and more effective control over the distribution of drug samples. The present
section 14 the one which now exists, prohibits anyone from distributing or
causing to be distributed any drug as a sample but makes an exception of
the distribution of samples of drugs to physicians, dentists, veterinary surgeons
or pharmacists under prescribed conditions. The effect of the new section 14
is to prohibit the distribution of drugs as samples to the general public and
to provide authority by regulation to prescribe conditions for distributing
drugs to the professional groups named. Regulations in respect of the latter
are already in force.

(b) A new section (14A) was added to the act which forbids the sale of
any drug described in Schedule H to the act. Only two drugs are described in
schedule H to the act, namely, thalidomide and lysergic acid diethylamide.

Following the request from a number of research centers to be allowed to
buy thalidomide for purely experimental purposes, either chemical or biological,
possibly involving the use of animals or organisms other than humans, an
exemption was made by regulation from the total prohibition of sale for those
purposes only.

Such exemption was made by the authority of section 24(1) (i) of the
act which permits exemptions from the requirements of the act if the condi-
tions of exemption are prescribed by regulation.

Certain exemptions have also been made by the same means permitting a

limited controlled use of LiSD to determine its value and hazards in the treat-
ment of humans.

(c) Although there has been undoubted authority under the Food and
Drugs Act for many years to promulgate regulations concerning the introduc-
tion of new drugs to the market, it was felt to be desirable to spell out this
authority in The Act.

For that reason a new section (o) was added to 24 (1) of the act providing
authority to make regulations respecting method of preparation, manufacture,
preserving, packaging, labelling, storing and testing of any new drug and
defining the sale and conditions of sale of any new drug as well as defining, for
the purposes of the act, the expression ‘new drug”.

These are the amendments to the act itself which were passed by parliament
in December, 1962.

2. Additional Regulations or Amendments to Regulations.

(a)-For several years discussions between the officers of the food and
drug directorate were held with a view to setting forth by regulation certain
requirements for the facilities and controls to be used by anyone manufacturing
drugs in their final pharmaceutical form. Regulations in this area were passed
by Orgier in Council in March, 1963. They consist of sections C.01.051 to C.01.056
inclusive, and set forth requirements for the quality control in all its aspects
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including standards for premises in which drugs are manufactured, qualifica-
tions of supervisory staff; requirements for testing raw and finished products,
systems for recall of drug, records of tests and information on adverse reactions

that may be reported. There requirements cover imported drugs as well as those
produced in Canada.

(b) Regulations setting forth the limitations on the distribution of drug
samples to the professions named in the act were passed in July, 1963. They
are given in sections C.01.048 and C.01.049 and require that a manufacturer
distribute samples of drugs only to physicians, dentists, veterinary surgeons and
pharmacists. Furthermore, the manufacturer must first receive a written order
signed by the physician, dentist, veterinary surgeon or pharmacist specifying
the name and amount of the sample requested if the drug is a prescription
drug, or a maximum single and daily dose of it is preseribed by regulation or
if it is a preparation that must be labelled “for therapeutic use only” or if it
is a new drug (see Schedule I to the regulations).

I call your attention to Schedule I of the regulations. This is a new schedule
which has been added.

Regulations permitting a very restricted sale of Schedule H drugs were
passed in July, 1963, and are contained in sections C.07.001 to C.07.006 inclusive.
Lysergic acid (diethylamide), commonly known as LSD may only be sold to
an institution approved by the minister for clinical use by qualified investiga-
tors in those institutions.

The use of the drug is limited to the determination of its hazards and
efficacy or for laboratory research in such institutions. The minister must be
informed of every sale before it is made and must approve the sale in respect
to quantity and dosage form. An adequate accounting of the use of the drug by
each institution must be made at the request of the minister.

The control of the sale of thalidomide is the same except that it may be
sold only as the bulk chemical in powdered form for animal or chemical
experiments.

The new drug regulations were completely rewritten and were passed in
October, 1963. They are now included in sections C.08.001 to C.08.009. Although
rewritten, they maintain many of the requirements previously in force to
which are now added a number of additional sections. The revised regulations
include the recommendations made by the special committee of the Royal
College of Physicians and Surgeons. The new sections include a revised defini-
tion of a new drug which definitely covers significant changes in excipients as
ones that will result in a drug being considered as a new drug. It also states
that a new drug is one that is “new” in Canada.

A new feature of the new drug regulations is the requirement of a “pre-
clinical submission” from the manufacturer before he may distribute a new
drug for clinical trial (section C.08.005). In that respect I call your attention
to section C.08.005 of the food and drug regulations in the blue pages. In such
a submission the manufacturer must include prescribed information about its
chemistry, the manufacturing procedures and controls used in producing and
testing its purity and safety and information to justify its clinical trial. In effect,
this is information to support its clinical use. The mapufacturer must also
provide the names and qualifications of all clinical investigators who are to use
the new drug and he must ensure that such investigators have the facilities
necessary and that the investigator has informatlon'ajbout the new drug that
will enable him to use it on humans with the minimum of hazard to the
patient. 13 o)

Following the filing of a satisfactory pr_echmqal submission, the manu-
facturer may distribute his new drug for clinical trial in order to gather data
and information to file a new drug submission, much as he has done in the
past.
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There are two new pieces of authority given the minister; the minister may
stop the sale of a new drug for clinical trial or may suspend a notice of com-
pliance of a new drug, for reasons of public health and in the latter case, for
other specified serious reasons as well (C.08.006). I refer you there to see-
tion C.08.006 which spells out the reasons which may cause the minister to
suspend the sale or distribution of a new drug; that is in the case of the
suspension of a new drug undergoing clinical trial, or in the case that the
minister insists on the recall of the new drug which is on the market.

If the “notice of compliance” is suspended, the manufacturer must recall
the drug in question from the market and it returns to the status of a new
drug undergoing clinical trial.

The manufacturer may appeal the decision of the minister in either case
and a mechanism for such appeals is described in the regulations (see section
C.08.009).

Records must now be kept by the manufacturer after he introduces a
new drug on the market. These requirements are in the interests of safety and
to keep the directorate informed of unexpected adverse reactions.

The third area in which changes have been made is in the increase of staff
in the food and drug directorate.

The staff of the food and drug directorate has been increased by 200 posi-
tions since the formation of the special committee of the Royal College. Some-
what more than half of these positions have been assigned to the field staff, the
remainder to headquarters. As anticipated, it is difficult to recruit people with
certain scientific qualifications, particularly pharmacologists, physiologists,
pharmacologsts, physiologists, pharmaceutical chemists and medical graduates.
In some of these classes there are only a few qualified persons available and
the salaries we can offer are insufficient to attract or hold them.

One of the problems in the past has been to learn at an early date of
unexpected adverse reactions to drugs. An adverse reaction reporting system
is now being organized to advise the directorate of such reactions noted in
Canada. Teaching hospitals of the medical schools in this country are con-
sidered as suitable sources for the kind of information needed and the plan
has been discussed with the deans of the medical schools and the professors
of medicine. It is hoped that some definite arrangement and organization will
be in effect before the end of this fiscal year.

The report of the special committee of the Royal College of Physicians
and Surgeons recommended that a standing Working committee be established
to advise on matters pertaining to drugs. This recommendation is still under
review in the department. The terms of reference and membership of the
Canadian drug advisory committee are being studied with a view to ascertain-
ing what part it can play in the light of this recommendation. Meanwhile the
directorate has instituted the use of ad hoc committees of specialists in certain
fields to advise on special problems requiring a knowledge and experience in
considerable depth, of the subjects presented to them. The most recent of these
ad hoc committees was asked to advise whether the sale of tranylcypromine
should be more specifically controlled and if so, what should be done in this
connection.

These ad hoc committees are in respect of special subjects in which we
require advice. I have here a list of the committees which we have consulted
since last fall. There is a special committee on vitamin B-12 and the intrinsic
factor concentrate. This committee was called together on October 7. Then
there were the representatives of the Canadian Veterinary-Medical Associa-
tion to discuss the brief they had presented to the Brien committee. The
Canadian Pediatric Society sent a committee to discuss their brief which they
had presented to the same committee. Also, we had representatives of the
Canadian Society of Clinical Investigators, because we wanted to find out
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from them what information they needed before they investigated or ad-

‘ministered a brand new drug to a patient. Finally, as you know, we have had

the special committee on parnate. No report has yet been received from them.
These are the special ad hoc committees to which I refer.

It seems to us that these ad hoc committees consisting of specialists in
the particular areas concerned should be more helpful than a standing
committee whose members cannot be expected to have the depth of knowledge
or experience needed to cover all areas of the broad fields in which our re-
sponsibility lies. We have talked this over with Dr. F. S. Brien and his associ-
ates and have their concurrence in our trials of the ad hoe committee method
of getting advice. This is not to say, however, that a revision of our ideas as
to the functions of the Canadian drug advisory committee is not needed. Indeed

more study is necessary to explore possible ways of deriving greater benefit
from this committee.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Morrell’s statement will be printed in our first issue.
I am not sure what the printing facilities are at the present time. However,
I think the printing is fairly rapid, and we should not have any difficulty in
getting the statement.

Gentlemen, the meeting is open. Are there any questions of Dr. Morrell?

Mr. EnNs: I was very much interested in that part of the report which
dealt with the tightening up of controls in respect of the Food and Drug
Act. It now would appear very unlikely the thalidomide tragedy would be
repeated. But, I am wondering if this action has sealed forever the benefits
of those new drugs which form a part of a new development. Thalidomide
itself has many benefits but there is this terrible limitation. Does the Food
and Drug Act, in the way it is now set out, still allow the ‘use of certain
drugs if or when the safety of such use can be proven?

Mr. MORRELL: Mr. Chairman, although thalidomide is mentioned in
schedule H, which is a total prohibition in itself of the sale of thalidomide as
a drug there is an exemption allowed where thalidomide is being used by
research institutions in respect of animals and for chemical experiments, and
if something should result from the experimental work which would be of
value in thereapeutics we would have to give very careful consideration to
allowing its use for any particular purpose which would be valuable. But, at
the present time, we have had no such information; in other words it is
possible that thalidomide could again be used as a therapeutic agent if the
necessity or value of it was distinctly proven.

Mr. Enns: But, to date the apparent dangers in respect of it seem to be
limited to the pregnant mother.

Mr. MORRELL: Yes.

Mr. ENns: Are there any reported ill effects of other uses, for _examplg
in the case of male users, or even to persons beyond the (?hlld bsarmg age!
In that respect is consideration being given to the use of this drug?

Mr. MorreLL: Well, there were other side effects that were reported and
known, but not side effects that would have led to its recall from the .market.
However, as you know, almost every drug which has any therapeutic value
as an effective drug will have some side effects. Thalldo_mld.e was known to
have had some side effects before the realization that it .dld cause or was
certainly associated with the production of malformed children. It was for
the latter reason it was recalled from the market.

Mr. Exns: This alarms me very much. I do kngw 'ghat it has. been
reported for the treatment of migraine headaches and, in this respect, it has
Proven very beneficial.
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Mr. MORRELL: Yes.

Mr. Enns: I am wondering if the benefits of a drug such as this are
being denied to those persons who could be helped by it because of the
serious alarm which has been expressed in respect of malformed children.
Is it possible to conceive that even without new development of the drug or
new application of it that perhaps circumstances will change so that a limited
application of the drug as it is known now can be used?

Mr. MoRrreLL: Yes, I have heard of the value of it in the treatment of
migraine headaches. I think it was acknowledged as being a good sedative
and having certain features. In fact, at one time in the early days when it
was on the market, it was thought to be a very safe drug because no one
could commit suicide by using it. Apparently, you could take an enormous
quantity of it, have a good sleep all night and have no ill effects afterward.
But, I think the hazard is the inability to control the user of thalidimode
after it is on the market. I am referring now to the medicine cabinet at
home; you do not know who will take a pill today. Everyone wants to take
pills and if they know it is a sedative or headache pill they are more likely
to take it than perhaps any other type of pill. I think it is the fear of it
getting into the wrong hands that has led to the very heavy restrictions which
are placed on the use of it. It is not allowed at all for the use of humans at
the present time. Now, whether or not this fear ever will dissipate I do not
know. But, I think it is a real problem to control the use of a drug. Even
when prescriptions are given to some member of the household we believe
that other people will take it. They do not know quite what it is, and they
even might hand it to a neighbour and say: ‘“This is what the doctor gave
me; try it.” This is the danger in respect of thalidomide.

Mr. SroGaN: Dr. Morrell, would you mind giving us some of the other
side effects of thalidomide?

Mr. MorreLL: Yes. Some had a peripheral neuritis in the arms and legs
following long daily use over several months. This condition could have been
stopped in the early stages if the drug was stopped but, I have heard it would
persist if it was continued. Perhaps some of my own staff could give you more
information than I have. Dr. Lu, could you add anything to what I have said.

Dr. FRANK LU (Food and Drug Directorate, Department of National Health
and Welfare): There has been some indication of its effect on the thyroid gland
although this did not prove as serious as peripheral neuritis.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you a question, Dr. Orlikow?

Mr. OrLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask Dr. Morrell a question in
respect of the increase in staff which you have mentioned. I believe you said
there were 200 extra people. In view of this, how much more ability has this
given the department to check on the quality of these items. I hesitate to use
the words “quality control” because this expression is being misused by certain
drug companies for their own purposes. But, how much more ability has the
department at the present time to ensure the public that prescription drugs
which are distributed meet the standards set by the department?

Mr. MorreLL: Well, it certainly has added to our ability. The positions that
we have and the people who subsequently have filled some of these have been
of great assistance. However, all these positions are not filled to date. But, these
positions are or will be filled by inspectors, laboratory chemists and some office
workers, which are necessary; it also includes scientists at headquarters.

Now, I pointed out to you that we have new regulations which permit us to
inspect the factory of a manufacturer who is making drugs in order to determine
whether or not he has quality control features in his organization which satisfy
at least the minimum requirements of the regulations. The number of plants
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inspected has increased a great deal since we have obtained our new inspectors;
but, I must point out to you that hiring an inspector this year, expecting him
to go to work during this year and to be particularly useful, is not the way it
happens. They require a training period of a couple of years. I would say that
next year and the year after we will begin to feel much more the benefits of
the people that have been added to our staff. It does take a good deal of time
to train them. But, assuming they are trained adequately, I think it will add a
great deal in that respect.

Now, methods of analyses for pharmaceuticals are always under observa-
tion and development, and we have some people on our Ottawa staff who are
developing these methods. Additional people have been hired there as well as
in our regional laboratory, which permits us to do more samples of drugs taken
from the market. The benefits of all these will be much more marked, of
course, in a year or two.

However, I want to emphasize that we are not yet, and I think it is unlikely
we ever will be, able to analyse every batch of every drug put on the Canadian
market. I would estimate there would be 100,000 batches of drugs of one kind
or another and in one form or another each year put on the Canadian market.
Of course, some of these are compound and complex drugs and the standard
analytical procedures used are not altogether satisfactory because of the
presence of other materials. So, we have to develop methods. But, even if this
were done, 100,000 batches a year would require many many more times the
number of people we have. Therefore, I want to point out again that we have
to continue to do a policing action; that is, take samples from the market,
analyse them and take action wherever we find there is fault. Of course, we
have increased the number of samples taken of drugs from the market and as
we get more people there will be more samples taken. There is that much more
assurance that we are catching those that are not correct. But, there never can
be a guarantee that we get everything.

Mr. OrrikOw: Dr. Morrell, what provisions have you for testing drugs

which are not manufactured in Canada. I am referring to those drugs which are
imported.

Mr. MorreLL: We have the same authority over imported drugs and the
same provisions. We get some of them in customs and we obtain some when they
get to the Canadian distributor. We take samples there. But, the same authority
is provided for imports and domestic.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: The reason I asked this question is that in respect of the
hearings in the United States—and I am sure we will have the same thing
here—from discussions I have had with other people one of the reasons given
for not using more often the generic names of drugs, which would give an
opportunity certainly in the field of antibiotics or tranquilizers for very sub-
stantial savings is that they cannot be certain that the smaller company or
the company which imports from Europe imports a drug which is up to
standard and, therefore; it would be better if better known companies an_d
so forth were specified. If this is a legitimate doubt, of course, then there is
nothing we can do; but, if it is not it seems to me that the mgdical profess%on
and the public should ensure that we are doing adequate testing and obta}n-
ing drugs of proper standard, even when they use generic names. I think
plenty of evidence can be brought forward that there hz.we. been very sub-
stantial savings. An example of this is in respect of provincial hospitals. Be-
cause they have confidence in their own ability to test they are able to buy
not only in quantity but to buy generic labelled items.

Mr. MorreLL: Well, I certainly understand the situation and I think they
have a legitimate basis for doubt in respect of buying any drug on the market.
I think as time goes on and as our staff becomes greater and better able to
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cope with the vast number of products on the market things will be better.
There are 25,000 or more products on the market and, therefore, the reason
for doubt will be less and less as we analyse more and more samples. We
know from our own analyses that there are some so-called generic drugs on the
market that are satisfactory; on the other hand, we know there have been some
that have not been satisfactory because we have had to take action to get
them off the market. One, I thing-often buys and is wise to buy on the reputa-
tion of a company. You do that in respect of purchases of other items, and I
think one is wise to do it in respect of drugs. If I were a doctor prescribing
drugs I am sure I would tend to prescribe from companies whom I knew.
This is only natural.

Mr. OrLIKOW: That is so, Mr. Chairman; no one questions that. But, at
the same time, we are not dealing in pennies; we are dealing with very sub-
stantial amounts of money which the ordinary person in a low or medium
income job who has an illness and has to call a doctor for an antibiotic
prescription can ill afford. I am not laying the blame on anyone but this
person obtains his prescription and he is charged $10 or $12, which is a pretty
big burden on him. It is not surprising if he wonders whether or not he could
get the prescription cheaper. As I say, there is plenty of evidence and I hope
we are going to go into this question in great detail. As you know, drug
companies are the most profitable type of business that there is in existence
on the North American continent. Their profit on investment capital is twice
as large as the profit of automobile companies, and this is an important
factor. I think the faster we can get to this question of making sure that any
drug which is sold is reliable so that the doctor can be sure the drug he
prescribes is reliable, the better. It would be of a great value. For example,
has the department considered this question. Suppose a company wants to
bring in a product and goes to the department and says: “Look, we are going
to bring this product in; will you inspect it and, if it is suitable, give us some
kind of letter of approval so we can tell the medical profession it is reliable
and that they can use it without worry?” Have you given consideration to
that kind of program?

Mr. MORRELL: Certainly, it is not within our authority. We administer
laws. As you know, we have three laws for which we are responsible in
respect of administering and enforcing and we have no authority for approv-
ing anything. We always take a negative attitude; we take objection to things
that are not right and we say nothing about things that are right. They are
supposed to be right so we have not given any consideration to approving
certain plants in preference to others. But, if we have any objection to them,
and we often do, we take action. As I said, we do not approve the ones who
are living up to the law.

Mr. OrLikow: Well, this is bound to help. I am not blaming the depart-
ment because certainly its job is to administer the laws and regulations that
parliament and the government pass. But, this certainly tends to maintain the
status quo.

I am wondering if the department has given any consideration to regula-
tions along the lines proposed in the United States which would require the
use of the generic name as well as the trade name and so on on label when
drug prescription items are prepared for sale in the United States.

Mr. MoRrreLL: Well, Mr. Chairman, for a good many years it has been
a requirement of the food and drug regulations that what you call the generic
name and what is referred to in the regulations as the proper name, must be
on the label in conjunction with the brand name and immediately adjacent
to it. Usually it is below it, I think, and in type not less than half the size
of the brand name. Now, you can only give a proper name to a single sub-
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stance; when you get mixtures of substances, in my mind, it is no longer
possible to give it a generic name. You have a mixture or a compound of a
great many products. As you know, a great many products are compounds or
mixtures of two or more things. When you list the ingredients of these drugs
we want the generic name in the list. But, the name of the drug itself will
be a coined name which is used by the manufacturer.

Mr. MAcgASEY: Dr. Morrell, in reading between the lines I would come
to the conclusion that basically your department at the present time is more
concerned in the safety of the population than you are in the price of drugs.

Mr. MorreLL: We have no authority whatever over the price of drugs.
I cannot alter the price of drugs through any action I take except to increase
it if I demand more and more from the manufacturer by way of safety,
records and so on.

Mr. MACKASEY: Am I right in assuming by an answer that you gave to
Mr. Orlikow that at least under the present circumstances if a drug is
labelled by the name of a reputable manufacturer it does provide some
margin of safety which would not be there under the present circumstances
in the case of a drug which is not labelled?

Mr. MoRRELL: But, all drugs have to be labelled.

Mr. MAckASEY: Well, let us call it lobbying, if you like, or the concep-
tion that we are paying extremely high prices simply because a drug is
labelled by the manufacturer for someone else. There is the conception that
if an aspirin container was blank, with no symbol on it, it would be much
cheaper. Although I inferred that from what Mr. Orlikow said I do not
necessarily agree with it. So far as you are concerned, what is your opinion
in that respect. Would you prefer to see the drugs, pills and so on, labelled
by the manufacturer, as is the case now?

Mr. MoRReLL: It is required by the regulations that they have the name
of the drug, the dosage, adequate directions for use, the name and address
of the manufacturer and so on, on the label.

Mr. MAcCKASEY: And I suppose this is done for the purpose of safety?

Mr. MoRRELL: Yes, I suppose ultimately it is intended for that.

Mr. MACKASEY: Regardless of what it may or may not do in respect of
the price the prime reason or objective is the safety factor.

Mr. MorreLL: Yes. We would not want a drug on the market and not
know who was responsible for it. I think that would be a dangerous situa-
tion, if allowed to exist.

Mr. MackaSEY: I have one other question which I will put for my own
personal information. You mentioned in your very fine opening remarks this
morning that research information must be supplied along with a request for
the sale of a new drug. Does this research information result entirely frpm
tests conducted in Canada or do you have other recognized sources outside
the country from which you accept drugs, assuming they are of the proper
standard? ;

Mr. MORRELL: There are several ways. I presume you are speaking of
adverse reactions? : ;

Mr. Mackasey: Yes, the clinical research that must go mto_ 1t:

Mr. MORRELL: Are you inquiring about any new drug submission?

Mr. MACKASEY: Yes. ! :

Mr. MORRELL: Oh, no; this information certainly is not entirely gathered
in Canada. I would suppose the majority of our new drugs originate in the
United States and the majority of the clinical material will have been gathered
there. There has been no special requirement that it must be gathered in
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Canada. I think if we said all our information on clinical testing or laboratory
work must be done in Canada before we would consider it there would be
such a bottleneck we would not get very many new drugs released because
we do not have sufficient facilities.

Mr. MACKASEY: That is the point I am getting at.

Mr. MorreLL: We have not sufficient facilities for this.

Mr. MACKASEY: I have one last question, which may seem to you to be
ridiculous. I would like to draw a parallel to court cases. When a drug is tem-
porarily banned or barred by the department and, as you mentioned, the
company has a right of appeal, am I right that in the time intervening during
an appeal the drug is banned and, in this respect, the procedure is not similar
to an appeal case in court.

Mr. MoRReLL: No, the regulation makes it clear that during the time in
which the information is being submitted to the committee of appeal and is
dealt with the drug is banned.

The CHAIRMAN: Did you have a question, Mr. Howe?

Mr. Howe (Hamilton South): No, Mr. Chairman. My question related to
the generic part of it, which has been discussed.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you proceed, Dr. Slogan.

Mr. Srocan: Do all the drugs which go on the United States market go
through the American bureau of standards?

Mr. MorreLL: No, they do not; they go to the American food and drug
administration, which is the counterpart of the Canadian food and drug
directorate.

Mr. SLOGAN: And, am I right in assuming we do not have a body similar to
the American bureau of standards in Canada?

Mr. MoRReELL: No. I suppose we do have functions which are similar, but
these functions are distributed among various departments and we have no
comparable body to the American bureau of standards.

Mr. SroGgaN: What I had in mind is that in the dental profession the
American Dental Association has certain standards for certain of these prod-
ucts. For example, in the case of dental cement, it has to meet the ADA
specification number 8. It is my understanding that any of the products which
are on the United States market can be referred to the bureau of standards
for testing to see whether or not they meet these standards. For instance, when
I am using a product which meets the specification and I am quite acquainted
with it and a salesman comes in with another product with which I am not
acquainted, and he tells me it meets these specifications set by the United
States authorities I am prepared to accept it. In view of this, I was wondering
if there is not room for something like this in Canada and, perhaps, a little
more co-operation between the two countries. If they have certain sets of
standards for licensing their drugs in the United States and if our food and
drug directorate was acquainted with these standards and a drug is accepted
in the United States is it necessary to do any further testing in Canada, or can
you accept their decision in respect of the drug? What I had in mind was
this: I think perhaps if we could restrict ourselves to the testing of Canadian
drugs, then this could be a reciprocal action so that any Canadian drugs going
to the United States, with a common set of standards, would be automatically
acceptable there and vice versa. If this was possible it would take some strain
off the testing program in Canada.

Mr. MorrReLL: Well, Mr. Chairman, I will answer the last part of Dr.
Slogan’s question first. I doubt very much whether the food and drug adminis-
tration would accept our say so or the say so of any other country in respect
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of a new drug that was offered in the United States. They would demand
it go through the procedures that they require for the introduction of a new
drug into the United States and, likewise, although we would accept clinical
evaluation if it was adequate according to our requirements—that is pharma-
cological and toxicological testing done in the United States—ne\,rertheless
we want to see what was done and we would want to see the completé
details of the manufacturers’ knowledge of that drug, just as they do. I think it
would be unwise to accept blindly any drug without taking a look at the
requirements of any particular country, even the United States.

Mr. SLoGan: I do not mean to say we should blindly accept it, but are the
standards that much different, or are they very similar; is there room for a
meeting of minds in respect of setting a common standard?

Mr. MorreLL: We do work rather closely with the food and drug admin-
istration in the United States. We do examine their regulations as they examine
ours when they set up standards. There may be some local or national
peculiarity which requires some differences here and there, but by and large
our regulations cover the same ground in almost the same detail as the United
States regulations. However, we are responsible for enforcing the Canadian
regulations, and the United States food and drug administration is responsible
for enforcing the regulations of their country.

In other words, we have not gone so far as to delegate to the United States
authorities the authority to approve or permit a drug to be sold in Canada. We
have to do that ourselves; that is a responsibility we take. Therefore, in order
to make sure we are doing the right thing, we must see all of this information
wherever it is gathered and judge for ourselves whether or not it meets the
requirements of our law. This is what we do. I do not know whether or not the
day will come when we will accept somebody else’s judgment on that. That time
has not yet arrived in any event.

Mr. Srocan: I brought this up following on what Mr. Orlikow said that
even though we can order drugs by their generic names from the different
companies, we have no way of knowing what is the standard behind that com-
pany, if it is a company which is unknown to us. Therefore, the tendency is to
prescribe drugs from known companies. However, if there was a standard set,
say by the Canadian Medical Association, which sets out the quality this drug
must meet, and if this appears on the label, then, of course, it would have to be
tested and approved by the government.

If the drug meets the Canadian medical specifications and is certified by the
government, then when someone came up with a drug by a generic name from
a new company, we would know whether or not we should accept it.

Mr. MogrgeLL: If the government certified it, you could have more confidence
in it. However, this is not in existence at the present.

Mr. Srocan: I think the government is at fault to a certain extent in not
doing this, because they could save the people of Canada a good deal of money
by instituting such a service. The medical profession or the pharmacists are in
no position to assess whether or not that drug is up to par.

Mr. MorgeLL: In those instances do you think we should allow the sale of
any uncertified drug at all?

Mr. SLogan: I think we should have a type of bureau of standards which
could do a good deal for the profession and the people as a whole.

Mr. Exxs: This comes back again to the matter of the pos_sibility of explor-
ing further the setting up of some authority similar to the United States bureau
of standards.

Mr. MORReLL: I think we had better look into that. So far as I know, the
bureau of standards’ work does not cover the drugs covered by the food and
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drug administration in the United States; I am not aware that it does. The
final authority in the United States with regard to whether or not a drug
should be permitted on the market is the food and drug administration in
Washington.

Mr. SLocan: I would suggest that perhaps this might be a part of your
directorate. I believe that if this service were offered it certainly could do a
great deal to encourage the use of drugs from any country.

Mr. ENNS: It also could take the form of the College of Physicians and
Surgeons taking a part in dealing with approval. I wonder whether it has to
be a government agency. Each professional association has some research
facilities, and if they made a recommendation at least, this perhaps could
be an answer.

Mr. SLoGAN: I think the profession should set a standard in co-operation
with the government, but the actual testing would be by the government.

Mr. MoRReLL: If the government is going to guarantee all goods sold in the
country, the public must be prepared to dig down in their pocket, because it
will cost a great deal more.

Mr. OrLIKOW: To expect the government to check on every product
which is permitted to be prescribed in Canada, of course, would require a
bigger staff and more money, but I suggest this is something which would be
well worth looking at, because when one looks at the report of the director
of the combines investigation branch, having to do with drugs, you will see
very quickly that the Canadian consumer is paying the highest prices in the
world for prescription drugs.

I certainly agree with Dr. Slogan that one cannot expect a doctor or a
dentist on his own to prescribe a drug by its generic name even though it
will save the patient, not only cents, but rather many dollars. I do not believe
it would be difficult to present evidence on that at the appropriate time. How-
ever, you cannot even expect the doctor to do that, unless he can be certain of
the product he is prescribing, and he cannot do that unless there is some
agency which is prepared to test it. I suggest there could be a great saving to
the consumer. I think we very easily can demonstrate that.

I am going to suggest that while this committee is sitting we call in the
administrators of the hospitals and ask them what they are doing, because
I know for a fact the hospital dispensaries are giving prescriptions to the
patients, not only cheaper than they can buy them retail in the drugstores,
but cheaper than the druggist can buy them when he buys from the manufac-
turer. I know this for a fact, and it can be proven very easily.

This is something which I believe we might look into. I do not think we
can just brush off this question of price by saying you pay a higher price
in order to get quality. If that was so, no one would question the higher price.
In many cases the higher prices are being paid by people who cannot afford
them without any real reason.

Mr. Stogan: I think it is well known that many manufacturers manu-
facture under different brand names at different prices, but the people at the
purchasing end are in no position to know this.

Mr. Mackasey: This is true in any field. I am a manufacturer in other
commodities. I think what is said basically is true, but there is a difference.
The difference in going out and buying a washing machine with a brand
name and one which does not have a brand name is a difference of safety. I
agree with Mr. Orlikow that it is to Canada’s advantage that our drugs and
medicines be made available at the lowest possible price. The only objection
I hax{e is that so long as there is a conflict between price and safety, I am on
the side of safety. Our prime objective is to make sure we are not jeopardiz-
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ing the safety of our people under the guise that we are going to get some-
thing more economical. I think it is a foregone conclusion that you get what
you pay for.

I do not wish to become involved in a discussion concerning the high
profits to the companies. I, like everybody else, watch the profits of people in
all fields, and I have not seen a drug company skyrocket these days. There is
competition between these companies and they endeavour to sell the product
at the lowest possible price. If we encourage the bootleggers to get into the field,
we are jeopardizing the safety of the people of Canada.

I believe if we investigated the distribution of drugs in Russia, where it is
done through the government, we would find that despite the government
monopoly they pay much more for drugs than we do because of the absence
of competition. If your people provide the standards that will ensure the safety
of Canadians, competition will keep the prices down.

Mr. OrLIKOW: There is no competition.

Mr. MAckAsEY: This is a matter of opinion. I say there is competition. I
am interested in the procedure which was outlined at the last meeting of the
steering committee to the effect that the emphasis in our discussions be based
on safety rather than on price. I predict that otherwise 90 per cent of our time
will be taken up with questions on price, because is it a good platform. I am
interested in safety and nothing else.

Mr. EnNs: We were speaking about the food and drug directorate not
being in a position to approve drugs of any kind. I am wondering whether this
is without precedent in terms of the government approving items. Where safety
factors are involved, and so on, we have the stamp Canada approved. Perhaps it
would be an idea for our food and drug directorate to evolve some body that
could issue a similar stamp of approval. I have no fixed idea of how this should
be done. I am thinking about it from the standpoint of the public being safe-
guarded by the government. That would be a further step, but I imagine staff
is involved. You mentioned the addition of personnel, and you were careful
to say these positions are not filled because of the limited availability of trained
personnel.

These are fields which probably the committee could advantageously pursue
further, rather than the matter of price at the moment, but I do agree that price

is something we should look at at the proper time; however, that time is not
now.

Mr. RoxBURGH: Mr. Chairman, it definitely was the understanding that we
were going into the matter of safety. How does this involve price? We want to
stay with one subject or the other. What is the procedure; what are we going
to do? Are we going to jump from one to another? If so, we will not get
anywhere.

Mr. SLogaN: I think the two matters are very much associated. When an
individual is buying a drug he is going to buy the cheaper drug and we are
concerned whether or not that cheaper drug is as safe as the more expensive
one. How can you divorce the two?

Mr. ROXBURGH: Do you not think we should consider only the safety factor
and then take up the other question afterwards? Otherwise, we will be a long
time arriving at a conclusion. If we stick to the safety factor first, we could
return to the other. If a witness happens to be brought in, who otherwise would
have to come back again, then we might be able to divide the meeting into the
safety item first and then the other, rather than have him return. I believe we
should take a stand and really stick to one thing.

Mr. SrocaN: If you have the safety factor, the price factor would take care
of itself.
20798—2 .
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Mr. ORLIKOW: At an earlier meeting I agreed there was merit in attempt-
ing to keep the two separate. I still agree with that. However, I do not suggest
that Dr. Morrell, or the officials of the department, should play a very important
part at the moment in the question of price, but at the same time, surely we
are entitled to ask Dr. Morrell and the members of the department their
opinions in respect of the further extension of testing by the department, and
whether the purpose of the testing is to extend the provisions for safety, or
whether the purpose of the testing could be, possibly, to reduce the price of
the drugs. That is all I did. I can assure the members that if they think I
dwelt a long time on the question of price, they have not seen anything. I am
sure we will spend many days, weeks and months on this whole question of
the cost of drugs. I do not know whether or not we are in the same category
as the United States, but there the estimate is that the cost of drugs is more
than the cost of medical services; so, it is not an insignificant question. I think
we rapidly are approaching that situation, if we are not yet in it.

Mr. RoxBURGH: I think we should stick to the matter of safety no matter
what the cost is. If we paid $10 an ounce and it was not safe, the cost would
not mean anything. I think we should go along with the question of safety
first, clear it up, and then get into cost.

Mr. Enns: Rather than continue this discussion while we have witnesses
here, I think we should return to the questioning. I would like to go back to
the matter of schedule H. As I understand it there are just two drugs on
schedule H at the present time, thalidomide and LSD. There seems to be a
good deal of interest in LSD in terms of treatment of alcoholics and other uses in
respect of mental hospital care. I gather that when you referred to the drug
being available for clinical use, you were referring largely to these institutions?

Mr. MorreLL: Yes; there is a regulation. I have referred to it in my state-
ment and you can look into the accurate wording of the regulation. This
regulation permits the sale of LSD to institutions approved by the Minister
of National Health and Welfare for use in those institutions by qualified
investigators, people who are cognizant of the danger of the drug and who
are psychiatrists. These institutions must be approved and they must be pre-
pared to account for its use, if we ask them to do so. Every sale to these insti-

tutions must be recorded and approved by the department. It is being used,
I believe, in 12 or 14 institutions.

If a lot of LSD is ordered, we authorize the manufacturer to release it on
the basis of an application from the person in the institution who intends to
use it.

Mr. Exns: This is a question which may not be properly addressed to Dr.
Morrell, but I am wondering whether the patient needs to give his consent to
the use of such a drug for treatment, or is this something that the doctor
does without the knowledge of the patient.

Dr. L. I. PucsLEYy (Associate Director, Medical Section, Food and Drug
Directorate, Department of National Health and Welfare): The doctor pre-
scribes the drug.

Mr. Enns: I felt that possibly this was not a legitimate question to ask
here. y

Mr. OrLiIKOW: Could Dr. Morrell tell us in what years thalidomide was
used? When I say used, I do not mean in the initial testing stages, but rather
the year in which it was available for general use by doctors in Canada?

Mr. MorreLL: In April, 1961, it was available in Canada.
Mr. PuGsLEY: I think about March.
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Mr. MorreLL: The drug submission was accepted by us in November, 1960,
and it was put on the market in April, 1961.

Mr. OrLIKOW: When was it finally withdrawn to the best ability of the
company and the government?

Mr. MorreLL: Well, we notified them in March of 1962. We asked them
if they would consider withdrawing it because of the reports from Europe
of malformations. On March 2 they agreed to do so, and sent out the requests
to their detail men and their salesmen at once.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: In March?

Mr. MoRReLL: In March, 1962.

Mr. OrLikKOW: When were the reports of the difficulties published in
Europe, and I believe particularly in Germany?

Mr. MorgeLL: The first thing we heard of it in Canada was at a meeting
with the manufacturers on December 1, 1961, when they came in to report
they had heard of a few cases of malformations of one kind or another that
had been received in Germany, in particular, although there were some indi-
cations there were some as well in the United Kingdom. This was the first
indication we had there were side effects that could be called serious in terms
of malformation of children born by mothers who had taken it during the
early part of pregnancy.

At that time the manufacturers told us they were sending a team to
Europe to confirm or to clarify at least these reports they had heard at that
time. At that meeting it was agreed that they should send at once a warning
to all physicians in Canada that this was a possible side effect of the use
of the drug in pregnancy. Their letters, I think, were sent out on December
5 or December 7. There were two companies involved. The letter went out at
that time.

Subsequently we received reports that were rather conflicting from the
manufacturers and which certainly were not clear with regard to what they
had found in Germany. It was only when we saw a published article which
was documented and quite clear in the Lancet—which I saw on February 28,
because it took that long to get to me—that I became quite concerned and
telephoned them on March 2 to point this out to them. I suggested they
should recall the drug from the market. These are the steps in the recall of
thalidomide from the market.

Mr. OrLIKOW: It seems to me there is a possibility of the same kind of
difficulties occurring again if the first report you received about this difficulty
came from the manufacturers. I am not being critical of a manufacturer, but
he has some conflict of interest; he cannot help but have.

Mr. MogrreLL: Of course.

Mr. ORLIKOW: It seems to me that perhaps the department should explore
the possibility of closer co-operation between similar departments in other
governments. I would think that this kind of a report should have come
from a source other than the manufacturer. It may be that had there been
closer co-operation, it may have come earlier than it did.

Mr. MORRELL: A great many steps have been taken since that time to do
just what you are suggesting.

Mr. MAckASEY: You are suggesting there is a beneficial effect today.

Mr. MorreLL: I think everybody in the world would hear about it much,
much more quickly.

Mr. MACKASEY: At least the tragedy has had that beneficial effect.

Mr. MORRELL: Yes. It has had many effects, and that is one beneficial
effect.
20798—23 *
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Mr. MAcCKASEY: I presume the thalidomide prices sparked complaints in
respect of other drugs. I have in mind one particular one, pertussin.

Mr. MoRReLL: I believe that is the cough syrup.

We have had many complaints, but it is very difficult to determine cause
and effect. We have looked into a number of these reports, and when you get
down to it you find that the patient took several drugs at the same time and
it was the last one she took which is blamed; but one does not know. This
is only association; it is not proven that the drug caused the malformation.
It happened to be taken at that time, but it was a long way from being
proven that it was responsible for the apparent effect. This is not easy.

Recently I have been speaking to people in Europe at the World Health
Organization. They are very concerned about putting out information pre-
maturely without careful thought and investigation about drugs. You alarm
a great many people and do a lot of damage when perhaps it is a very useful
drug. This has been given very careful study and consideration. This is true
in the United Kingdom and in the United States. One of the actions that was
taken, in line with what Dr. Orlikow said, was the setting up of a position
for an officer in the World Health Organization who is responsible for
distributing information promptly to various countries on adverse reactions
to drugs. Our own drug adverse reaction program which we are setting up is
to help us pick up information in Canada which we not only can use ourselves
but also provide to other countries.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, if there are no other questions at the present
time Dr. Morrell will be back tomorrow morning to continue at 9.30 a.m.

In conclusion, I would like to say I think it was pretty well decided at
our last meeting that to the greatest degree possible we should stick to the
topic of safety of drugs. But, as you realize, the two topics are greatly inter-
related; when you come to safety and cost control I think we are going to get
some cross references, which are unavoidable.

Our next meeting will be held in this room at 9.30 a.m. tomorrow morning.

Fripay, May 22, 1964

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we now have a quorum.

Before calling upon Dr. Morrell of the food and drug directorate I have
here a proposed itinerary for our trip to Montreal which I briefly will outline
to you. All times are daylight saving time.

We are leaving here at 7.40 a.m. on Thursday morning and will arrive
in Dorval at 9.22 am. We will meet there and then proceed to the Mount
Royal Chemicals Limited, which is a manufacturing unit for CIBA and Sandoz.
From there we will proceed in the afternoon to the Frosst Company.

We stay at the Queen Elizabeth hotel overnight and the following morning
go to the Jacques Genest clinical laboratory. In the afternoon we go to Ayerst
McKenna & Harrison Company. I think this will give us two fairly full days.
We will be through at approximately 5.30 or 6 o’clock on Friday evening. As
I say, this will be a fairly compact two days and there are luncheons in be-
tween. On Thursday night there is a dinner for those who wish to attend.
However, if you have other plans for that night it is all right.

Mr. MAckASEY: Mr. Chairman, I should report that the Fawzia has been
closed up. The city police walked in last week and closed the place.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, I have never been to Montreal so I do not know
what you are talking about.
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If anyone has not told the clerk of the committee their intentions in
respect of making this trip I would ask you to do so by tonight. I would like
to know how many will be making the trip.

Now, if we can take up from where we left off yesterday, Dr. Morrell has
a few further statements he would like to make in respect of some of Dr.
Slogan’s questions.

Dr. C. A. MorreLL (Director of the Food and Drug Directorate, Department
of National Health and Welfare): Mr. Chairman, Dr. Slogan was asking about
the bureau of standards, and I believe he was interested in the American Bureau
of Standards. I believe I said there was no Canadian equivalent, and I think
that is true.

You also referred to standards that were set up by the bureau of standards
Possibly for drugs, dental fillings and so forth.

Mr. SLocan: I was not sure it was the bureau of standards but I was under
the impression it was.

Mr. MORRELL: We have in Canada under the National Research Cpuncil a
Canadian standards group which sets up Canadian specifications. This is c.alled
the Canadian Specifications Board, I believe. This board will se1_; up _spec1ﬁca-
tions for any particular thing, but it seems they must agree that it is important
enough to do so. Actually, they have set up standards for quality cgntrol in
pPharmaceutical manufacturing. These can be obtained from the Canadian Gov-
ernment Specifications Board, if you wish to see it. But, of course, they do not
police their standards, nor does the American Bureau of Standards. ‘

Now, of course, standards for drugs are included in the appendix to the
Act itself. For example, there are four pharmacopoeias, the Int_ernatlonal

harmacopoeia, the British Pharmacopoeia, the French Pharmacopoeia and the
United States Pharmacopoeia. These are standard works which are accepted
and recognized in Canada by law, and the standards for drugs, of course, are
laid down in these pharmacopoeias, with which I am sure you are familiar.
Then, in addition, there are three formularies, the British Pharamaceutlc?l
Codex, the National Formulary and the Canadian Formulary. These contain
standards for drugs not included in the pharmacopoeias. So, there are all these
standards available and, in the case of the ones I have mentioned, these are
official in this country. 7 .

Dr. Slogan, I do not know whether or not I have helped you in this
Tespect.

Mr. Srocan: Could, perhaps, a not so well known manufacturer go to this
branch of the national research councilyand obtain approval by having his
Product inspected on request?

Mr. MorreLL: I doubt it. Dr. Pugsley has sat on the Canadian Government
Sbecifications Board on a number of occasions and I would ask him to be more
Specific in that respect.

Dr. L. I. PucsLEY (Food and Drug Directorate, Department of N_atw'f}al
Health and Welfare): The Canadian Government Specifications Board primarily
Is an organization made up of the deputy ministers of the governmgnt depart-
ments, which would have specifications for the purchase of majcerlals foxj the
government. The Department of National Defence has used _lt quite extensively
In the setting up of purchase specifications for the materials they purchase.
It is used also in respect of public works purchases, s0aps, cleaning materials
and so on. They check these purchases against the specifications and .lapora*tory
analysis. Samples of the products are submitted and are analysed. This is some-
What similar in respect of the purchase of a drug. If you put U.S.P. on a'drt}g
that signifies the drug conforms to U.S.P. specifications. They set up criteria
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for the drug and our laboratories would analyse the drug against the specifica-
tion set up in the U.S.P., the British Pharmacopoeia, the National Formulary,
B.P. Codex and those other compendia which Dr. Morrell indicated.

Mr. SrLocAaN: There is a difficulty encountered by the average professional
man in judging a product that does not come from a well known source. If a
product was tested in this laboratory would they then be allowed to put on
their label that this was approved by the government branch.

Mr. MoRrreLL: Do you mean by the Canadian Government Specifications
Board?

Mr. SLoGaN: Yes.

Mr. MorgeLL: I do not know whether or not that is permitted. Could you
give us some information on that, Dr. Pugsley? For instance could a soap for
which specifications had been written by the board say this meets the Canadian
Government Specifications Board specifications?

Mr. PucsLEY: It seems to me this is more of a contract. The purchaser
signifies he wants the material to comply with the Canadian Government
Specifications Board standards.

Mr. MorreLL: And, he issues the standards and says they must meet that
standard, and they will test it themselves to see that it does.

Mr. PugsLEY: Yes; it is your own responsibility to see that that product
complies.

Mr. SLoGaN: But the government does in a way utilize this concept?

Mr. MORRELL: Yes, for their own purposes. When the government is buying
materials for its own use it can have a specification set up by this board,
and then when they want to buy that product and are asking for tenders it
says the product must meet these specifications. But, the Department of Public
Works, and so on, have laboratories in which they check to see whether the
material they are getting from the manufacturer does meet these standards.

Mr. Macrasey: If I might interject, the municipality of Verdun specify in
their tenders any government specifications but, once the goods are delivered
I suppose the prime responsibility is theirs.

Mr. MORRELL: Yes.

Mr. MACKASEY: As you know, there is a great competition between the
different sources in meeting these government specifications, and then it comes
down to price, which is a subject in which we are interested. But, the onus is
on the purchaser, the city of Verdur}, to make sure that the paint supplied
meets the particular standard. The city uses the services of Wernock Hersey
or other independent companies in this respect.

Mr. MoORRELL: Yes, that is true.

Mr. MackaseY: And, the government simply sets up the standard.

Mr. MORRELL: Yes.

Mr. MACKASEY: Specifications are put forward in the tenders which are
sent out to those interested in meeting these standards. But, as I said, it is up
to the city to decide whether or not the paint they bought lives up to those
standards. :

Mr. MoRReELL: My impression is that the same applies in respect of the
American Bureau of Standards. If they set up a standard they do not enforce
it; it is there for those who want to use it and, therefore, the purchaser is
responsible for seeing the material he gets does meet the specifications that
are laid down.

Mr. SLocan: I think a good deal of this comes down to the practice of
labelling. But, they probably figure they are giving away trade secrets if they

Sl
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set forth the formula and say this meets certain specifications or certain
pharmacopoeia. But, if this were the case, I think the professions would be in
a better position, at least the pharmacists, to judge these products.

_ Mr. MorgeLL: If it is a pharmacopoeial drug in any of these pharmacopoeia
it should have on there U.S.P., B.P., French Codex, British Pharmaceutical
Codex, and so on. It should have on there, as I said, such and such a drug,
U.S.P,, or whatever it is.

Mr. SLocaN: It should have its generic name?

Mr. MoRrReLL: Yes, on the label. As you know, a great many drugs are
not official drugs. We call those drugs that are in the pharmacopoeia official
drugs. But, so many new drugs which are being developed have not yet been
placed in the pharmacopoeia and a great many do not get in there. Therefore,
the only standard really that is available is the standard of the manufacturer,
and he has to put the composition on the label. We check it to see that it meets
that standard which he claims for it. We check it to see that it meets the
Composition claimed for it; that is, the manufacturer’s own standard. I know
it sounds very confusing, but this is the situation which exists.

_ Mr. Srocan: I think I am getting the clear picture, but I believe it still
Points out the necessity for a certain amount of policing, because if the form
and composition are the same, the quality not necessarily is the same.

Mr. MoORReLL: In the art or the science of this, we can learn a great deal
more about the constituents which go into the drugs; they are not altogether
Inert. As you say, policing is very good. That is the job we try to do.

Mr. MAcCKRASEY: In respect of drugs being brought into the country which
are packaged for sale to consumers, are there any policing methods through
the customs branch to make sure that not only is the country of origin speci-
fied, but also the ingredients?

Mr. MogreLL: If a drug is brought in, packaged and ready for sale, we
have an opoprtunity to see it at the customs, and we do take samples there
apd hold it for testing; or we can let it go through customs and go to the
distributor. There will be a distributor in this country. We can take samples
for testing there and, of course, the label is examined at the time the drug
is tested. This is part of our program. I cannot say we get every drug which
comes in, but I think we get a fair sampling of them. We are frying very
gard to increase the number of samples we take, particularly of the imported

rugs.
¥ Mr. MACKASEY: You are talking about a sampling of the quality of the
rug.

Mr. MORRELL: Yes; the composition, the physiological availability, the
disintegration time of the tablet—if it is a tablet—and the labelling of it.
These are things we do examine against certain methods we have in our
own laboratory.

Mr. MACKASEY: Quite often products in other fields are stopped at the
border because the producer forgot to label it with the country of origin.

Mr. MORRELL: We want the country of origin; that is part of the law. It
must be on the label.

Mr. MacCKASEY: Do the normal customs officers realize the importance of
this to the point that they will stop drugs as well as anything else?

Mr. MorreLL: Yes; I think so. We do not have a food and drug inspector
at every customs port. I am not sure how many there are, but there are
hundreds of ports, I believe. We do have an arrangement with the customs
officers that when a shipment of drugs comes in they notify our nearest
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inspector who goes out and looks at them. We do have our own inspectors
at the largest ports who go right down and look at the manifests, and so on,
and take samples at the port of entry.

Mr. Howe (Hamilton South): Dr. Morrell, earlier you said that some
drugs never get into the pharmacopoeia at all?

Mr. MORRELL: Yes.

Mr. Howe (Hamilton South): What is the criterion which determines
what drug gets in and why some never are entered? Is this not sort of a
running inventory of drugs?

Mr. MorreLL: The pharmacopoeias are books published usually every
five years; they may have interim revision. That is one difficulty. A drug
may appear just after, let us say, the United States Pharmacopoeia latest
edition has appeared and, of course, it is not in there. The choice of drugs
for the pharmacopoeias, whether U.S.P. or B.P., depends on the opinion of
the Pharmacopoeia Commission—and there is one in all countries which have
pharmacopoeias. They decide whether the drug has been in use sufficient time
to establish its value before they will consider it for the pharmacopoeia. It
may be that in some countries a drug is patented, and therefore is manu-
factured only by one company. I think this would have an influence on the
decision with regard to whether or not they would put that drug in the
pharmacopoeia. Where there are a number of manufacturers making the
same drug, it is rather important, I think, that they have a common standard.
That is when they consider them for the pharmacopoeias.

However, a drug actually may appear on the market, be in use for two
or three years, and disappear again, or become of much less importance because
of some new drug that comes along. We all read about this and it is a fact.
Therefore, a good many drugs do not get into the pharmacopoeia at all.

Mr. MACKASEY: Is it possible that a drug which is in common usage could
never get into the pharmacopoeia for some standard reason although it is
being used; or do you mean drugs which would go out of usage in the five
year period?

Mr. MorreLL: They might go out of usage in the five year period, or
become less important because of another compound which has been introduced
which is better and more acceptable.

Mr. MAckASEY: Thank you.

Mr. RyNARD: I believe some of the older and reliable drug firms have
research staffs which are exceedingly adequate in developing new drugs.
Their research laboratories probably are as good as any of the government
laboratories. I am wondering whether perhaps there could be a reference to
their research facilities, rather than a check on the drug coming across the
border. I am thinking of some of the older firms such as Pfizer or Ciba, and
some others who do develop new drugs and who have very splendid research
facilities. Would it not, therefore, be reasonable to assume that their research
work could be accepted in the passing of a drug, and that it would only be
the newer ones that would have to be researched? I am wondering why we
should not be setting up research facilities in our universities that would
check these and also in the departments of the pharmacopoeias.

Mr. MoRRELL: I am not quite sure that I have your question. Is it your
suggestion that in respect of a new drug— and I take it you mean from Pfizer,
or some company of that calibre—we should accept their say so with regard
to the safety and efficacy of that new drug.

Mr. Rynagp: I would think that if you looked over the material used
and the work done by their competent chemists, that this could be your criteria
for acceptance.
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Mr. MorreLL: Let us take a hypothetical drug from Pfizer. They will collect
all of the information which they have gathered in respect of that new drug,
such as the manufacturing procedures, the control procedures, the pharma-
cology, the toxicology in animals, the pharmacology in animals, the clinical
testing, and the composition of the drug right down to the last detail, and
they will send this to us as a New Drug Submission. Contained in this is the
work of a great many persons; not only those employed directly by Pfizer’s
Plant, wherever it might be, but also persons they have hired, or persons who
may have become interested, and who may not even have been paid. The
clinical testers or investigators—and there may be dozens or 100 of them—
(}ilaVe tried the drug on patients and have made their reports to Pfizer in

etail.

We do not want just a testimonial, such as “I tried this drug on six
Patients and it was excellent”. That is of no value to us at all. We want to know
What the condition of the patient was, and we want to know his case history.
This is what comes to us in the form of a New Drug Submission, and this is
what we demand of every new drug, no matter by whom it is manufactured,
whether it be Pfizer or a small company. Small companies are sometimes hard
but to get the information because it does cost some money.

Nevertheless, in the interests of safety we have to see that they dp the
same things that the large companies do. But we do know, or our people in the
laboratory and in administration do know a great many of these research
people from Pfizer and other companies, personally. They know their value,
Qualifications, and so on. But we do not feel that we can just take a letter fron},
for example, Pfizer, saying “We have tested this new drug and have found it
satisfactory. Therefore, will you agree that it should be sold in Canada?”

We cannot accept that kind of thing. The law demands certain information
and we have to say this to Pfizer or to whomever it may be. With the New Drug
Submission in one hand and with the law in the other hand, we have to see
that all the information demanded by the law is furnished in adequate amount
and in adequate quality. And then when we see something missing, or doubtful,
Or if there is a question in our minds as to what it means, a letter goes back
asking for an explanation or for further material or data.

Mr. RynaRp: Once you have passed a drug, it ceases to be a new drug
any more.

Mr. MorreLL: It is still a new drug. Again, this is a little difficult to
follow. But when we receive a New Drug Submission we write a form let’ger
to the manufacturer saying that we have examined the New Drug Subrms--
sion. Let us say it is drug “A” manufactured by you, and we find that it
complies with the section 308, and so and so. This is notice to the manu-
facturer that he is at liberty to market that new drug. It is still a new drug
beCause, as you well know,—I am thinking of a certain drug that we talked
about vesterday—there is a great deal of evidence which comes out about a
New drug even after it has been on the market and: used by dozens of
doctors upon millions of patients. This is evidence which you cannot have
With a New Drug Submission. So it is still a new drug for years after
it goes on the market. New things will turn up that never appeared before
in connection with the 2,000 to 5,000 patients it was used upon for test
Purposes. You will get other circumstances.

Mr. Rynagrp: Therefore the real test is the clinical trial when it gets out
to the doctors and into the hands of the public.

Mr. MorreLL: Finally, I think that is the ultimate test.

Mr. Rynarp: Why should we not have a reference of these drugs to a
Committee that is in charge, let us say, of university facilities across Canada,
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and why not have the research done there where you can have it right at
the clinical laboratory?

Mr. MoORRELL: You mean that they should do the research and clinical
investigation with the drug?

Mr. RyNarRD: Yes, why should they not carry the drug through at the
clinical level?

Mr. MORRELL: This is done in a measure, but as you know, the people
and the facilities willing and available to do these clinical trials are not too
numerous in Canada.

Mr. RyNARD: I was thinking of this point, that we lose a great many
scientists every year across the border.

Mr. MorreLL: That is right.

Mr. Rynarp: I think we should put those people to work on the things
we are talking about this morning; that is, to do research on these drugs
in our universities and hospitals.

Mr. MORRELL: Yes, if they want to do it. But you cannot make them do
it if they are not interested.

Mr. Ry~arp: I know, but you are training young doctors and you have
your research facilities and you have them right at the cross-road where they
have to be tried, and moreover you have the patients right there and you
can evaluate the effects of these drugs.

Mr. MogreLL: I think this is going on in Canada. We have done our best
to encourage clinical trials in Canada. We cannot insist on it, or we would
never have new drugs, because there are not enough people to do the clinical
trials. s

Mr. RYyNARD: The answer would seem to be to get more research.

Mr. MORRELL: Yes, more and more and more. I think that in 10 to 20
years you will have a lot, but not yet.

Mr. COTE (Longueuil): Mr. Chairman, I wish to apologize for not having
been able to attend the former meetings. I have just returned from hospital
and I still suffer from dizzy spells from the anaesthesia. I do not know if
it is normal, but I shall ask a few doctors here after the meeting. I want
to know if an application was brought up concerning anablast, the serum to
be used by Mr. Naessens? Was that brought up in this committee?

Mr. MoRRELL: No.

Mr. COTE (Longueuil): There was somewhat of a problem. I wonder whose
responsibility it is to see that permission is given? I am thinking of the case
brought up by Mr. Naessens, who came to Canada to inject anablast upon
a young fellow who was suffering from leukemia. The College of Physicians
and Surgeons of the province of Quebec gave permission, but did he not
come here first to the department, and did the department not say it was not
their responsibility? Was this not in the same line that we have been talking
about.

Mr. MoRrreLL: I was not in the country at the time, but I did hear of a
meeting. I think Dr. Pugsley was there. He can check me if I am not giving
the correct interpretation. They met in the office of our deputy minister and
two questions were asked of the deputy minister. The first question, I think,
was asked by the father of the child: “Will you permit this drug to be given
to my son?” I think that was it, and Dr. Cameron said: “I have no comment,
because I have no authority either to forbid or to interfere in any way with
medical practices, or with what the doctor gives to your son. That is his
business, and also the business perhaps of the College of Physicians and
Surgeons of the province of Quebec”. Then Mr. Naessens asked: “Will you
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bermit me to sell the drug?” And Dr. Cameron, I believe, said: “You can sell
g‘e drug only under th_e terms of the new d}‘ugs regulations and the Food and
Drugs Act a_nd Regulations. That. is where this department takes a stand and an
Interest. It is a new drug in this country and it must meet the requirements
of all new drugs, including clinical trials.”

That is my understanding. Is it correct, Dr. Pugsley?

Mr. PuGsLEy: That is right.

Mr. MoRrreLL: That is, in essence, what was said.

Mr. COTE (Longueuil): Mr. Naessens went there with the father of
the boy? ;

Mr. MorreLL: I think so, yes.

Mr. COtE (Longueuil): They asked the deputy minister if they could
use anablast?

Mr. MoRRELL: Yes.

Mr. COTE (Longueuil): The deputy minister said that he could use it if he
had permission.

Mr. MorreLL: I do not think he put it that way. I think he said that the
federal government could not interfere with what a doctor gives to a patient,
because it was a matter of his own business, his knowledge, competence,
Conscience, and was perhaps also a matter for the Quebec College of Physicians
and Surgeons, but that it was not a matter for the federal Department of
National Health.

The second question related to the sale of this drug and whether it was
2 matter for the federal Department of National Health under the Food and
Drugs Act. I must say we have very specific regulations about the introduction
of new drugs into Canada. There were these two aspects involved.

Mr. Cort (Longueuil): You only have legislation covering the sale of
drugs but not the introduction of them?

Mr. MorreLL: The act refers to sales.

; Mr. Cort (Longueuil): Then a doctor could use a drug if he brought it
Into the country from another country?

.Mr‘ MOoRRELL: Yes. If he could make it up in his own laboratory he could
use it on his own patients only; that would be permissible because that is his
business.

Mr. Cortt: (Longueuil): He could do that if he made the drug himself?

Mr. MorreLL: Yes. Doctors at one time compounded drugs, and I suppose
!:hey still can if they wish, for use on any of their patients, when they think
1t is going to be of benefit.

Mr. Cott (Longueuil): Do you consider that the doctor himself is selling
that drug to his patient under those circumstances?

Mr. MorreLL: I do not think so. I think that is part of the treatment.

Mr. Howe (Hamilton South): Dr. Morrell, at Wh;t stage is a new drug
allowed to be introduced into a hospital for clinical trial purposes? That drug
is not being sold. You have established no regulation in this regard and a
Manufacturer could put a new drug into a hospital free, allowing it to be used;
1s that right?

Mr. MorgreLL: No. First of all the word “sell” is defined in the act to
include distribute. “Sell” means “to have in possession for sale, to offer for
sale, to expose for sale, to sell and to distribute”, and that covers the situation
of giving it away. A manufacturer cannot get the drug through under this

regulation by giving it to a hospital free.
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Secondly, before the manufacturer can put a drug out for clinical trial
there must be a submission, which we call a Preclinical Submission. The
manufacturer must send us all the information he has about the pharmacology,
toxicology and manufacturing process as well as the trial procedure that the
manufacturer is going to use. We must also know the composition of the drug.
We look at that information and decide whether it is adequate or not.

There is one other aspect involved. The manufacturer must supply the
clinical investigator with a good deal of this information because the clinical
investigator is after all going to take the risk of putting that for the first
time into a human being and he must know certain things and whether certain
things have been done or not. That individual must know something about the
pharmacology. He wants to know what kind of reaction to expect, as far as
that can be known and predicted from the results of animal tests. All this
information must be given to the clinical investigator when he is asked to try
out a new drug. The manufacturer must also assure himself that the clinical
investigator has the facilities for properly carrying out such a trial. This is
necessary when a manufacturer is introducing a new drug for the first time
into clinical trials in this country. This is also true of the United States and
some other countries including the United Kingdom.

Mr. Howe (Hamilton South): Then there is sort of a two stage sale proc-
ess involved?

Mr. MorreLL: There is a two stage process involved, yes.

Mr. HowE (Hamilton South): The definition of the word “sale” does cover
the use of new drugs in clinical trial tests, and a new drug can be used in
this way provided it meets your requirements; is that right?

Mr. MoRRELL: Yes. We consider that marketing, as it were.

Mr. WiLLouGHBY: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask Dr. Morrell whether
investigations that have been carried out in reliable countries such as Great
Britain and the United States in respect of certain drugs are acceptable to
our department when the new drugs are introduced into Canada? As an
example I have in mind penicillin which came from Great Britain? De we
insist on trial investigations in Canada to verify the value of such a drug?

Mr. MorreLL: I think penicillin was introduced in 1942, before we had
the new drugs regulations.

Mr. WiLLoucHBY: If that situation developed today would we have to wait
indefinitely until our Canadian trials were carried out?

Mr. MorreLL: We would not have to wait for our Canadian trials in that
event. We would have to wait, however, until the person who promoted the
drug or the manufacturer of the drug had submitted to us whatever informa-
tion he had available and we examined it. This would be a New Drug Sub-
mission which we examine as we do all other New Drug Submissions in order
to find out whether it is satisfactory or unsatisfactory. If we found that the
tests were not adequate we would have to inform the promoter, and it is our
duty to do so, that it is lacking in this regard or in that regard.

Mr. WirroucHBY: If these drugs were recognized as being efficient by,
for example, the United States government inspection system and the United
States medical association investigators, would we still have to wait until the
drug is tested before it is allowed into Canada?

Mr. MorreLL: I think the answer is yes, with the following explanation.
The drug does not have to go through clinical trials in Canada. These trials
have been carried out in the United States, but we do want to see the
results of those clinical trials ourselves and examine them.
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I was in the United Kingdom recently. If a drug is accepted in Canada
do not think for one minute that it will be accepted in the United Kingdom
holus-bolus. It would not be accepted on that basis in the United States either.
The same situation exists in every country which was a law of this kind. These
Countries are all enforcing such laws. The drugs are scrutinized very thoroughly
In the United States by the authorities and in every other country in which the
new drug is introduced. There is that delay involved but the clinical trials,
chemical tests and animal tests do not have to be repeated as long as the
Tecords of those tests with the results are available.

Mr. Rynarp: Perhaps I could ask a supplementary question to those asked
by Dr. Willoughby. I think I understand what Dr. Willoughby had in mind.
Following clinical trials, would it not be feasible from the standpoint of a
Standing committee of doctors to allow them to pass that drug rather than
have it examined and authorized by the pharmacology department?

Mr. MoRreLL: Are you referring to the Food and Drug people?

Mr. Rynarp: Yes.

Mr. MorreLL: The law does not say that, Dr. Rynard.

Mr. Rynarp: I think the suggestion was that a standing committee be set
UD for that purpose, I think Dr. Willoughby is suggesting that we waste a lot
of time before being able to use a beneficial drug. I have in mind particular

ugs in respect of which we lost a good deal of time before being able to
Use them. The drugs which I had in mind are thyracil, propyl-thyracil as
well as penicillin. These were held up for months and months after trials had
been held. This delay could well be indefinite.
.. Mr. MorreLL: Are you sure, Dr. Rynard, that they asked for the sale of
1t in this country at the same time as they asked for sale in the United States?
I doubt it very much.

Mr. Rynarp: I got it from your department. I got it from New York.
That is thyracil, the anti-thyroid drug. Then they developed propyl-thyracil,
and so on. Mr. Willoughby has a very good point here. If it has been tried, then
the group of clinicians should pass on it.

Mr. MogrgeLL: I think the group of clinicians would do the same as we do.

Mr. WiLLoucHBY: Would there be any restrictions on a drug in a case in
Which a specific medical man in this country had information and thought
tbat drug was something he needed for a patient? Would there be any restric-
tion on his importing that drug and using it?

Mr. MorreLL: We have often given permission for a doctor to import a new
drug for use on a particular patient that is not otherwise distributed in this
Country,

Mr. Srogan: Does he have to get permission?

h Mr. MorgeLL: If he writes to us—and he often does—we do give per-
Mission. Sometimes they do not write to us and we do not know.

Mr. Enns: The question I was going to ask was a follow up of Mr. Wil-

loughby’s in the area of a new drug, but this has now been dealt with in sup-

Plementary questions.

I have another question arising out of your reply to Mr. Coté about the
use by an individual practitioner of drugs strictly for his own patients without
any sale involved. This could, in a clinical situation, also involve drugs on
schedule H, whether now or in the future? Am I right?

Mr. MorgeLL: I presume it could. Again, I go back to our law which says
Fhat no person shall sell any of the drugs mentioned in schedule H. So a sale
1s the point at which we intervene. If a doctor has a drug in his desk that he
has bought a long time ago or of which he has somehow obtained possession
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and he wants to use it on a patient, we do not interfere. But if there is a sale
made, we do not prosecute the doctor, we prosecute the person who makes the
sale because “no person shall sell” is the wording of the act and the regulation.

Mr. Enns: You are still always saying, “We are not interfering with
medical practice as such”?

Mr. MORRELL: Yes.
Mr. COTE (Longueuil): There are many doctors who sell drugs.

Mr. MoORRELL: They are acting as pharmacists then and we treat them as
pharmacists.

Mr. COTE (Longueuil): They should be treated as pharmacists, I think.

Mr. MorreLL: When they sell drugs to people other than patients, people
who come in and ask for the drug—

Mr. CoTE (Longueuil): No, I mean to patients.

Mr. MORRELL: I am sure they charge for the drug but the charge is
included in the fee, and I think it has always been a doctor’s privilege to
administer drugs to patients. I am sure he always includes that in his fee.

Mr. Cotk (Longueuil): There is a bill which the pharmacists are trying to
put through in Quebec right now. They want all drugs in Quebec to be sold
through pharmacies. In Quebec some doctors sell drugs, and they are also sold in
groceries and so on. The pharmacists are saying that most of the drugs are
sold outside of pharmacies.

Mr. MORRELL: More than half the drugs are sold in places other than
pharmacies?

Mr. CotE (Longueuil): Yes. So there is quite a fight going on in Quebec
about that. The pharmacists say a lot of doctors sell drugs in their offices.

Mr. MoRrgeLL: I know a number of doctors who operate pharmacies in
connection with their practice, but those are operated as pharmacies, I think.

Mr. SLOGAN: You are thinking of patent medicines, are you, when you
say drugs?

Mr. COTE (Longueuil): Yes. They do this a great deal in the country be-
cause there are no pharmacies in some of the rural districts.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you something to say, Dr. Pugsley? Mr. Allmark?

Mr. PuGsLEY: Maybe Mr. Allmark has something to add.

Mr. ALLMARK: I have a copy of bill 96 in my hand. This is a bill of which,
I believe, certain sections were not acceptable to the Quebec legislature. The
section dealing with the sale of drugs by doctors is one in particular to which
I believe they did not agree.

Mr. Coté (Longueuil): And in grocery stores.

Mr. ALLMARK: The sale of drugs in certain department stores; they did
not go along with that.

Mr. EnNS: And patent medicines?

Mr. ALLMARK: Yes. The pharmacists wanted exclusive sale by drug stores
for this type of medicine, but this was not acceptable to the legislature.

Mr. COTE (Lougueuil): It is not accepted. It did not go through.

Mr. ALLMARK: No.

Mr. COTE (Longueuil): So they will still be selling drugs everywhere.
The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions, gentlemen?

If, as Chairman, I may ask a question or two there are some matters

upon which I would like clarification. These questions refer to the questioning
at the last committee.

ambad
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At the present time in the department we talk about control and the tests
the department is making. It is my understanding that the tests you are mak-
ing are quantitative rather than qualitative. I am just wondering what is the
percentage of the different kinds of tests. I am thinking, for example, of a
certain drug reputed to contain 400 milligrams of an active substance. Do you
test this drug to measure the quantity it contains? Do you actually also find
out whether it is soluble in the human body so that it is actually for use by
humans? Is there any way in which you can test this?

Mr. MoRReLL: The answer to the first question is that the majority of our
tests are quantitative, and in the case you cited it certainly would be quanti-
tative. We would be looking to determine whether there are actually 400
milhgrams of that substance in that dosage form, either tablet or capsule; so
1t would be quantitative.

There are some qualitative tests that we undertake, particularly under
the Opium and Narcotic Drug Act. A mounted policeman, for example, may
bring in to us a sample and ask whether it is or is not a narcotic drug; or
2 mounted policeman, or some other person, may bring in a controlled drug—

at is, a barbiturate or an amphetamine—and want to know whether it is
a barbiturate or whether it is an amphetamine because this information will
be used in the charge against the seller. However, the majority of our tests are
Quantitative, because this is the important thing in the general pharmaceutical
area.

In regard to whether the product will be available, I would say that we
have some tests that are put down in the regulations covering this area. For
example, a product that is put out in tablet form must disintegrate in the
1aboratory test. The laboratory test consists of agitating the tablets in simu-
lated gastric juice for a certain time and in simulated intestinal juice for a
certain time. The tablets must disintegrate or, in other words, break up into
Very small particles. We have found tablets—and this is a fact—that, when
taken by mouth, pass entirely through the intestinal tract with very little
change. In other words, if one analyses that tablet one might find that it con-
tained 400 milligrams but that it went in at one end and came out at the
other without being of any particular value to the patient. So the answer is
that we do have these tests which are set up to determine the disintegration
time of tablets, and the disintegration time that we have in our regulations has
been correlated with physiological availability. We have done this by feeding
DPeople certain tablets and examining the excreta of the product in comparison
Wwith a standard intake to make sure they excrete the same amount as they
would if the tablet were totally available.

So that in the laboratories the disintegration time has been correlated
With the actual physiological human experiments and we know that they are
of some value. There are many other factors that are still being investigated
such as the size and crystalline structure of the active ingr_edient. We believe
that they may have an effect on the availability to the patient. It 1s'not only
the disintegration of the tablet that is important although that also is of first
Importance, but we are looking further into the crystalline structure and
other physical characteristics of the product and of the dosage form. So t}}at
in the future we will perhaps have additional tests to demonstrate the physio-
logical availability.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Dr. Morrell. I have one other question which
I should like to put to you. I suppose anyone here would not be classed as
a manufacturer according to your regulations. For instance, if I made a drug
in my basement and only gave it to my patients and did not actually sell it,
what would happen?
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Mr. MoRRELL: As you are a doctor you would not be considered a manu-
facturer if you compounded your own drugs and administered them only
to your own patients.

The CHAIRMAN: To come back to the point someone else brought up, if I
was a clever enough chemist so that I was able to manufacture thalidomide
in my own basement and give it to my own patients despite schedule H, what
would the situation then be?

Mr. MoRrrReLL: You could do that as far as the law is concerned.

Mr. COTE (Longueuil): I have a supplementary question. Suppose a doctor
was making his own drugs and made his own alcohol. Could he sell it?

Mr. MORRELL: Again, is this not a question for the College of Physicians?

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, it is a few minutes to eleven. There are a
few other questions I would like to ask Dr. Morrell and I am sure other
members of the committee will have questions for him also. This would
probably be a convenient time to adjourn the meeting.

I would like to bring to the committee’s attention that it has been offi-
cially announced that U Thant will address the House of Commons on Tues-
day morning at 10 o’clock. We have a meeting slated for 9:30 on that morn-
ing. It has been suggested that committee meetings be cancelled for that
morning. As we are going to be in Montreal next Thursday and Friday I think
it might be reasonable to cancel next Tuesday’s meeting completely. We will
have our trip to Montreal. On June 2, and on June 5 we will be having as
our witnesses the Canadian Medical Association and the Canadian Pharma-
ceutical Association. Perhaps the day after that Dr. Morrell could come back
and he might answer any questions that might have been brought to our
attention by our trip to the manufacturing companies, by the C.M.A. and by
the Pharmaceutical Association.

Mr. Enns: I feel that next week is going to be a full enough week.

The CHAIRMAN: Would it be convenient to you, Dr. Morrell, to come
back on Tuesday, June 9? This would give you a bit of a rest.

Mr. MoRrreELL: Yes, certainly.

Mr. Rynarp: This is off the record, Dr. Morrell, but I understand LSD
got away from you in Vancouver.

Mr. MorgreLL: That happened before our regulation was passed. These
legal cases take a long time. I happen to know about that case. I went down
to the United States Food and Drug offices in San Francisco last year about
this time and they were just beginning to gather their information about this
individual. They visited our Vancouver laboratory, and the mounted police
in the Vancouver area gathered some information. This was well over a
year ago.

The CHAIRMAN: The meeting is adjourned.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, May 28, 1964
(5)

The following members of the Special Committee on Food and Drugs
Proceeded by train to Montreal at 7.40 a.m. EDT: Messrs. Harley, Asselin
(chhmond-Wolfe), Coté (Longueuil), Enns, Howe (Hamilton South), Mac-
kasey, Marcoux, Mitchell, Prud’homme, Rynard, Whelan, and Willoughby CIZYY

They were met at Dorval Station by Mr. E. Glyde Gregory, President of
A.yert, McKenna & Harrison Limited, and departed for Mount Royal Chemicals
Limited, the manufacturing unit for CIBA and Sandoz (Swiss-Canadian

Pharmaceutical companies).

Mr. Roger Larose, President of Mount Royal Chemicals Limited, welcomed
the group and made introductory remarks relating to the said company. (See
Appendlx “A”)

The Committee then toured the manufacturing laboratory facilities under
the guidance of pharmacists employed by the Company.

On behalf of the Committee, the Chairman thanked the President and
t}}e officer of Mount Royal Chemicals Limited for the assistance they had
glven to the Committee.

At 1.45 p.m. the Committee proceeded to the laboratories of Charles E.
Frosst & Company where they were welcomed by Mr. John B. Frosst, President.
(See Appendix “B”)

Mr. Earl Dechéne, the Company’s chief control chemist, using charts,
€xplained the verification procedure in relation to Food and Drug Schedule
?‘3' Hf?, Mr. John B. Frosst and Mr. James B. Frosst answered questions about
Integrity in relation to safety factor, and related matters.

A tour of the laboratories to study production methods and “in plant”
quality control was provided for Members, including a visit of the radioactive
laboratory, the only one of its kind in Canada.

Dr. John F. Millar, Chief Research Pharmacist, briefed the Members on
Pharmacy Research; the text of his remarks is printed as Appendix “C”.

At the conclusion of the tour, questions were asked about production cost,

Mmoney spent on research, price of drugs, and on the pharmaceutical industry
In general. Mr. John B. Frosst, Mr. James B. Frosst, Mr. James M. Blanch,

. Millar and Dr. Lozinski supplied information.
. A suggestion was made by Mr. A. Coffin, General Sales Manager, that
l1censing should be standard across the country.

_ On behalf of the committee, the Chairman thanked the officers and the
Scientists of the Company for their courtesy and assistance, and at 5.15 p.m.
the Committee adjourned to 9.30 a.m. Friday, May 29.
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FripaY, May 29, 1964
(6)

The following members of the Special Committee on Food and Drugs left
the Queen Elizabeth Hotel at 9.30 a.m. for the Clinical Investigation Unit at
the Hotel-Dieu Hospital: Messrs. Co6té (Longueuil), Enns, Harley, Howe
(Hamilton South), Mackasey, Marcoux, Mitchell, Prud’homme, Whelan, Wil-
loughby (10).

Dr. Jacques Laramée, Medical Director of the Hospital, welcomed the
Members and expressed his appreciation of their decision to see for themselves
the research being done on new drugs for the promotion of health and
research.

Dr. Jacques Genest, Director of the Clinical Research Laboratory, ad-
dressed the Committee and stressed the need for more research in Canada;
he explained the set up of the clinical research department which has known
tremendous growth, specially in the field of radioactive isotopes, electronics,
instrumentation, micro-methods of measurement, biopsies, and molecular and
cellular biology.

Dr. Genest also explained the research being made in his laboratory in
the field of hypertension, and discussed the need of more money for the
prograss of medicine in Canada. More money is needed for research better
facilities; better clinical investigation wards are also required, he stated. He
made available to the members two papers, in English and French, “Sym-
posium on Clinical Research in Canada”, January 17, 1962, and “L’importance
de la recherche clinique pour la santé”.

A complete tour of the various laboratories and sections was provided for
Members, and they were given the opportunity of questioning Dr. Genest,
more particularly about the need for better facilities and grants for research.

At noon the Committee recessed for luncheon.

At 1.45 p.m. the Members departed for the laboratories of Ayerst, McKenna
& Harrison Limited. They were briefed by Mr. E. Glyde Gregory, President,
Dr. Roger Gaudry, Director of Research, and Dr. Arthur Dr. Grieve, Director
of Quality Control, and taken on a tour of the chemical, biological and quality
control laboratories and pilot plant.

The Chairman thanked Mr. Gregory and the personnel of the Company
for their assistance and for the courtesy extended to the Members of the Com-
mittee during their visit to Montreal.

At 5.00 p.m. the Committee adjourned to 9.30 a.m. Tuesday, June 2, in
Ottawa.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.
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TUESDAY, June 2, 1964.
(7

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 9.40 a.m. this day.
The Chairman, Mr. Harry C. Harley, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Armstrong, Co6té (Longueuil), Harley, Howe
(Hamilton South), Mackasey, Marcoux, Mitchell, Orlikow, Slogan, Whelan, and
Willoughby. (11)

In attendance: Representing the Canadian Medical Association: Dr. Donald
L. McNeil of Calgary, Chairman of the Committee on Pharmacy of the C.M.A.,
member of the Drug Advisory Committee, Department of National Health and
Welfare, and President-Elect of the Alberta Division of the C.M.A.; Dr. K.
J. R. Wightman, Professor of Medicine, University of Toronto; and Dr. A. D.
Kelly, General Secretary, Toronto.

The Chairman read a letter from Cyanamid of Canada Limited, dated May
22, 1964 and presented the second report of the Steering Subcommittee.

After discussion, on motion of Mr. Mackasey, seconded by Mr. Willoughby,
the Second Report of the Steering Subcommittee (see evidence on page 53)
Was adopted on the following division: Yeas, 9; Nays, 1.

The Chairman introduced the representatives of the Canadian Medical
Ssociation.

. It was agreed that the brief which had been distributed to the Members
In advance, be taken as read up to the Summary at the conclusion of the
Submission.

Dr. McNeil read the Summary and was questioned thereon. He was assisted
by Dr. Wightman and Dr. Kelly.

Questioning concluded, on behalf of the Committee the Chairman thanked
the members of the C.M.A. for their expert information on behalf of their
Association.

It was agreed, at the suggestion of the Chairman, that instead of having

Dr. Morrell and his officials appear before the Committee on June 9th as

Scheduled, the Committee go to visit the Food and Drug Directorate at Tunney’s
asture on that date.

On motion of Mr. Orlikow, seconded by Mr. Marcoux,

Resolved—That this Committee pay reasonable living and travelling ex-

benses incurred by Dr. Donald L. McNeil, Dr. K. J. R. Wightman and Dr. Kelly

Y reason of their appearance before this Committee; and that a per diem
allowance be made to them.

At 11.50 a.m. the Committee adjourned to 9.30 a.m. Friday, June 5.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.
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The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen I see a quorum and we will start the meeting
now, please.
I should first of all like to read a letter to the committee which I have
Teceived from the Cyanamid of Canada Limited. The letter reads as follows:
On behalf of our Company, I have a proposal to make that I suggest
should be helpful to your committee’s study on the safety of drugs.
The proposal is in two parts, each having direct bearing on the other.

1. That the members of your committee accept the invitation of
Cyanamid of Canada Limited to spend one day at the Lederle Re-
search Laboratories at Pearl River, N.Y. Cyanamid will provide
private planes owned by our parent Company to fly your group
from Ottawa to Pearl River on Tuesday, July 7, and return them to
Ottawa that same evening. The facilities of our parent Company
for medical research are among the largest in the world and your
members would, without doubt, derive great benefit as well as good
information from extremely competent personnel who would be

made available.

2. Cyanamid of Canada is willing to assist your Committee by way
of the preparation of a brief dealing with the safety of drugs and
to submit it in both English and French. We would be prepared to
appear before your Committee on July 10 to answer questions
relative to the brief. We believe that our appearance before your
Committee would have more meaning if it were on a date im-
mediately following the visit to Pearl River. In addition to rep-
resentatives of Cyanamid of Canada Limited, we are prepared to
invite senior personnel from American Cyanamid Company to appear
with us and suggest such people as Dr. Kitchfield, Director of
Medical Research, and one or two others of equal stature in their
specified fields as they apply to the subject under discussion.

We are most anxious to assist your Committee to reach reasonable con-
clusions on this important subject, and are prepared to make every effort to
help you.

The CHAaIRMAN: That is the correspondence I have received, gentlemen.

In keeping with that correspondence, we had a meeting of the steering
Committee on Wednesday, May 27, in my office which was attended by Dr.
Rynard Dr. Howe, Dr. Marcoux, Mr. Mitchell and myself. We discussed the
agenda and your steering committee agreed to present the following as its

Second report. ;
Your steering subcommittee recommends that the committee accept the

invitation of Cyanamid of Canada Limited to visit the Lederle Research
Laboratories at Pearl River, New York, provided that the House of Commons
IS in session at that date.

Mr. MAcKASEY: What day of the week is that, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: July 7 is a Tuesday and the company would present a
brief here on the following Friday, July 10. This arrangement is, of course,

53
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subject to the House of Commons being in session. If the House of Commons
is not in session at that time we will not make the visit. Is there any discussion
in this regard? This is a one day trip. We would go down in the morning and
come back in the evening.

Mr. MACKASEY: Do you wish a motion to accept the steering committee’s
report?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. MACKASEY: I so move.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: I second the motion.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: I must admit that this is the first I have heard about this
suggestion and I do not want to be too critical of the offer made by this com-
pany or the steering committee’s recommendation to accept, but speaking per-
sonally I am not too happy with the suggestion that the committee members
make a trip at the expense of that company. One of the biggest problems which
faces us in this respect is the possible conflict of interest between what is
good for a company and what is good for us. As far as I am personally con-
cerned, I am not happy about the suggestion that we make a trip at the expense
of any company. If it is worth while our making a trip at all, then let us make
the trip and let us request the committee itself to find the funds to pay for the
trip. I am not in favour of accepting this offer.

Mr. MACKASEY: I agree in principle with Mr. Orlikow. If the funds are
available I would agree with his suggestion. My remarks, of course, are not
intended as any reflection upon Mr. Orlikow. I think we should try to get
some objective information. We travelled to Montreal last week and I was
quite impressed with the impartiality with which the tour was conducted by
the sponsors. On this committee I am labouring under a certain difficulty in
that I am neither a pharmacist nor a doctor, and I must seek information as
I go along. I found the tour of great benefit to me.

I have enough confidence in my own integrity to go down at the expense
of Cyanamid and to come back and take a completely objective view in any
deliberations.

Mr. WirLouGHBY: I feel, Mr. Chairman, much the same way, since this
is purely a trip for observing the work of this company. I do not think we are
under any obligation to them to commit ourselves because the expenses of
our trip happen to be paid by this company. I feel we are certainly free to
express our own opinions when we get back, and I concur in the comment that
in the trip we had to Montreal there was no pressure brought to bear upon
us; we were perfectly free to come to our own conclusions. The same thing
can happen here. If we do not take advantage of these things when they are
offered to us, I do not see how we can sit here and listen to briefs in regard
to the method by which these products are produced and understand them
thoroughly. I feel we should take up this offer and thereby improve our under-
standing of the problem.

The CHAIRMAN: I think Mr. Orlikow’s point is that the two trips are a
little different in their circumstances in that we did pay our own transportation
and looked after our own accommodation on our previous trip; this time we
would not be doing so. ;

Mr. OrLikOW: I would not want to suggest that taking a trip as proposed
would obligate the members. I am certain the members would not feel obligated.
At the same time, this committee will probably be making a report at some
future date which will deal with some rather controversial proposals. We
have a brief today, for example, from the Canadian Medical Association in
which they reject one of the key recommendations made by the Restrictive
Trade Practices Commission with regard to patenting of drugs. It may be
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that this committee will make some comment on that, and it seems to me
_thaF the less obligated we are to any outside organization the more the public
1s likely to accept our report as being completely objective. That is precisely
what I had in mind in making the observations.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, may I make the suggestion that now we have
br?ught up this matter this morning it might be a good idea to table it until
Friday and make our decision at that time after the members have had an
Obportunity to think it over. In that way we will be enabled to proceed with
our evidence this morning while giving everyone three or four days to think
1t over. We can decide upon the matter on Friday.

Mr. WHELAN: You have a motion, have you not?

The CHAIRMAN: We have, but it has not been voted upon.

Mr. WHELAN: Let us vote it; let us make a decision.
\ The CHarRMAN: Is it the feeling of the committee that we should vote on
1t today? All those in favour of the motion that the second report of the steering
Committee be adopted as read, which says that we accept the invitation of
Cyanamid to visit their parent company? Nine. Those against? One.

Motion agreed to.

I Gentlemen, we will get on with our business for today. I would like to
Introduce the members who are representing the Canadian Medical Association
today. We would like to thank them for coming, and one of them in particular
Who has come a lot further than the other two members. I refer to Dr. McNeil
from Calgary, the chairman of the committee on pharmacy of the Canadian
Medical Association, and a member of the drug advisory committee of the
Department of National Health and Welfare. Beside Dr. McNeil we have Dr.

?lly, executive director of the Canadian Medical Association, and Professor
Wightman from the University of Toronto. I hope you have all received a
€opy of the brief which has been prepared by these gentlemen, and if everyone
has reaqd it we might just go into the consideration of the brief itself. Is that
acceptable? Is there anyone who has not read it?

'Mr. WiLLouGHBY: I am sorry, I overlooked this brief. I did not realize I
Teceived it. It must have been somewhere in the pile on my desk. I would very
i’;ll;ch like to have a chance to study it or else to have the witness summarize

or us.
 The CHAIRMAN: Is it the feeling of the committee that they would at least
like the brief summarized?

Mr. OrrLIKOW: Why not have it read? It is not long, and if we are going to

,‘10 justice to the brief and to the importance of the organization, we should have
1t read.
Mr. MACKASEY: There is a very comprehensive summary at the back of the
brief, 1t may or may not satisfy those who have not read the brief in detail.
Otherwise, I would go along with Mr. Orlikow’s suggestion, but there is a very
80od summary at the back of the brief right now.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there any other comment? What is the feeling of the
Committee? Do you wish the brief read, gentlemen, or is the summary satis-
factory?

Mr. MrtcHELL: I would suggest that the summary would be satisfactory.
It is the first view I have of it but the summary certainly epitomizes very well
the statements made in the first part of this submission.

Mr. SLogan: The brief could be taken as read and included in the minutes.

The CHAIRMAN: Very well. I would suggest then that we read the summary
and then go back through the brief item by item. This would bring out the
Points on which the members would like to question you, Dr. McNeil.
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Dr. Donald L. McNEIL (Chairman of the Committee on Pharmacy of the
Canadian Medical Association; member of the Drug Adwvisory Committee,
Department of National Health and Welfare; President-elect of the Alberta
Division of the C.M.A.): Mr. Chairman, members of the committee on drugs
and food contamination. The following is the brief and summary:

The Canadian Medical Association appreciates the opportunity of present-
ing views which we believe to be broadly representative of the opinions of
Canadian doctors. My name is Donald L. McNeil and I practise in Calgary as
senior physician in the department of internal medicine, Calgary associate
clinic. I am chairman of the committee on pharmacy of the Canadian Medical
Association, a member of the drug advisory committee, Department of National
Health and Welfare and I was recently elected to the office of president-elect
of the Alberta division of the C.M.A. I am accompanied by Dr. K. J. R. Wight-
man, professor of medicine, University of Toronto and former chairman of our
committee on pharmacy and by Dr. A. D. Kelly, general secretary of The Cana-
dian Medical Association.

We have studied your terms of reference and in this submission we will
undertake to comment on those items which lie within our competence.

You are in the first instance asked to consider and report on the hazards
of food contamination from insecticides, pesticides and other noxious sub-
stances. We know that potential hazards exist but we are not aware that the
contamination of foodstuffs actually occurs to the degree that it constitutes a
hazard to the health of the people. It is our understanding that at the meeting of
this committee held during the last session of parliament you have studied
and reported upon this portion of your remit and our remarks will consequently
be brief and general. In the normal course of food preparation, processing and
cooking it would appear that any residue of noxious substance is removed or
inactivated and we are unable to identify the occurrence of disease or disability
with potential contamination. It is a fact, however, that poisoning may occur by
gross overdose of the chemicals which constitute the insecticides and pesticides
used in agriculture and in domestic life. The ingestion or inhalation of such
substances in substantial amount may produce poisoning in the operators who
apply the chemicals and accidental poisoning in children may occur in the
household. The experience of Poison Control Centres in Canada is that poison-
ing with insecticides and pesticides occurs many times less frequently than
accidental poisoning with household remedies, cleaning fluids and detergents.

We do not minimize the potential dangers of residues of pesticides con-
taminating agricultural products and we are generally favourable to the regu-
lations as they exist in this country. It is observable, however, that in certain
instances provincial agricultural authorities enforce very stringent residual
tolerances on the basis of evidence which does not appear to be related to any
health hazard. The banning of the use of dieldrin and aldrin in certain jurisdic-
tions is a case in point. The introduction of new chemical pesticides of unknown
toxicity probably justifies an attitude of extreme caution but if the investiga-
tion of all possible toxic effects of D.D.T. had preceded its use, the control and
eradication of malaria in many parts of the world would not have been possible.

The second portion of your terms of reference relates to the safety and cost
of drugs and here your interest and ours are closely akin. The administration of
drugs is an important element in medical practice and the medical profession
desires to have available in the interests of patients the most efficacious, the
safest and least costly remedies. The elaboration of specific remedies directed
towards the alleviation of a recognizable pathological process or to the destruc-
tion or inactivation of a known micro-organism is a development of recent
years. Safety in medication is a relative term and it should be recognized
that the introduction of material into the human body is never without
inherent risk, and our efforts should be directed towards minimizing the hazard.
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Cost should also be recognized as a relative term and true economy may follow
;clhe exhibition of efficacious remedies of high quality even though the price be
igh.

The education of a physician in pharmacology, materia medica and
pharmacy commences with his undergraduate instruction and is directly related
to instruction in physiology and biochemistry. He is taught to demand a knowl-
edge of the chemical and physical characteristics of drugs and to reject prepara-
tions with a secret formula. The possible benefits of the use of a drug are
studied and, equally important, its toxic properties and undesirable side effects
are considered. The doctor’s graduate instruction, his contact with colleagues,
his refresher training and his reading of the scientific literature throughout his
Professional life, his attendance at meetings of local, provincial and national
medical societies, all contribute to his growing knowledge of medicinal prepara-
tions which are such important elements in his care of patients. He is aided
in his appraisal of the complexities of pharmacy by such official publications
as the British Pharmacopoeia, the Pharmacopoeia of the United States, the
Canadian Formulary, the British Pharmaceutical Codex and for specific product
information by publications such as the Vademecum International and the
Compendium of Pharmaceutical Specialties (Canada).

Drug nomenclature is complicated by the fact that the majority of pharma-
ceuticals have a chemical name, a proper (generic) name, and a trade name.
Chemical names are uncommonly used in prescribing while proper names and
trade designations represent the usual methods of identifying drugs for the use
of patients. It oversimplifies the problems of terminology and economics to say
that generic designations are invariably preferable to trade names and the
latter commands wide acceptance among physicians because they identify the
Product with the manufacturer. The claims of a multiplicity of new pharmaceu-
tical agents induce in the conscientious physician the scepsis scientifica which
may be stated to be an attitude of mind which is reluctant to discard the tried
and true for the sensation of the moment and to require new approaches to
Prove themselves safe and efficacious before he adopts them.

Canadian doctors have and must have confidence that his patient will re-
Ceive the selected drug exactly as he prescribes it. Our reaction to substitution
at the discretion of the pharmacist is unfavourable. Pharmacological equiv-
alents are not necessarily identical in action with known preparations and
dosage forms are often important in the way patients react to the adminis-
tration of a given pharmaceutical product. A drug must not only be chemi-
cally correct, it must be presented in a state which makes it available to the

ody at the appropriate rate of absorption, noting the changes and alterations
Which take place in its assimilation and the rate of its metabolism and
€xcretion.

The necessary confidence that the drugs available are as he presumes
them to be is provided primarily by the supervision exerted by the Food and
Drug Division of the Department of National Health and Welfare, by the work
of well-trained pharmacists and by the products of pharmaceutical manu-
facturers who have attained a reputation for quality.

The work of the F.D.D. is fundamental to the provision of safe and efﬁ—
Cacious drugs for the Canadian people. This directorate has .pe.rformed its
functions very well despite the handicap of a small staff and' a limited budget.
In its submission to the Royal Commission on Health Services the Canadian

edical ‘Association presented its appraisal as follows:

Food and Drugs and Narcotic Control

The Food and Drug Directorate is performing a most useful func-
tion in the administration of the Food and Drugs Act and the Proprietary
or Patent Medicine Act. A new drug may not be sold until certain
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information about it, the method of manufacture, proposed dosage and
claims as to its effects, tests as to its safety and other particulars have
been submitted to the minister. When one considers the very large
number of new pharmaceutical preparations which are being developed
in this country and abroad and which seek entry to the Canadian market,
it is praiseworthy that assessment for safety, if not for therapeutic
effectiveness, is carried out as thoroughly and as promptly as it is,
despite the fact that not all batches are tested.

The Canadian Medical Association is represented on the Drug Ad-
visory Committee and the Prescription Drugs Sub-Committee, both of
which act to ensure that drugs licensed for sale in this country are of
a high standard and that drugs unsuitable for self-medication are
available only on a doctor’s prescription. The operation of one central
and five regional laboratories serves to promote safety in foods, drugs
and cosmetics, and the Directorate exercises control over the claims
made for medicines advertised to the public. Over sixty poison control
centres located in hospitals in all parts of the country depend on infor-
mation supplied through the Food and Drug Directorate. The most
recent 1961 amendment to the Food and Drug Regulations establishes
a new class of controlled drugs to cover the amphetamines, the barbi-
turates and methamphetamines. These commonly used and commonly
abused drugs are now available only under licence and on prescription.

The Narcotic Control Division administers the Narcotic Control Act,
which in 1961 was extensively amended to provide more stringent
penalties for illicit trafficking in narcotics and to control the legal dis-
tribution through licensed dealers, pharmacists and practitioners. The
medical profession is directly involved in the provision to their patients
of both controlled drugs and narcotics and although little more than
six months have elapsed since the new regulations in both fields became
effective it is our impression they are operating well with the full
co-operation of practising physicians.

The functions of the Food and Drug Directorate also extend to the
supervision of the labelling of proprietary medicines offered for sale
and the advertising of such remedies for self-medication. Constant vigi-
lance must be maintained to prevent misleading claims being made in
the advertising through a wide range of media.

The Canadian Medical Association is conscious of the fact that a
good deal of confusing evidence on pharmacy, the price of drugs, phar-
maceutical promotion, prepaid drug plans, generic names and other
aspects of a highly technical field is being debated publicly. This royal
commission has received from a variety of sources proposals which vary
from the establishment of a federal agency to examine the revenue-cost
position of individual drugs, to the provision out of public funds of
drugs for patients suffering from chronic disabilities. Canadian doctors
and their patients are the beneficiaries of the remarkable advances
which have been made in pharmacology and it may be said with some
justification that new products have revolutionized the treatment of
many diseases.

We are interested in providing for our patients at the lowest pos-
sible cost these efficacious new remedies, but we are equally concerned
that we may be able to prescribe with confidence, knowing that quality
and safety have been checked at every stage of the manufacturing
process. The reputation of Canadian pharmaceutical manufacturers and
the international organizations which they represent is high in this
respect, and this very important consideration has been submerged in
the attacks to which the industry has been subjected.
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We have no panacea for the ills of pharmacy, but from the view-
point of the medical profession the most urgent needs are—

(a) to provide a means of assuring the doctor that his prescription
does in fact contain the stated type and quantity of active drug,
even if the generic name is used and no manufacturer specified,
and

(b) to provide information on new drugs relating to an objective ap-
praisal of their efficacy and toxicity by an unbiassed body of experts
before they are released for general use.

We welcome the recent announcement that the Minister of National
Health and Welfare has requested the Royal College of Physicians and
Surgeons of Canada to appoint an ad hoc committee to study the exist-
ing procedure whereby new pharmaceutical products are evaluated
before receiving approval for marketing in Canada.

It is our belief that an important shortcoming in this respect is the
lack of facilities and qualified personnel to carry out adequate pre-
marketing evaluation of new drugs at the clinical level, that is an assess-
ment of their effects on humans. The difficulties involved in providing
for reliable, properly controlled, clinical trials of new pharmaceuticals
are many and complex. The collaboration of the appropriate agencies of
government, the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry, and the pro-
fessions of pharmacy and medicine will be required to devise a satis-
factory solution to this problem.

Reference has been made to the good work being carried out by the
Food and Drug Directorate, but these precise functions are not now
being assumed. It is suggested and recommended that the Food and
Drugs Act be amended to provide the authority for the expansion of the
work of the directorate to encompass these two functions initially. The
necessary finances, facilities and personnel would, of course, require to
be provided, but it is felt that the additional expenditure would be
modest when the objective is to amplify the existing services of the
directorate rather than to establish a new organization. It is our view
that the proposed information service would command the ready co-
operation of Canadian talent in pharmacy and pharmacology, in research
and clinical investigation and in medicine. '

The cost of drugs supplied to patients in hospital is lower than the
price which applies to drugs purchased in retail pharmacies. Part of the
saving is a consequence of bulk purchasing, but another important
factor is that federal, provincial and municipal sales taxes are not applied
to such purchases by hospitals. As an immediate step to reduce the cost
of drugs obtained on prescription it is proposed ‘that this royal com-
mission recommend to the competent federal authority that the 11%
federal sales tax on prescribed drugs be eliminated.

Reference is made above to the fact that the then minister of national
health anq welfare had requested the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons
of Canada to appoint a committee to “examine critically and objectively our
pr‘?sent procedures for dealing with new drugs, the requirements of the regu-
lations and any other matters that in the opinion of the committee are relative
to this issue.”

The Committee on Pharmacy of the C.M.A. presented its views to the
Royal College Committee and examined very carefully the findings and rec-
Ommendations of the committee when they were tabled in the House of Com-
mons in January 1963. Although the chairman of that committee, Dr. F. S.
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Brien, has testified before the predecessor of this parliamentary committee, it
is appropriate to summarize the main recommendations:

(a) the immediate expansion of the staff of the Food and Drug Directo-
rate;
(b) amendment of certain regulations under the Food and Drugs Act—
(i) to provide for more adequate clinical trials of new drugs in
Canada before they are released for sale, to insure substantial
evidence of clinical effectiveness for the purpose intended.
(ii) to create a new classification “Investigational Drugs”.
(iii) to provide authority to order the cessation of trials if unex-
pected toxicity is revealed.

(c¢) the creation of an expert standing drug committee to advise the
PD.D

(d) consideration of the desirability of the division of the present
directorate into food and drug sections.

The Canadian Medical Association at its meeting in June 1963 endorsed
the report of the committee of the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons
of Canada and we are in full support of its recommendations, many of which
have already been implemented by the Food and Drug Directorate.

The reporting of clinical trials of therapeutic substances in the world
medical literature is an important means of disseminating information. An
account of the investigational use of a new pharmaceutical preparation, whether
favourable or unfavourable, by an author whose qualifications are known and
respected is perhaps the most satisfactory method of acquaintin®the medical
profession with the merits of new drugs. The Canadian Medical Association
Journal through original articles contributed by Canadian investigators and
through abstracts, case reports and correspondence does its part in the con-
tinuing education of the physician. By maintaining high standards of advertis-
ing our Journal also exerts a salutary influence on the claims for pharmaceuti-
cals made by their manufacturers and conveys to the reader the knowledge
that scrutiny has been exercised. We file in this connection the brochure “Adver-
tising in Canadian Medical Association Publications”.

Pharmaceutical manufacturers have several avenues open to them in pro-
moting their products after they have been approved for sale in Canada.
Advertising in medical journals has been mentioned. Direct mail of letters,
brochures, reprints etc. is commonly practised. Medical and scientific exhibits
at conventions and meetings of the medical profession are another effective
means of disseminating product information and this is closely akin to the work
of representatives commonly known as “detail men” in calling on doctors and
pharmacists to present the products of their firms. The indiscriminate distri-
bution of drug samples has recently been brought under control in this country
and the current situation appears to be satisfactory. The whole matter of pro-
motional activity has been criticized as unnecessarily expensive, contributing
substantially to the cost of drugs. Testimony of representatives of the pham-
aceutical houses and of the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Associa-
tion will doubtless bring to the parliamentary committee facts and figures on
this matter and we prefer that you obtain your information from these author-
itative sources. We have made representations to the C.P.M.A. with a view to
moderating the flood of direct mail and the apparent wasteful distribution of
}msolicited samples which formerly pertained. It is worthy of note that crit-
%cism of the promotional methods of the highly competitive field of the industry
in North America is represented in reverse in the controlled economy of the
Soviet Union where the complaint is that doctors get far too little information
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on therapeutic substances. (Ironic Contrast: U.S. and U.S.S.R. Drug Industries,
$96§) Bauer and M. G. Field, Harvard Business Review, September-October
. A recent report in the British Medical Journal (Survey of Therapeutic
Information: Wilson, Banks, Mapes and Korte, B.M.J. September 7, 1963)
brovides the results of a study of the prescribing habits of a sample of physicians
In Liverpool in an endeavour to establish the sources of information which led
;hﬁ doctors to prescribe as they did. A table summarizes the findings as
ollows:

Medical Srathing . w00 e e 34.9 per cent
Consultanty advier . s ey e e 8.1 per cent
FeRthoDks L e e T L e e e S 3.1 per cent
Beatad eals i Sy s T et 5.4 per cent
British National Formulary «t..icveisssssnipee 13.3 per cent
PreserIbers JOUTRAl £ s bl e s s TR Is el 0.5 per cent
Monthly Index of Medical Specialties ........ 3.3 per cent
B T i L L e s 26.2 per cent
Discussion with colleagues .................. 5.3 per cent

It is quite possible that a similar study in this country might provide
abproximate data on the prescribing habits of Canadian doctors.

Having decided on suitable medication and having ordered it the doctor
and the patient rely on the services of the pharmacists in procuring and dis-
Pensing the necessary drugs. Radical changes in the profession of pharmacy
haye largely changed the druggist from a compounder and a dispenser of com-
Plicated mixtures to the custodian of the local supplies of the specific remedies
Which are available in such abundance. The changes have not lessened the need
for wide knowledge and discrimination on the part of the pharmacist and he
Tenders an essential service.

. The pharmaceutical manufacturer has assumed a major role in the origina-
tion, development and distribution of a wide range of new therapeutic agents
Without which modern medical practice would be impossible. To illustrate the
8reat benefits which flow from the chemotherapeutic explosion it is possible
to assert that 70 per cent of drugs prescribed to-day were uknown in 1935 and

ber cent of to-day’s prescriptions could not have been filled as recently as
five years ago because the drugs had not been discovered.* In the chorus of
Criticism which has been levelled at the drug manufacturer it is often over-
l°°ked that without their dedication to research and without their technical

Skill in product development, morbidity and mortality from many diseases
Would still be as high as they were prior to world war II. Physicians are
Conscious that they and their patients have benefited immeasprably from' the
Scientific therapeutic developments which have flowed and which will continue
to flow from the laboratories of the much maligned manufacturers of phar-
Maceutjcals. We cannot say that these effective agents are too expensive and
s worthy of note that the Restrictive Trade Practices Commission did not

Say so either.
We do not propose to discuss in detail the voluminous ‘“Report Conce;ni.ng
the Manufacture, Distribution and Sale of Drugs” prepared by the Restrictive
Tade Practices Commission and released in January 1963. It is suggestec_l,
OWever, that this volume should be required reading for members of this
\

In dl:Refel‘ences: (a) “The Organization and Economics of Research in the Pharmaceutical

o ;;ry"; J. Yule Bogue, Ph.D. The Pharmaceutical Journal (Great Britain) Jan. 13, 1962:
- 27-32, ¢ :
No, ) Sub-Committee on Anti-Trust, 1962, U.S. Senate, 87th Congress, First Session, Report

* 448, pp. 116-113,



62 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

parliamentary committee because it provides essential information on the
complexities of the whole field of the origination, development, testing and
distribution of therapeutic substances. By the very nature of its task the com-
mission was primarily concerned with the economics of drugs and its investiga-
tions commenced with a study of the antibiotic drugs and the ataraxic or
tranquillizer drugs although testimony covering a much wider field was
considered.

The commission examined the effect of sales tax and the dumping duty
provisions of the customs on the price of drugs in this country but made no
specific recommendations for changes in the relevant legislation. It is our view,
as previously stated, that the elimination of the 11 per cent federal sales tax
would represent a practical step toward the reduction of drug prices and a step
which is clearly within the competence of parliament.

The most far-reaching recommendation of the Restrictive Trade Practices
Commission was ‘“that patents with respect to drugs be abolished”. The current
position in Canada is that a pharmaceutical product may be patented if
produced by a process other than a chemical one, but whenever the process of
manufacture is chemical, a patent can be obtained only for the process or for
the drug when produced by that process. There is little doubt that the protection
afforded by such patent has been a powerful incentive to large investment in
research and investigation with the consequent discovery of many useful
pharmaceuticals. It is accurate to say that relatively little of this research has
been carried out in Canada. There are, however, notable exceptions and plans
for the establishment of research divisions in Canadian pharmaceutical plants
are going forward.

It is our view that the public interest in Canada is protected from the
potential abuse of patent rights by the provision of the Patent Act which
provides for compulsory licensing of an applicant who is adjudged to be capable
of producing the substance which has been patented. The adverse effect on
research effort which would follow the abolition of drug patents constitutes the
principal reason why we do not agree with this recommendation. It is suggested
that the saving in the price of drugs would be small compensation for the
handicap to the discovery of further pharmaceuticals which may be of the
utmost benefit to mankind.

Summary

In this submission on behalf of The Canadian Medical Association we have
stated:

1. Our belief that the use of insecticides and pesticides does not pro-
duce contamination of foodstuffs which we recognize as a hazard to
health.

2. Some factors in the process whereby Canadian doctors gain their
knowledge of therapeutic agents and their interest in the availability
of increasing numbers of efficacious drugs of low toxicity at prices
which are consistent with high quality.

3. Our endorsement of the recommendations of the committee of the
Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons of Canada on appropriate
measures related to the introduction of new drugs.

4. Our appraisal of the work of the Food and Drug Directorate, De-
partment of National Health and Welfare, and our desire that its
facilities be strengthened.

5. Some thoughts on the physicians’ reaction to the promotional mea-
sures adopted by pharmaceutical manufacturers.
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6. Our appreciation of the benefits which have accrued from the re-
search and the technical skills of the pharmaceutical industry.

7. Our recommendation that the federal sales tax of 11 per cent on
prescribed drugs be abolished in the interest of the reduction of

price to the consumer.

8. Our disagreement with the proposal of the Restrictive Trade Prac-
tices Commission that Canada should abolish patents on drugs.

The CHATRMAN: Now, if we could revert and take this brief paragraph by
Paragraph I think it would be an orderly way of proceeding.

As everyone here is aware we already have reported on insecticides and
Ie)es'ticides, althrough these matters are still part of our present terms of ref-

rence,

Has anyone a question to put in this regard or any comments to make?

Mr. OrLKOW: I would like to put a question in respect of this very strong
and unequivocal belief that the use of insecticides and pesticides does not
Produce contamination of food stuffs.

Within the last couple of days the Toronto Globe and Mail has reported
that millions—and I am quoting exactly—of fish in the Mississippi river has
been found dead, and according to the experts in the United States this was
a5 a result of the use of dieldrin, which was used to spray sugar cane. Of
Course, this substance got washed into the river and carried on from there.

realize there is a great deal of controversy and I realize the validity of the
Statement here, that D.D.T. helped to eliminate malaria. But, at the same time,
and in view of the great controversy, along with the expert advice on both
Sides in respect of the possible dangers as well as the good effects of the use
°f insecticides and pesticides, I wonder about the almost complete rejection of

€ idea that perhaps we have to be pretty careful in respect of the use of these

ngs. Would you like to comment on that?

. Mr. McNEmL: We quite realize we seemingly were passing over this por-
tion of your terms of reference quite quickly. However, we did not do this
V{ithout having researched this problem and this portion of your study con-
Slderably. We learned what the national department of health does in this work
and we know the responsibilities of the other departments, agriculture, forestry
and so on, We have also checked with departments of health in the provinces
11 across Canada and have received reports from all of these ministries. Also,
We referred to the World Health Organization, who supplied us with much
Material, and we further reviewed the reports that you have received and the
OPinion which we believe that you have passed on to parliament in an earlier
Submission, So, we are not passing this over quite so lightly. Of course, dangers
also will exist’and great care will be required. But, we are satisfied that this
are is being taken. We have a number of bodies which are protecting us and
e hope the wildlife in our country is being protected also.

Mr. SrLogan: I think we have a similar problem in the province of Manitoba
to that which Mr. Orlikow has referred regarding detergents. A great deal of
Work has been done in regard to decontaminating the Red river and other
Waters in that area. I am wondering whether Mr. Orlikow is in favour of
abolishing detergents. :

Mr. OrLikow: I am not in favour of abolishing detergents but I am in
favour of the experiments which are being carried out in an attempt to rid

elergents of the foaming action. ) :

Mr. Mackasey: I should like to say one or two words in this regard. I
2ubport your statement and realize that in certain states, and perhaps through-
out the United States, the form of detergents is changing and have perhaps

20800—s g
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less sales appeal because certain ingredients have been removed, but they
certainly have been improved in respect of water contamination.
One point in your brief is of particular interest to me. At page 1 you state:

It is a fact, however, that poisoning may occur by gross overdose of
the chemicals which constitute the insecticides and pesticides used in
agriculture and in domestic life.

I presume you refer to use by individuals rather than as a result of a gen-
erous recommendation of the application? Am I right in assuming that, and
that it is something over which the manufacturers have really no control?

Mr. McNEiL: The manufacturers have no control over them. There are
very definite directions in respect of the use of these chemicals. We lost a pilot
in Alberta while he was carrying out his work spraying crops. The dangers I
believe lie mainly in the areas of factories where these are produced but I am
sure the workers are being protected.

It would seem that the greatest tragedies occur as a result of careless use
of these chemicals on the part of individuals who do not obey the instructions.

Mr. WiLLouGHBY: I should think, Mr. Chairman, that the criticism, while
it is correct as far as contamination in respect of wildlife is concerned, does
not apply to the problem that the medical association must consider, namely
the question of health matters in human beings. While we recognize that wild-
life has suffered from excessive use of some of these insecticides and pesticides,
we have never had any proof by evidence from any of the witnesses we have
heard that there are any serious results as far as human health conditions are
concerned. I think that fact probably answers the criticisms. The medical
association deals with health matters only.

Mr. Oruikow: I should like to ask Dr. McNeil one further question. Is it
not a fact that there is a good deal of evidence that in products such as those
used extensively by younger people, milk for instance, there has been found
by experiments, carried out across Canada and in the United States, very
appreciable amounts of some of these chemicals?

Mr. COtE (Longueuil): Mr. Chairman, I think we have gone through this
discussion in respect of pesticides and insecticides and I do not think we should
go through it again.

Mr. OrLIKOW: This subject is covered by the brief.

Mr. COTE (Longueuil): I think this discussion should have taken place
before we presented our report in respect of pesticides and insecticides. I do
not understand why it is taking place in respect of our report at this time.

The CHAIRMAN: It is taking place now because this reference is still in
our terms of reference.

Mr. Howe (Hamilton South): I should just like to suggest that the sum-
mary does not correctly reflect the body of the submission in that it is noted
at page 2 in the second paragraph that there are relative dangers, yet the
blanket statement is made in the summary that there is no produce contamina-
tion of food stuffs. The statement appearing at page 2 notes that there are
potential dangers, so I would say that this brief has been prepared with com-
plete awareness of this danger but does not reflect that awareness in the sum-
mary.

The CHAIRMAN: I had the thought that it might be interesting to this
committee to ask Dr. McNeil and Professor Wightman, who are both active
practitioners in the medical field, whether they have found that the uses of
pesticides and insecticides has given rise to diseases or any significant danger
of morbidity or mortality.

R

[ =% I



FOOD AND DRUGS 65

Dr. K. J. R. WicHTMAN (Professor of Medicine, University of Toronto):
I have seen one man who was poisoned through the spraying of one of these
materials which produced an illness because he himself had an unusual set
up of enzymes in his body and was unusually sensitive to these things. I think
other cases of this sort have been described so there are a few instances of
Poisoning. However, I do not know of any diseases that these things have
Produced. The fact that one does not know of any of course does not rule out
the possibility, but certainly it must be kept in mind that so far the evidence
does not show that any disease has been produced by contamination as a
result of the use of these materials. I agree with the precautions which are
being taken to prevent this sort of thing.

The CHAIRMAN: Is this also true in respect of the situation in Calgary?

Mr. McNEIL: Yes. I cannot add anything to that statement, I have not
seen any evidence of chronic poisoning.

Mr. SrLocaN: Perhaps I could change the subject slightly. I should just
like to ask a question in respect of a statement appearing at page 6 of your
brief which states:

—we are equally concerned that we may be able to prescribe with
confidence, knowing that quality and safety have been checked at
every stage of the manufacturing process.

Do you feel as a medical practitioner when you are confronted by some new
drug on the market that you have a tendency to prescribe a drug made by a
Well known firm with which you have been dealing rather than the new
drug which is being offered by a company that is less well known?

Mr. McNEIL: Are you referring to a new drug?

Mr. SLogan: Do you feel that there is a tendency in the medical profession
to prescribe drugs supplied by well known reputable firms at perhaps higher
Prices than perhaps drugs from lesser known firms because you are perhaps
Worried about the quality of those drugs?

Mr. McNemL: Yes.

Mr. SrogaN: Do you feel that the food and drug directorate could perhaps
do more than it is doing to advise medical practitioners in respect of the
Quality of drugs which are being sold under generic names by different
Manufacturers, or even the same manufacturer, so that the medical men
Would be in a beter position of knowing the quality of the drug?

Mr. KeLLy: May I say that the hon. member is quoting from a lengthy
€xtract in our submission to the royal commission on health services. We
Covered that very point at page 6, in our second proposal where we state that
We believe a new and very important function of the food and drug directorate
Would be to provide information on new drugs relating to an objective ap-
Praisal of there efficacy and toxicity by an unbiased body of experts before
they are released for general use. This is the kind of assurance that is certainly
What the doctor wants and requires.

_ Mr. Spocan: How do you think this could be brought about? Do you
think this could be brought about through the labelling of a drug, stating
that such g drug had passed certain specifications? How do you think this
fould be brought about for the assistance of those who are prescribing these
Medicines?

Mr. KeLLy: My two companions have had personal experience with the
functions of the food and drug directorate and its committees and will be able

© speak with assurance on just that point.
20800—a3
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Mr. WiGHTMAN: Mr. Chairman, one way of doing this is, of course, to
create some system of licensing so that the manufacturing processes are in-
spected. What you are talking about is really quality control, ensuring that
the manufacturing process is done in a uniform fashion so that the drugs will
be produced to predictable quality and will be uniform from batch to batch,
month to month. This is what one would expect to find in respect of a repu-
table company which for its own sake is doing its best to produce just such a
product. This is what one would hope to see enforced by one means or another
in respect of all drug manufacturers. One way of doing this would be by a
licensing and inspection system such as is now carried out in respect of
biological materials manufactured. It would seem to me, however, to be perhaps
impossible or impractical to have the food and drug directorate actually test
every batch. I do not think that directorate should take over the function of
quality control for the various manufacturers. I think it should interest itself
in the procedures of all drug manufacturers.

Mr. SLoGAN: In order that a practitioner in some small backwoods town
will know that a drug does meet certain specifications set down by perhaps
his own association, do you think the food and drug administration, in co-opera-
tion with the bodies that use these drugs, could ask the manufacturers to
indicate on the label, once these drugs have passed certain specifications, that
they have met certain specifications set down, for example, by the Canadian
Medical Association? That doctor would then know that a drug was safe even
though it might be sold under a generic name and not be a well known brand.

Mr. WIGHTMAN: Such a program would still involve inspection. Someone
would have to undertake to make sure that such was the actual case in the
manufacturing plant.

Mr. SLoGaN: Do you feel that the food and drug directorate could carry
out such an inspection?

Mr. WicHTMAN: I think that is a reasonable thing for that directorate to
do. Obviously it could not do it as it is set up now, but I would think it a
good thing if it could do that.

Mr. SLOGAN: Has your association taken any stand in this regard? I sup-
pose you have taken such a stand in these statements which you have made.

Mr. Mackasgy: I should like to ask a supplementary question. Do you
imply in your statements that you believe this type of inspection would only
be possible under a licencing system?

Mr. WicHTMAN: That is really a question for the lawyers. I do not know.

Mr. MACKASEY: In your opening remarks you mentioned the advisability
of having manufacturers licensed so that immediately there would be some
control in respect of specific drugs.

Mr. WicHTMAN: That is one way of doing this.

Mr. MackaseY: I infer perhaps wrongly from your remarks that as long
as they are not licensed there is no limitation or standard in respect of the
manufacturers operation. Am I right in this regard?

Mr. WicHTMAN: I think that is true. I think the only standard that is
defined under the act is that which provides that a product may be examined
from time to time either in a sporadic way or as a result of some complaint
and an analysis made to find out whether or not it complies with the specifica-
tions. There are certain things which are important in respect of a drug but
which are not readily specified. That is to say, in regard to the absence of cer-
tain trace materials, the way the tablets are compressed if they are tablets and
all manner of other things besides the actual amount of stated ingredients that
are present. All these things need to be controlled as well as the amount of drug.

L e
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Mr. MACKASEY: At the moment that responsibility remains directly with
the manufacturer in following the process from beginning to end?

Mr. WicHTMAN: Yes.

i Mr. Srocax: I have one further supplementary question. Do you feel it
IS necessary to have compulsory licensing, or could some objective be accom-
Plished by the establishment of something in the nature of a drug specification
body acceptable to the food and drug administration? It would seem to me that
the medical, dental and other professions would restrict their uses to those
drugs which had this brand of approval. It would be very desirable from the
drug manufacturers point of view to have that approval and I am sure they
would invite the food and drug administration to license or inspect them,
Whichever may be the case. My point is that I do not think it would necessarily
have to be a compulsory system.

Mr. WicaTmaN: I think the very fact that a drug is now sold is in some
Way an indication that the product has been examined by the food and drug
dlrectorate, but this does not do anything in respect of the production methods
or quality control. Whether this could be accomplished without some means of
continuing supervision or observation of the process of production I do not
%inow. It would be all very well to say that this product had been prqducgd
In a way which would comply with any set of regulations but the question is,
1s it going to be continuously produced in this way? There is a monetary factor
involved here and a need for some special mechanism which does not exist now
except as a matter of voluntary introduction by some companies.

Mr. SrLocan: Would you say that the food and drug administration is
Perhaps doing a great deal of work which is not evident to the average prac-
titioner because he has no way of knowing exactly what sort of specifications
these drugs have met and that, therefore, we are spending a lot of taxpayers
Money for the taxpayers protection in respect of which perhaps he is not getting
the benefit in the way of lower prices because the drugs do not carry well

known brand names?

Mr. Wicatman: I am not quite sure what you mean. I think one of the
things which makes it possible to sell drugs at a lower price is the omission of
Many of the precautions which are taken in manufacture and which are referred
to as quality control. In other words production is cheapened considerably if
the long lists of tests in respect of every step of the manufacturing process
are not carried out. In other words the man who buys or uses the cheap drug
Mmay sort of automatically be throwing overboard this kind of protection.

his may not make it different in certain circumstances, but in other circum-
stances it may be a very critical thing. Again I think the only way of specifying
that a method of manufacture is followed which does involve these quality
controls involves new regulations and new inspection methods which we do

not have. T do not think the work being done by the food and drug directorate

Is being wasted. I think we are all extremely tavourably disposed to the work
that body, but I think it is possible

eing done and the attempts being made by i
his might be extended to produce more rigid control on manufacturing methods.
Mr. SLogan: When referring to quality control Mr. Chairman, I ref.er ag_ain
%0 a point I made earlier. A lot of drug manufacturers may be selling identical
8s under various brand names at different prices, or they may be manufac-
turing drugs for distributors in respect of which there are exactly the same
Quality controls and, therefore, the drugs are sold at different prices. However,
ecause of the fact that individuals who buy the drugs do not realize the situa-
tion they are more likely to buy the higher priced but better known product.

Mr., WigaT™mAN: That is possible.
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Mr. OrLIKOW: You state at page 3 of your brief that doctors gain knowledge
in respect of various drugs by reference to publications such as the British
Pharmacopoeia and Vademecum International. I am not being critical of doctors
or of drug manufacturers at the moment but is it not a fact that a great amount
of the information which a busy doctor has in respect of new drugs particularly
comes from dealers who have time to spend waiting to see the doctor to provide
him with this information about a new product? If that is the case is that not one
of the reasons why many individuals prefer to use or recommend well known
brand products?

Mr. WicHTMAN: At page 10 I think there is mention of the influence of
prescribing habits of the doctors as far as drugs are concerned. I think this
is true. It states there the durg firms, which includes the detail men, advertis-
ing material and the other promotional methods and, in that setting, this
would seem to produce 25 per cent of the direction in respect of prescribing.
So far as the doctors are concerned, I think it is true that the detail men do a
lot to acquaint doctors with new products and how to use them. In many
instances I think the information which they give is fairly reliable. However,
it is not the only source and I would hesitate to say that it is the main source.

Mr. OruIKOW: I did not say it was the main source. However, the detail
men are not often likely to tell you that there are other companies making the
same product and that perhaps the other company is selling it at a lower price
than their company. Is that not correct?

Mr. WicHTMAN: Yes.

Mr. OrLIKOW: That would be expecting too much.

Mr. WicHTMAN: Usually he is trying to interest you in something which no
other company has made to date.

Mr. OrrLiKOW: But is it not true that a very large percentage of the
prescription dollar which the consumer is paying is paid in respect of a rela-
tively small number of products, such as antibiotics, and there is a good deal
of overlap? Is it not true that the same or similar product is made by half a
dozen companies and as a result, there is a terrific amount of competition
between companies?

Mr. WIGHTMAN: Yes.

Mr. OrLIKOW: That is, there is this competition to get the doctor to
prescribe their product rather than someone else’s?

Mr. WiGHTMAN: I think this is true. There are large areas of overlap in
respect of commonly used drugs. The more popular the drug is the more wide-
spread is its use and the more temptation there is to produce a new version of
it or new methods of producing it. But, this would not be worth while in
respect of other drugs.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Page 3 sets out where the doctor obtains his information,
and I am wondering if it is too early to say whether the new regulations in
respect of distribution of drug samples, which were worked out last year, have
had any appreciable effect on the reduction of the almost indiscriminate flooding
of doctors’ offices with drug samples by drug companies.

Mr. WIGHTMAN: In my case, it certainly has. I do not know what has been
Dr. McNeil’s experience. '

Mr. MACKASEY: Mr. Chairman, I object to those generalities used by
Mr. Orlikow. He referred to the indiscriminate flooding of doctors’ offices. I,
for one, do not know whether there is or is not, and I do not want to let this
remark go unchallenged into the record without first knowing.

I think Mr. Orlikow could phrase his question in a more objective manner.
Now, I have no axe to grind in this respect and, I presume, Mr. Orlikow has not.
But, I do take objection to this type of flowery phrasing in the beginning of
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hls_CIuestions that presumes something. I do not think it is fair to our witnesses.
This is not a McCarthy trial; the witnesses are here to give us information.
:.[ dp not think it is fair to put on the record that there had been or might be
Indiscriminate flooding of doctors’ offices with samples.

Have you found this literature which has been referred to misleading in
any way and do you find that pharmaceutical firms, in pushing their particular
bl‘"clnds, claim any performance for their drugs which is not true and, therefore,
this is misleading and dangerous to your patients, when taken at face value.

Mr. WicaT™MAN: No. But, in the case of some of the literature from some
CO_mpanies there is a certain amount of generalization, perhaps leaving you
With the opinion that it is all the same. But, there certainly is promotional
Material sent out which is not educational and which does, in subtle ways,
OVeremphasize the place that this particular drug may have, and the value
1t may have in respect of others. This is a matter of advertising techniques,
and this does occur.

If one examines the thing from a scientific point of view I think one might
freguently complain there was not enough scientific data for a scientist to
Satisfy himself. But, I do not think it is very often that you will find misleading
Information in the obvious sense in which you mean it.

Mr. Mackasey: In the fourth line from the bottom of page 3 you state:

Our reaction to substitution at the discretion of the pharmacist is

unfavourable.
I would like you to elaborate on that.

Dr. A. D. KeLLy (General Secretary of the Canadian Medical Association):
Dr. McNeil comes from a province where legislation permits such substitutions
and Perhaps from his own experience he could comment on this.

Mr. WiLLoucuBY: Is this substitution not made after notifying the doctor
of the alternative product?

Mr. McNEIL: It is necessary that a doctor state either the name of the
COmpany that produces the drug or the trade name, and it is up to him to
State that there be no substitution; otherwise, it is possible for a pharmacist
to Supply a drug of a similar nature with, perhaps, a different brand name.

In Alberta physicians largely have marked their prescriptions so that
there would be no equivalent. They did not agree with this act which allowed
Substitution.

Mr. WriLLoucHBY: But does not the druggist usually phone the doctor to
Say he has not this particular product available at the moment and requests
Permission to prescribe this other product, if it is all right.

Mr. McNEIL: That sometimes happens, and the doctor might or might not
agree. He still has the control of it. 2

Mr. OrLiKOW: Suppose the food and drug administration was given the
Tesponsibility for a much broader testing program than it has carried out to

ate and they had the facilities for investigating drugs; in this way doctors
Could be assured when there was a generically named drug available that it
Was the equivalent, although it might be cheaper. Would you have any objec-
tion to this? It seems to me from what you have said up until now you do
Dot think—and I do not think anyone would disagree with you—that the
Individua] druggist really has the knowledge required to be certain that the
Tug he is going to substitute will do the same thing as the one the doctor
Prescribed. But, as I say, suppose the food and drug administration tested these
}:Ugf, certified or licensed them as suggested, would there be any objection

en?
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Mr. McNEIL: I think Dr. Wightman already has answered that question.
There must be this continued surveillance and the stamp of approval could
not be given unless it was known that this testing was constant.

Mr. MACKASEY: On the same point, this sentence does say at the Qiscretlon
of the pharmacist which, of course, is not quite the same as what Dr. Wlllpughby
said, where a reputable druggist will check with his doctor and obtain per-
mission. Is there anything in the law now that makes it mandatory for a
druggist to check with the doctor in case of a substitution?

Mr. WiGHTMAN: Not in Alberta.

Mr. MackASEY: Do you think a desirable addition to our laws would be
that

druggists not be permitted to substitute any portion of the compound or
prescription without an opinion of the doctor?

Mr. McNEIL: Yes. I know that the physicians—and, I suppose I should not
speak for the pharmacists—would welcome this.

Mr. SLOGAN: What is the situation in Alberta when a druggist, without
consulting a medical man, substitutes a preseription, as a result of which there
is a reaction in the

patient and a law suit brought? Is not the responsibility
placed on the shoulders of the pharmacist?

Mr. McNEIL: Yes, we have been advised that the pharmacist is liable. He
must be very careful. I have been told th

at the pharmacist, in all probability,
would take only a drug which he feels is very safe. He is apt to take a dr'ug
which he considers safer and he will not necessarily use the cheaper and in-
expensive drug as a substitution.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: Mr. Chairman, I think I am away out in left field.

I wanted to put a question in respect of potency and toxicity, whiqh was
brought up initially by Dr. Slogan. However, we got on this other subject of
samples and then carried on from there.

May I revert to this matter and ask Dr. Wightman if he does not consider
adequate the policy which we h i

I think I, personally,

should say at this time that our trip to Montreal was
extremely interesting in

respect of that subject. There may be smaller com-

Mr. WiLLovucHBY: Is it your feeling that some of these drugs are not up to
the potency required?

Mr. WicHTMAN: Oh, yes. However, it is not so much the matter of potency.
There are variations i
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care which should be taken in the formulation—that is, the way the capsules
or whatever they are, are put together, as well as the methods used to protect
a drug after it has been packaged and so on. As you know, there are many
things which could interfere with the activity of drugs. There are all sorts of
curious things which can happen. One might not anticipate that the changing
of the amount of an inert material in a tablet to make it look different than
before would make any difference, but even though the active ingredient was
still present or if a drug was allowed to stand an undue length of time or, in
other conditions, changes might come about which would have a different effect
on the body which one never heard of before. All these things are unexpected
and we must try to protect ourselves by using the greatest care. The same
format should be kept in respect of the testing of drugs, the biological activity,
clinical tests, and so on.

Mr. WiLLouGcHBY: Under the circumstances do you feel the government of
Canada should set up a laboratory and equipment for the testing of the potency
of drugs which are being manufactured in Canada today?

Mr. WicHTMAN: No. My suggestion would be that they make the manu-
facturers do this.

Mr. WIiLLOUGHBY: They are doing that.
Mr. WiGHTMAN: Some of them are.

Mr. SrocaNn: I believe you referred to the storing and so on of some of
these drugs; this sort of thing could happen to the best type of manufacturer
and the more specialized drug firms. As you know light and darkness and
temperature affect different drugs. In your statement you say that some of the
manufacturers are not up to standard. Upon what evidence do you base this?

Mr. WicHTMAN: Well, I have had experience with drugs that were pur-
chased from these manufacturers.

Mr. SrocaN: Have you visited any of these small plants that are doing this?

Mr. WicHTMAN: I have visited only one of them. Some of the others I speak
of will buy bulk materials from another country, import them into Canada and
but them into capsules, sell them and no one knows anything about the manu-
facturer. All one particular company may do is fill the capsule and put the
capsules into bottles. There are operations of this type particularly designed to
capitalize on the success of drugs which are used widely. They want to handle
this type of drug because it has a big sale. But, if you handle it in this manner
You have not had anything to do with the cost in respect of the finding of the
drug, the developing, testing and so on. All you are doing is taking the cream
off, as it were. This is one of the ways of getting cheap drugs on generic terms,
and we are concerned about that.

Mr. SrocaN: But are not these firms subject to inspection by the food and
drug inspectors at any time, unknown to them?

Mr. WiGHTMAN: Not that I know of, unless the regulations have been
changed.

Mr. Marcoux: Are you satisfied that the difference in price bet}veen those
small companies and the well known companies represents approximately the
difference in care, production or research.

Mr. WicHTMAN: No.

Mr. COtEt (Longueuil): But, is it not true that most of these drugs are
usually purchased by people on the recommendation of medical men and is it
not the responsibility of the medical men to control that? If this was the case
the small companies would not be so popular. In fact, it is not the respon-
sibility of our committee or the food and drug directorate but all the medical
men. It is up to them to tell the people at large what drugs to use.
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Mr. WicHTMAN: I think that is true. I do think there is a need here.

Mr. OrLikOW: I would like to ask the doctor if he has heard or knows of
large hospitals which dispense large quantities of prescription items for their
patients and which, in fact, are buying drugs in large quantities, many of them
from outside the country, thereby saving substantial amounts of money for
their patients? Do you not think that hospitals are taking the necessary pre-
cautions to make sure the drugs which they are dispensing are safe?

Mr. WiGHTMAN: I can only speak for my own hospital where, when I was
chairman of the drug committee, I carried on an unrelenting battle against
the hospital administration who wanted to save money, not so much for the
patient, but for the hospital services commission. They wanted to buy drugs by
tender, specifying various specifications such as would be laid down and then
having them tested by an outside agency for these things. In one instance they
said this would save $30,000 in buying a certain single drug. Yet, when one
came to investigate, one found that the specifications one could lay down were
only the things one knew about; there was nothing specified in respect of some-
thing one did not know. It turned out that this particular $30,000 drug was one
of the ones which could have completely unacceptable adverse effects if it
were not properly processed. I must admit that three or four drugs were boxed
under these terms by our hospital. These involved bulk purchases, in order to
take advantage of this savings. I think this is something in our hospital that
has come to be no longer worthy of the trouble involved.

Mr. OrLIROW: Is it not a fact that very often drugs are produced by some
of the primary producers and then sold by companies which are really only
packagers and, depending upon the name, there are sharp differences in the
prices? After all, we are not dealing with pennies but with the cost of drugs
in the tens of millions of dollars. I should like to ask the doctor whether he
thinks it important that we try to pass on a savings to the consumer? I think
we should keep safety in mind, and no one questions that fact. Do you think
that we should attempt to save money for the people of Canada if possible
rather than creating a system whereby a company with a well known reputa-
ble name can charge two, three or ten times as much for the same drugs as
another company?

Mr. WiGHTMAN: I think we must not be penny wise and pound foolish. As
we have said in the brief I think we owe a tremendous amount to new drugs
and developments which have been accomplished by the pharmaceutical in-
dustry sometimes with the help of the medical profession but sometimes com-
pletely on their own initative and with their own talents. I think these are
things which must also be taken into consideration. I am quite aware of the
fact that one must examine the price of anything. I do not know what any-
thing ought to cost in absolute terms but I think that in order to save money
on drugs which we presently have we must be very careful not to do anything
to prevent the flow of new drugs, because this has made a tremendous difference
to our lives during the past ten years.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, is the doctor aware of the fact that a large
number of new drugs, and I have reference to tranquillizers because of some
personal experience in this regard, have been developed in Europe and not on
the American continent, but that in the transmission of the drugs from Europe
to Canada and the United States the price has jumped by some 60 to 70 per
cent? If someone went to Europe and brought the drugs back here and sold
them at something close to the European price it would benefit everyone. What
is wrong with that concept?

Mr. WIGHTMAN: There is nothing wrong with it as long as the drug is
produced properly.

.
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: Mr. OrLIKOW: Is it not important to make sure that we have some organiza-
tion as a result of which we can be certain that products which are being
sold, regardless of where they are produced, are produced properly?

Mr. WicaTMAN: I think that involves half of the problem but the other
half has to do with making sure that new products are produced, that research
continues, and that further studies are not interrupted. I think there is a
Possibility here of cutting these things at the roots, or killing the goose that
lays the golden eggs.

Mr. SrocaN: Doctor, do you feel there will be a lessening of research on
the part of these companies which have large research facilities as a result
of their being placed in a competitive position?

Mr. WicHTMAN: I cannot tell because it is difficult to know what the
acceptance of these other companies’ products would be. In other words there
have been these companies in operation and in operation now, and I do not
know what the effect would be on the original companies’ revenues. I cannot
answer that question and tell you what the impact would be. I do know that
1f this were very widespread or condoned by some sort of legislation it would
have an effect.

Mr. Sr.ocAN: Would you say that perhaps a new drug which eventually is
placed on the market as a result of research may be developed only after
say 100 unsuccessful attempts and, therefore, must bear a larger cost than
the cost of the research in respect of that particular drug itself? I use the
e€xample of an oil company which drills several dry wells at a cost of several
thousand dollars each before hitting one that produces oil, but the producing
Wwell must carry the cost of drilling the dry wells.

Mr. WicHTMAN: Diamonds are not really worth anything except because
the supply is held by a few people. There is always the question involved of
What is a thing worth to the consumer. We are now getting into an entirely
p_hilosophical examination of supply, demand and needs, which is a considera-
tion, actually beyond the medical field. If a producer has something that is
extremely good and saves lives and no one else has it then he has the
feeling that he has something that people will buy.

Mr. OrLIKOW: That is perhaps true even though the cost of such an item
Mmay well be a substantial part of an individual’s income. A person may perhaps
be living on the old age pension and be required to buy cortisone or one of the
New antibiotic drugs which cost a very substantial part of his total income,
PUt permits him to live fairly comfortably. Surely the cost of that item is
Important.

Mr. WicaTMAN: That is important, yes.

Mr. Macgrasgy: Is it not also important that somebody do the research in
the first place to make it possible for these old people to live a little longer
through the use of these drugs?

Mr. WicHTMAN: Yes.

Mr. Mackasey: I think the case of my boy is typical. I have never regarded
tl'}e cost of insulin to be unreasonable. Twenty-five or forty years ago people
did not have to pay for insulin because it did not exist.

_Mr. Srocan: May I just ask a supplementary question? I should like to
Say that it might be wise to point out that many drugs that are produced, and
Insulin, produced by Dr. Best, is a good example, were not actually patented.

I. Best made insulin freely available to people without thought of any
Monetary benefit. I believe there have been many advances in medicine made
On the same basis. In fact I think it is unethical on the part of a medical man
% do other than what was done in respect of insulin.
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Mr. OrLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, I think I should put on the record the fact
that insulin is probably alone among many drugs that are being used in respect

of which there are no patents, and which is being sold at almost cost. I should .

be happy to hear any information from any one in respect of any other drugs
which were treated in this same way and not patented. I think the example
of insulin is probably the worst possible that can be used in terms of com-
parison.

Mr. MAckASEY: I suggest the difference is that the research done allowing
the discovery of insulin was done by a humanitarian whereas research in respect
of other types of drugs developed today is done by private industry. I think
the time will arrive when the government will have to undertake this research
exclusively and private industry must be motivated to seek only a legitimate
profit.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: Before we leave that subject I should like to state that
that last statement summarizes very well the whole situation. Until the gov-
ernment of Canada, or any other government, is prepared to spend large amounts
of money on research, and we are laging very sadly unfortunately in this area
at the present time, we cannot criticize the companies. In fact we should be
very thankful to these companies for spending eight to ten per cent of profit
on research alone. We should appreciate their efforts in developing things of
such great importance to the people of this country.

Mr. MACKASEY: In this regard I should like to suggest that during our trip to
Montreal we were privileged to meet a humanitarian, Dr. Genest at the Hotel-
Dieu. I must state that I witnessed the most appalling conditions there that
I have ever seen outside of a movie film, and at one stage I jokingly suggested
to him that he could raise a little revenue by leasing out the physical aspects
of that establishment to a movie company to use as sets. He laughed and said:
“we did precisely that last year to the Film Board”.

The conditions under which he is working are precisely those which I
assume existed 75 or 100 years ago in that particular hospital.

You mentioned potential savings, and you were rightfully interested in
saving money for your hospital to the extent of $30,000 by purchasing in bulk.
Are you suggesting now that in spite of the fact you are operating a hospital
and are able to take advantage of buying in bulk effecting such savings you
would think twice about doing so again?

Mr. WIGHTMAN: Yes.
Mr. MACKASEY: You also indicated some of the more practical methods of
purchasing used by hospitals. Is one of the main reasons that hospitals are able

to buy drugs cheaper than the general public because of the absence of
municipal, federal and provincial sales tax?

Mr. WicGHTMAN: Yes, I suppose that is right.

Mr. Mackasey: Would you say that is the main reason why hospitals can
buy so much cheaper?

Mr. WicHTMAN: The main part of the savings is consequent on bulk
purchasing. If one buys large amounts from any company, say in the thousand
or ten thousand dollar bracket, the unit cost will be much less.

Mr. MackAseEY: You purchase your bulk supplies from reputable firms?
Mr. WicHTMAN: Yes.

Mr. MACKASEY: Do you know of any instance of these companies selling
below cost?

Mr. WiGHTMAN: I do not know what the cost is.
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Mr. MACKASEY: You also mentioned the advantage of the federal, pro-
vincial, municipal sales tax relationship to medicines and its effect upon the
purchase price?

Mr. WIiGHTMAN: Yes.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: Do hospital administrators find themselves in a better
bargaining position? In other words do you not think there is an advantage in
the fact that the hospital administrators can say to the drug company rep-
resentative that unless they quote such and such a price the drugs will be
purchased elsewhere?

Mr. WiGHTMAN: Yes.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: I am wondering whether the Canadian Medical Association
for example has made any recommendation in this regard. I do not question
your right to express opinions and to include them in a brief such as this,
but what are your objections to the recommendations of the restrictive trade
practices commission? Has a representative of the Canadian Medical Associa-
tion read the report of the Kefauver commission in respect of the type of
competition which takes place allowing hospitals to reduce the price of drugs
by two or three hundred per cent?

Mr. WicHTMAN: I have not read that report.

The CHAIRMAN: You are referring to a report of a United States commis-
sion?

Mr. OrLikOow: Yes, and I am referring to the restrictive trade practices
commission report. I should like to place on record the statement that I do
not think anyone is suggesting, and certainly I have not made this sugges-
tion today, that the choices we have are between government production at
cost and production by drug companies which obviously are going to require
a profit. The question to be answered is whether they are going to make a
legitimate profit. The restrictive trade practices commission obviously thought
their profits were too high, otherwise it would not have recommended changes
in the legislation which would reduce the profits. I think this is the point
which must be kept in mind.

Mr. WHELAN: Someone made the statement that private firms should
have more research facilities than the government, but I am of the opinion
that the consuming public pays for the research no matter where it is done.
Do you disagree with that sugestion or do you feel that civil servants would
be less efficient than individuals working for private industry?

Mr. WicHTMAN: I do not think the question of efficiency is involved.
The question involved is motivation. There is a question involued of interplay,
cost and effect. To be useful I think research must go on on all the surround-
Ing planes. I do not think it should be delegated entirely to the private drug
firm any more than it should be entirely delegated to universities or entirely
Placed in the hands of civil servants. Very useful research has taken place in
all of those three areas interdependently. Sometimes the drug companies
have taken a discovery made at a university or government laboratory and
fashioned it into something useful from a treatment point of view. I do not
believe in centralization of research to anyone of these three areas.

Mr. WHELAN: Do you think Canadians are contributing enough per capita
to research?

Mr. WicaT™MAN: No.

Mr. WHELAN: During a recent trip we made to Montreal we received
Certain figures by way of comparison in respect of per capita contributions.
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If I remember the figures correctly the United States was contributing to
research on the basis of one dollar per person, England twenty-five cents per
person and Canada ten cents per person.

Mr. WicHTMAN: I believe that is about right.

Mr. MACRASEY: At the bottom of page 9 of your brief there is a reference
to the Soviet Union, and without going into the whole matter, it is my impres-
sion that you suggest that doctors in Canada receive too much direct mail
information whereas the complaint of the doctors in the Soviet Union is that
they receive too little. I think your reference is the Harvard Business Review
of September—October, 1962. I read that particular article but not having
it here to substantiate my remarks perhaps you would assist me. I believe that
article made a very strong case in respect of the fact that in the Soviet
Union where private industry is practically nonexistent the production of
drugs is more costly than it is in democratic countries. Would you care to
comment in that regard?

Mr. WiGHTMAN: I will pass that question to Dr. Kelly.

Mr. KeLLy: I also read that article with great interest. It was significant
that the same kinds of complaints were presented in reverse. Doctors here may
say that they receive too much direct mail information whereas doctors in
the Soviet Union appear to lack essential information in respect of new
products and drugs. We say drugs are too expensive but they do not know the
price and use them freely but suggest that they are expensive and perhaps
even more expensive under their system. The title of the article of course was
“Ironic Contrast”. The same complaints were presented in reverse and that
is an ironic situation.

Mr. MArRcoux: Do you know of any new drug discovered behind the iron
curtain in the last ten or twenty years?

Mr. WIGHTMAN: Yes. New antibiotics have been produced there, for
example, and they are quite different than ours.

Mr. ORLIKOW: I should like to ask a question in respect of antibiotics.
Is it not a fact that we have had much too wide use of antibiotics for a number
of years, and I am thinking for example of antibiotic losenges which were
on the market at one time but have now been discontinued?

Mr. WiGHTMAN: Yes.

Mr. OrLiIKOW: I understand this limitation resulted from the fact that
indiscriminate use of this kind of drug led to the development of a much
more resistant strain of the bacteria?

Mr. WicHTMAN: The indiscriminate use of these antibiotics led to the
development of sensitive patients. The patients became sensitized so that when
they needed an antibiotic they were allergic to many and required a different
kind. I think the indiscriminate use of antibiotic losenges would not produce
resistant organisms. I think the use by hospitals of antibiotics may have
created this situation.

Mr. OrLIKOw: That involves my next question. Is it not a fact that for a
number of years antibiotics were used in cases which did not require their
use thus contributing to the necessity to use much greater doses than say
10 or 15 years ago in order to get the same results?

Mr. WicHTMAN: The answer to your question is again divided into two
parts. It is true that antibiotics were used in an attempt to prevent bacterial
infection either in advance of or after an operation. This popular use of
antibiotics necessitated the use of more and more antibiotics because there
was an organism that became resistant, but that use did not make it necessary
to use larger amounts of antibiotics.
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Mr. OrRLIKOW: Are the doses of penicillin, for example, which are now
being used, much greater than they were in the past? The doses are now reach-
ing the millions of units stage.

Mr. WicHTMAN: That size doseage is being used only in cases of a very
small number of infections, but not in respect of ordinary use. That size
dose is only given to people infected with a certain type of bacteria. This
requires the use of doses at these astronomical levels and would have been
expensive and difficult to administer 10 or 20 years ago.

Mr. SroGgan: I should like now to revert back to a consideration of
research. I know that atomic energy of Canada has quite a large research
establishment at Chalk River. It has been found that it was impractical to
continue expanding that establishment, and it has been felt that if this
establishment was broken up there would be a certain amount of competition
so to speak with more interresearch and results. I understand that is why the
new research centre in Manitoba was established. I have the personal feeling
that both government and private industry feel there should be interaction
in the research field. Do do you know whether the national research council,
for example, when it develops a new drug allows companies to produce
that drug without paying royalties, or is the price of production affected by
royalties paid to the government for the use of such drugs?

‘ Mr. WiGHTMAN: I believe an organization called the national development
Incorporated patents things for the government.

Mr. McNEIL: I cannot answer that question.

Mr. WiGHTMAN: I think there is a mechanism in existence which looks
after patents in respect of grantees or government employees, if you want
to put it that way. I think there is some mechanism of that type in existence.

Mr. SLoGgaN: Do you think that if royalties were not payable to the govern-
ment in respect of drugs produced by government organizations the cost of
such drugs to consumers would be reduced?

Mr. WicHTMAN: I suppose those costs would be reduced, yes.

Mr. Srocan: Has your association made any direct recommendation to the
government for the abolishment of sales tax on drugs?

. Mr. KeLLy: Yes, we have made representations to anyone who would
listen to us. Perhaps the most recent representation was made to the minister
of finance when he was kind enough to invite us to advise him in respect of
matters of concern to us. We made that recommendation to him in respect
of sales tax as well as to the royal commission on taxation and the royal
Commission on health services. We have also made such a recommendation
to anyone who would listen to us. We sincerely believe that this is one
§Ctivity within the competence of this parliament which should be exercised
In the direction of making prescribed drugs eleven per cent cheaper to
DPatients,

Mr. SLoGaN: Have drug manufacturing firms indicated that they would
Pass the savings on to the consumer if the sales tax were rescinded?
¢ Mr. KELLY: Actually we have had many discussions with them and I have
Inferred that they would be just as happy as we if the sales tax were elimi-
nated. I believe this tax is applied at the wholesale level of drug distribution
and there are certain complications in respect of abolishing it at the retail drug-
store level. I think the pharmaceutical industry would certainly see that the
Saving was passed on to the consumer.

Mr. Srocan: Is there a federal and provincial sales tax on drugs?

: Mr. KeLLy: That varies from province to province. In some provinces there
IS an exception in the case of drugs used in hospitals.



78‘ SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Mr. MackAseY: Am I correct in assuming that when an article which has
been taxed eleven per cent gets to the consumer that per cent has pyramided
because the eleven per cent is placed on the item before the profit markup?

Mr. KeLLy: I have heard suggestions that that actually does occur. The
earlier you take off the tax the better it is in the long run.

Mr. MACKASEY: I have not only heard that this situation exists but know
that it does, and I refer to the fact that any product in Canada is subject to
an eleven per cent tax but unfortunately the supplier does not pay it, the
public does. By the time the public pays that tax it has pyramided to 16 or 16
and one half per cent. Perhaps one of the recommendations of this committee
should be that the eleven per cent and three per cent tax should be placed on
an article at the time of sale rather than earlier so that the profit markup is
not based on the cost of an article say $3 plus eleven per cent but rather on
the $3. Today a drug which cost $3 to produce cost the wholesaler $3.33 and
he marks it up. I think if such were the case there would be a better chance
for the elimination of this tax. In all fairness to the public and to the argu-
ment put forward by Mr. Orlikow, I suggest that the manufacturer who is
pleading, on the one hand, rather sanctimoniously for the elimination of the
eleven per cent is using that eleven per cent tax to make a greater profit. I
feel that if an article is $4 the eleven per cent should be added on to that $4
at the time of sale, plus the provincial tax, whatever it may be, rather than
added into the cost so that the profit markup is related to $4 plus eleven per
cent.

Mr. SLoGaN: I think the federal government is just as guilty in this respect.
I am not sure whether there is a tariff on drugs, but where tariffs do apply the
sales tax is applied to the cost after the tariff is applied and, therefore, the
government is actually charging double taxation. I am not sure whether this
situation applies to drugs or not but it certainly is true in respect of other
things. .

Mr. WHELAN: I should like now to revert to our consideration of research.
I am not satisfied in my mind with the suggestion in respect of how research
should be carried out. In respect of agriculture the greater amount of research
is done by civil servants, and they have done a tremendous job. I think we
should be doing more in the way of government research.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Mention was made by a member of this committee that
we received some figures in respect of the per capita contribution to research
in Canada as compared with the United States and great Britain. Is it a fact
that one of the obvious reasons why the per capita contribution in Canada is
so low is because a great percentage of drug companies existing in Canada
in fact are foreign owned and do not carry out research here, but simply
take advantage of the developments of their parent companies, whether they
take place in the United States, Switzerland, France or Great Britain, and
to that extent there is not very much we can do to encourage that kind of
research in Canada?

Mr. WicETMAN: I would not say that, because the ten per cent figure
refers to government spending on research.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not think that figure was quoted in berhaps the
right form. I do not think it had reference to research in its entirety. I do not
think it included industrial research, for example.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: There are very few products to my knowledge developed
completely in Canada. I think most of the new drugs put on the market by
companies operating in Canada are the result of developments which have
taken place in the United States and in Europe and brought here by the
parent company under some kind of licencing arrangement.
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The CHAIRMAN: You are referring to two different kinds of research. This

refers to independent research. You are talking about drug research by drug
Mmanufacturing companies. We are talking aBout research at an independent
level, and research in general.
: Mr. WHELAN: I think it was pointed out to us that the Ayerst manufactur-
Ing company have some of the largest research facilities in the world at
Montreal, so I do not think we can say that they do not do any research here
In Canada.

Mr. OrLiKOW: I did not suggest that they do not do any research here.

Mr. WHELAN: I think that inference could be drawn by any one reading
the evidence.

Mr. OrLikow: You quoted the figures in making a comparison between
what is being spent in Canada and elsewhere on research.

Mr. WHELAN: I compared the Canadian government contribution to the
contribution by the governments of the United States and the United Kingdom.
We have spent less per capita on research at universities and government
Tresearch centres than any other country.

Mr. OrLIKOW: I think that also applies to the drug companies in Canada
and we can ask their representatives when they appear.

Mr. Srocan: I should like to refer again to something I raised earlier
because I am interested in the situation existing in Alberta which was brought
about by legislation dealing with the discretion of substituting prescriptions.
V_Vas this legislation drafted and initiated by the government after consulta-
tion with the pharmaceutical and medical professions?

Mr. McNEIL: This legislation was initiated by the government without
consultation with either the pharmaceutical association or the medical asso-
Ciation.

. Mr. Srocan: The idea was that this legislation would provide a reduction
In the cost of drugs to the people of Alberta?

Mr. McNEIL: Yes.

_ Mr. SLocaN: As a result of the reasons you gave earlier in respect of legal
Implications, is it likely that the pharmacists will substitute higher priced
drugs, doing exactly the opposite thing to that which the government of
Alberta hoped.

Mr. McNEeIL: I think so.

Mr. SLoGAN: I motice at the bottom of page 6 of your brief you welcome
the recent announcement that the minister of national health and welfare
has requested the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons of Canada to
appoint an ad hoc committee to study the existing procedure whereby new
pharmaceutical products are evaluated before receiving approval for market-
Ing in Canada. Can you tell me what the Royal College of Physicians and

urgeons has done in this regard?

Mr. KeLLy: The Hon. member is referring to our brief to the royal
Commission which was submitted approximately two years ago before the
Teport of the .Royal College had been made to the government. At page 8 of
our brief we summarize the important findings of the Royal College committee
With which we agree. The first recommendation is the immediate expansion
of the staff of the food and drug directorate. I believe that the budget for
that particular department has been increased and it is- endeavour to find
Competent staff to carry out more detailed work than has been done previously.
Seccndly, the proposal of the Royal college was to amend certain regulations
uUnder the Food and Drug Act to provide for more adequate clinical trials of
hew drugs in Canada before they are released for sale, to ensure substantial
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evidence of clinical effectiveness for the purpose intended. Considerable
progress has been made in implementing that proposal and I think it is
significant that they recommend clinical trials on new drugs in Canada,
because there is nothing more convincing to the Canadian doctor than being
able to read reports of trials, whether favourable or unfavourable, of a new
drug by the investigators in this country whom he knows and has confidence
in.

Mr. SLoGAN: Do you feel that the Canadian medical association might have
a greater role to play by perhaps assuming the responsibility of establishing
clinical trials? Surely that would be the natural body to carry them out?

Mr. KELLY: There is a question here of whether we should do this or
whether it should be done by that very esteemable organization, the medical
research of Canada which, as you know, was founded about three or four
years ago when it was separated from the general research activities of the
national research council. That body is very competent and makes grants to
clinical and other forms of medical research. It is doing a very good job.
It does not have as much money as it required.

Mr. SLoGaN: Is this a branch of the medical association or of the govern-
ment?

Mr. KeLLy: Actually it is a government creation, shall we put it that
way, with representatives from the university and other medical and laboratory
professions.

Mr. WicHTMAN: Much of the medical sphere supports what is called
extramural research. The national research council has its own research
laboratories and does research in Ottawa on its own premises. The medical
research council by and large supports research in universities, teaching
hospitals and units of this sort done by people, whether or not government
employees in the sense of national research council people who do carry out

research at all levels. But it carries out research on all levels, that is basic

science and clinical research applied in the medical sphere. So that this research
and these clinical trials would actually be done in the community, and probably,
in the first instance, the ones that are developing absolutely new drugs
would be doing it in universities.

Mr. OrLikow: There has been a good deal of writing in the medical
journals in the United States about the difficulties which have been encountered
in the testing of drugs by drug companies to which these are sent for clinical
testing, and by doctors who are very often very busy in their practices and who
have no time or real experience to evaluate the actual effect of these drugs.
I wonder if the medical association has given any consideration to the question
of clinical testing of new drugs in particular?

Mr. WicHTMAN: We certainly have.

Mr. McNEeL: You ask if we have given thought to this. The department
of clinical therapeutics in a university centre would seem to provide the
most reliable information. I do understand that very satisfactory trials have
been carried out by busy practitioners right across Canada, and that pharm-
aceutical houses have felt that they received very worth-while reports from
other than the large centres, large hospitals and large universities.

Mr. OrLIkKOW: I was not suggesting for a moment that none of the testing
done by general practitioners is satisfactory, but I have here an article which
appeared in the American Journal of Public Health in May of 1961, its sub-
ject being the clinical value of drugs, the sources of evidence, where the
author raises very clear questions about some of the testing procedures in
the United States. I just wonder if we have had any reports of discussions
among the medical profession in Canada on this important subject?

B -
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1 Mr. SLocaN: It would appear to me that a medical practitioner can, I
think, give a better evaluation of the clinical effects of a drug than some
therapeutic centre because his relationship with the patient may be long
standing and he would know the patient personally. I think he would be in a
better position to observe the effect of a drug on a patient rather than some
!:herapeutic centre where the patient reports now and then and where there
is really no personal relationship.

Mr. WIGHTMAN: We have had discussions with the medical section of
the Canadian Pharmaceutical Association which is made up of doctors whose
responsibility to the industry is to arrange these tests and trials of drugs. I
think it is important to emphasize that tests of new drugs have to go on at
various levels, depending on the stage in their development. There is a stage
When they must be tested and very carefully controlled by a highly powered,
scientific institution, until initial information has been obtained, but as time
goes on and more and more is known about the drug and about its risks in
application, there comes a time when it must be tested in the community by
the practical physician under circumstances similar to those in which it will
be used before it is finally introduced and before you know what it is capable
of doing and what are its real dangers. So there is a stage of drug testing
Which is carried out by the general practitioner in a community and which
Must be done in this way. It might be that certain drugs might have reached
this stage too soon, but by and large it is certainly one of the very important
Phases of drug testing which we could not do without.

Mr. OrLikow: Is it not a fact that a very large percentage of the new
Products are not really new products but variations of other products? In this
article they list in the United States 43 new products, of which only 16 wers
original products, 10 were new sorts of old products, and 17 were derivatives
of known drugs. How can the doctor, who is busy in practice, really judge

OW much better or how little worse the variation is-than before? Is this not
2 question which should be considered by the medical association?

Mr. WigaTMAN: It has been discussed. The decision as to whether this can
be done or should be done by doctors really depends on the circums'tance‘s,
and it is the responsibility of the person who does the testing. Sometimes it
€an be done very well, but sometimes it is very difficult.

i Mr. Marcoux: I do not think the committee should have any reason to
Dfer that any doctor is interested in providing a low grade quality of ;ngdxcme,
» being myself a medical practitioner, I am interested in prgwdmg 1':he
Iest quality of drug, and I rely on the most important sources of information
can. Of course, when I am busy, I cannot delve further into the matter as
mucl_’ as I would like, but I have no intention of providing a low grade
g:ahty of medicine, Therefore, even though the medical practitioner has not
th_ery opportunity to test the drug for himself, I am sure he 1s doing every-
lng_ Ppossible. There is no reason at all to imply that he is not m.terested in
Providing the best care he can for his patients as far as it is possible. !
co“kliwr- SLocan: I should like to follow that up. I yvpnder if D;. McNeil
ang answer this question. We, who are general practitioners, are Dusy muig
e we do not have time to evaluate these things. Do you think there shoul
e a body in the Canadian Medical Association, or the medical research council,
another body, that could evaluate new drugs and pass some sort of
€cision on them to the practitioners who use these drugs so that they would
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C.M.A. specification number so and so”. Every practitioner has a list of these
specifications and he knows what these specifications are; he knows whether
he can accept this drug or not. This would do a great deal to reduce the
cost of drugs to the consumer. I think it would also be a good guide to
the profession. I think both the government and the medical profession would
have a part to play in it. Do you feel this would be of service to the public and
to the profession?

Mr. McNEeiL: We think that this is the most important part of our
presentation, that such a body be set up. That it be entirely in the hands of
the medical association we are not certain. This is a tremendous responsibility
and it would be very costly. As you have stated, the government, doctors,
industry and pharmaceutical men altogether join in this venture. To state
that the medical association should carry this out, I think would be impractical.

Mr. SLocan: I do not say they should carry this out on their own, but the
medical research council would be the logical body. You have a representation
there from the drug manufacturing industry, the government research bodies
and the medical association. For instance, in the matter of penicillin, they
would draw up certain specifications as far as quality control, the manufactur-
ing end and various things like that, are concerned. They would then say,
“This is specification number so and so.” It would then be up to the govern-
ment to see that these specifications -are met at the manufacturing end, and
that when this was met by the manufacturer he would be given the privilege
of putting on the label that the drug met this specification. When I call at
my druggist and say that I want a drug which meets these specifications, I
am not particularly interested which company it comes from, but I am
interested in having it meet certain specifications. The druggist and the
doctor would then have a guide, and the government would do something
that would reduce the cost of drugs to the consumer. I do not think the
consumer is benefiting other than receiving protection as far as the drugs
on the market are concerned, but he is not benefiting in the cost of the drugs
at the moment. If such a body carried out these procedures, it would do
something to benefit the consumer in the way of cost.

Mr. Kerry: I think we agree with that. We stated that there are two
deficiencies, as we see them: the doctor must be assured that what he orders
is of high quality, potency and safety. That is the first thing, and that is best
done by an unofficial agency such as the food and drug directorate. Secondly,
the doctor needs information on new drugs, an unbiased objective appraisal
of these new drugs regarding what they do and what they want them to do,
their dangers, and all the rest of it. Two years ago we thought the second
function should be assumed by the food and drug directorate. I think our minds
are changing because we have had conversations with such bodies as the
Canadian Pharmaceutical Association, the Canadian Association of Hospital
Pharmacists, the Canadian Pharmacological Association and our own committee
on pharmacy. Between us we would be able to establish that essential drug
information. I am not saying it will go precisely that way, but we are talking
about it.

Mr. SLoGAaN: You would have to draw up your own pharmacopoeia, and
say that these are the benefits and these are the toxic effects of the drug, and
so forth. I think it is long overdue. In mentioning advertising and such informa-
tion, I want to compliment the Canadian Medical Association on its publication.
It is a wonderful thing and a good guide. I think it is something they can well
be proud of.

Am I to understand then that the different bodies are working towards this
end?
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Mr. KELLY: We are in the early stages of conversation with each of them
because they are all interested and they all believe they have some expert
knowledge to contribute to such a body. Our principals have not said that this
Is the way it is going to be, but we are negotiating and informing ourselves as
to whether it can be done better by a voluntary body or whether the original
;»h%ught that this function should be carried out by the food and drug directorate
S better.

~ Mr. Mackasey: Do you not feel that a more pressing problem is the licens-
ing of the manufacturers? I keep coming back to the conversation we had that
all these are necessary and desirable provided they are applicable to the industry
In general. However, there does exist in Canada certain manufacturers who are
not up to the standards we would expect from someone producing drugs. For
Some reason they are finding it quite easy to circumvent policing action or the
responsibility that the food and drug directorate puts on them.

Earlier in our conversation a suggestion had been made that all manu-
facturers should be subjected to some form of licensing. Do you think this is of
Immediate concern, or is it a long range objective, or else is it an idealistic
condition which we cannot achieve? I, as a layman, cannot understand how
We can guarantee safety in everything. You doctors mentioned earlier that all
these phases are vitally necessary to reduce the cost of producing drugs, there-
fore the temptation by such operators would be to sell cheaper, regar@less of
Quality. We find manufacturers in Canada who are actually circumventing the
food and drug directorate. I am wondering how this can be prevented.

Mr. KeLLy: We think licensing is one means of preventing it. It would
control the manufacturer in Canada. But of all the fields, perhaps the field of
Phal'rnacology is the most international, and it will not control the manufacturers
In Naples and other sources of cheap drugs which we find in Canada. It would

applicable only in this country, but it would go in the right direction.

Mr. OrLIkOW: There would not be much use in licensing manufacturers in
Canada if you did not at the same time licence distributors so that you could
€Xercise the same degree of control on drugs that are brought into Canada.

There would have to be a parallel action or else the whole job would not

Ve been done properly.
th Mr. SrLogan: Is there now not as much control on imported drugs,' because
“Aese drugs are being inspected as they come across the border in many
IMstances? Perhaps they do not have all the knowledge at the source where they
are produced, but as far as drugs being imported to the country are concerned,
€Y undergo the same tests as any other drugs.
th Mr. Wigarman: I do not think so, unless someone asks to hgve it tested, and
€N again they have to specify the tests which they want carried out.

.Mr, Srogan: I understand that if any drug crosses the border, the customs
Official has to advise the food and drug directorate so that they can go and take
¢ Sample of the drug. This is their normal procedure. However, they are not
Notified of every batch of drugs imported to Canada where there is no food and
€ man at the port of entry.
oh Ml‘- MCcNEIL: I think the food and drug directorate may take thi§ drug and

®Mically test it and label it regarding its substance, but I do not think we can
Quite so sure of its functions, as professor Wightman has said.
im Mr. Stocan: Do you not think that any large quantities of the drug being
in\? Orted to this country which are manufactured in another country should be
estigated at the source, that the manufacturing set up in that country should
InVestigated before the drug is sold in Canada?
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Mr. McNEeIL: We understand they try to do that and they make certain
trips to the old country to examine the manufacturing facilities. However, this
seems like a tremendous job. I understand some of these pharmaceutical houses
are nothing more than a small garage, or something.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: Mr. Chairman, as far as I can recollect, Dr. Morrell at
the last meeting said that these drugs are not allowed to come into Canada and
are not allowed to be used in institutions or any other place without having
first of all come up to the standards laid down by the food and drug directorate.
If they can prove that they meet those standards, then they are accepted, but
not before. He was very emphatic on that, the last time he was here.

The CHAIRMAN: If I may say it, the difference here I think is obvious, that
the drugs undergo certain tests but they are mostly a quantitive control as
opposed to qualitative control. This is the big difference.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: He said they would accept evidence from reliable sources
and other such information in the country of its origin and then would not
have to submit it to all those tests in Canada, but if they were not satisfied
with those tests, they would refuse entry of the drug.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Surely the point is that if we could devise a system—if we
have not got it yet and I do not think anyone would argue that we have
achieved the optimum in testing—whereby any drugs which were for sale
in Canada, whether they were produced in Canada or outside, could get through
the licensing or through adequate testing, the doctors could be assured of the
standard which they required and then of course you would be able to get the
kind of price competition without reduction in quality which the doctor wants
and which the prospective purchaser of the drug wants. Surely that is what
we ought to be aiming at.

Mr. KeLLy: This comes back to the seal of approval by some reputed
authority that what is in the package is as represented and is trustworthy.

Mr. MackrASEY: This is precisely what Dr. Morrell said. My question was
in respect of drugs being brought into the country. Are there not policing
methods to make sure the country of origin is specified as well as the ingredient?
And Mr. Morrell said:

If a drug is brought in, packaged and ready for sale, we have an
opportunity to see it at the customs, and we do take samples there and
hold it for testing; or we can let it go through customs and go to the
distributor.

Further on he says:

We do not have a food and drug inspector at every customs port, I am
not sure how many there are, but there are hundreds of ports, I believe.
We do have an arrangement with the customs officers that when a ship-
ment of drugs comes in they notify our nearest inspector who goes out
and looks at them. We do have our own inspectors at the largest ports
who go right down and look at the manifests, and so on, and take
samples at the port of entry.

The point I am getting at is that these are raw materials. After going
through the port of entry and into the hands of the manufacturers in this
country who may or may not be reputable, what control do we have over these
raw materials from that point on to the finished goods if we do not have a
system of licensing of all the people who can be using the raw materials and
turning them into the finished products?

Mr. WicHTMAN: I think what you are speaking of has to do with drugs
packaged for sale, but it does not apply to a substance in bulk.

B e R
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Medilfal_‘ll IAVIACK-ASI:‘JY: Mr. (;hairman, is this the only appearance of the Canadian
: Ssociation or will they be back on Friday?
of thehirC*fIAIRMAN: This 1s their only appearance. This is the presentation
Steering ‘le Of_ the Can_adlan Medical Association. One of the witnesses the
i o aCOY.nm.ltﬁee considered calling is' I?r. Wightman himself. We will call
and side ;le ;Zlggll;i.ual to speak on the clinical aspects of drugs such as safety
quesgf)rﬁ C;Rtl.mow: I would like to make a suggestion. To me, the important
ion is inol ;le cost of drugs in the submission of the Canadian Medical Associa-
Sy cluded in part of theu: statement on page 12 of the brief where they
sion. t};\ylth the recom{nenfiatx.ons of the Restrlctlvg Trade Practices Commis-
ey mIk that question is likely to take a considerable period of time in
shoulq trn. n line with our genera} agreement I would like to suggest that we
of drygs 3I' tO'Separate the two topics, namely the safety of drugs and the price
2 rug - I think we should agree that when we come to the question of the cost
fn Ordgi YcVe a.sk the Canadian Medical Association representatives to come back
lett 0 discuss that subject with us. In that light I would be agreeable to
‘Ag this go for the time being.
diScus:icril’ while I am on that subject, I think that at some point when we are
Pract; g the cost of drugs we should ask the officials of the restrictive trade
Ces commission to make a presentation and to appear before us.

SuchMr' MACKASEY: 'First of all, I would like to commend our witnesses for
Wwith ?}1;1 excellent brief. You have indicated the Medical Association disagrees
shoulq € Proposal of the restrictive trade practices commission, that Canadg
Tater abolish patents on drugs. We will have an opportunity to discuss this

topchhe CHAIRMAN: As Mr. Orlikow has suggested, this is such an important

iScu’s a_nd it would be S0 time consuming, I think at a later date when we are

Py _51f§g costs we will invite representatives from the Canadian Medical

Clation for a separate discussion of this one topic.

madim[;' WILLOUGHBY: Mr. Chairman, I want to revert back to a statement

Which Yy Dr. Morrell when he appeared before us. In respect of new drugs
are offered in the United States, Dr. Morrell said:

I doubt very much whether the food and drug administration

Would accept our say so or the say so of any other country in respect

of a new drug that was offered in the United States. They would

demand it go through the procedures that they require for the intro-

duction of a new drug into the united States and, likewise, although

We would accept clinical evaluation if it was adequate according to our

Tequirements—that is, pharmacological and toxicological testing done

In the United States—nevertheless, we want to see what was done and

We would want to see the complete details of the manufacturers’ knowl-

edge of that drug, just as they do. I think it would be unwise to accept

bhndly any drug without taking a look at the requirements of any

Particular country, even the United States.

The CHammaN: Dr. Willoughby, would you give the page reference?
of thMr' WiILLouGHBY: This is on pages 30 and 31 of proceedings number 2
IS committee,
I Wo llle C_HAIRMAN: If there are no further questions there are three things
;_d like to say at this time.
of thelrst of all, on behalf of the committee I would like to thank the members
for g, 2nadian Medical Association, Dr. McNeil, Dr. Kelly and Dr. Wightman,
of thp Pearing before us this morning to be our expert witnesses on behalf
®Ir association.
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The second thing I would like to mention is that one week from today,
June 9, Dr. Morrell is due to appear before us to continue his testimony in
respect of the food and drug directorate. I Just happen to know that during
that time the Canadian Pharmaceutical, Association is having a convention
here in Ottawa and the members are going to be shown through the workings
of the food and drug directorate. Would you like me to approach Dr. Morrell
and to say that instead of him coming here we would like to go over there
to see how his department works. They are already going to be set up to show
the workings of their directorate to another body so we would not be incon-
veniencing them. What is your feeling on that?

Mr. MAarcoux: I move that we take advantage of this situation and visit
the food and drug directorate at the same time as this other body.

Mr. WiLLouGHBY: I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: Then, I will approach Dr. Morrell to see if we can visit
them one week from today. Then, we can have Dr. Morrell back on the Friday
instead of Tuesday.

The third thing I would like to mention is that in our last session we
passed a resolution dealing with living and travelling expenses of witnesses,
together with a certain per diem allowance. Before we can do this we again
have to have the same motion, and I would like to have someone move that this
committee pay the reasonable living and travelling expenses incurred by
Dr. McNeil, Dr. Wightman and Dr. Kelly, by reason of their appearance before
this committee, and that a per diem allowance be made to them. I suggest that
it be the same as the amount paid during our last session.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: I so move.
Mr. Marcoux: I second the motion.
Mr. WiLLouGHBY: Was that allowance adequate and satisfactory?

The CHAIRMAN: I do not know. We did not have any comment one way
or the other.

Mr. MACKSEY: How much was it?

The CHAIRMAN: It was $50 a day.

Mr. WiLLOUGHBY: Expenses?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. It is really a very small amount. I understand this

has been the amount which is now accepted by the committee for professional
or expert witnesses. ‘

If there are no other problems, gentlemen, we will adjourn.
Mr. OrLIKOW: Is there a meeting on Thursday?

The CHAIRMAN: There is a meeting on Friday at which time the Canadian
Pharmaceutical Association will be here. The meeting will commence at 9.30
a.m.
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APPENDIX “A"

SUMMARY OF THE INTRODUCTORY REMARKS MADE TO THE
PARLIAMENTARY COMMITTEE ON FOOD AND DRUGS
WHEN THEY VISITED MOUNT ROYAL CHEMICALS
LIMITED AT DORVAL, QUE., ON MAY 28, 1964,

BY MR. ROGER LAROSE, PRESIDENT

Mount Royal Chemicals Limited is a typical pharmaceutical manufacturing
Plant in that it transforms therapeutically active substances into pharmaceutical
produ?ts. It is owned on an equal share capital basis by two Canadian companies
of Swiss origin—Sandoz Pharmaceuticals, Division of Sandoz (Canada) Ltd.,
and CIBA Company Limited. Mount Royal Chemicals Limited, with its neigh-
bours~CIBA and Sandoz—form a compact which exemplifies the growth of the
Pharmaceutical industry in Canada. Both CIBA and Sandoz came to Canada in
the 20s and started their operations by importing finished pharmaceutical
Products. They later imported pharmaceutical products in bulk, tablets,
ampoules and other pharmaceutical forms and packaged them in Canada. Later
Still they started manufacturing the tablets, ampoules, ointments and solutions.

th In 1957 CIBA and Sandoz incorporated Mount Royal Chemicals Limited for
€ Specific purpose of manufacturing pharmaceutical products primarily for both
gartners and also, if facilities were available, for other Canadian manufacturers.
andoz had already settled at Dorval and CIBA was about to. The new com-
f}?nY~Mount Royal Chemicals Limited, purchased a piece of land betw_een
€ Sandoz and the CIBA tracts. Construction of Mount Royal Chemicals Limited
Wa§ sStarted in October 1958 and finished a year later, so that the production
acilities of CIBA, which were already available to Sandoz, were moved from
OWntown Montreal to the Mount Royal Chemicals Limited plant at Dorval.
£ € available floor space of Mount Royal Chemicals Limited is 56,000 square
e.et_and in 1963 it produced over 200-million compressed tablets, about 70-
rmulOn coated tablets, 5-million capsules, half a million ampoules, 75,000 litres
lquid preparations, 20,000 kilos of cream or ointment and 4} million finished
packages.
In March, 1960, Mount Royal Chemicals Limited opened a pharmaceutical
Tesearch laboratory.
Sandoz and CIBA remain completely independent companies both in Canada
d abroad. In Canada, while Mount Royal Chemicals Limited has invgs!:ed
lijlnillion and employs a staff of 91 persons, Sandoz has invested 1.6 million
With a staff of 110, and CIBA 3} million with a staff of 198.
£ At Mount Royal Chemicals Limited, pharmaceutical substances emanating
oM the research conducted by CIBA and Sandoz respectively in Switzerland
and in other parts of the world are manufactured into pharmaceutical products.
actically all of the raw material, other than CIBA’s and Sandoz active sub-
ahces, are purchased in Canada. All substances are tested at Mount Royal
i €Micals Limited when received and tested again after their incorporation
nto g finisheq product.
oth Mount Royal Chemicals Limited is manufacturing also for a few customers
€T than CIBA and Sandoz, for instance, Geigy.
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APPENDIX “B"

REMARKS MADE BY MR. JOHN B. FROSST AT COMMENCEMENT OF
VISIT BY MEMBERS OF COMMITTEE ON FOOD AND DRUGS
TO LABORATORIES OF CHARLES E. FROSST & CO. MAY 28/64

Safety of drugs has two chief aspects. One is the ratio of toxicity of a
product to its benefits. The other is the accuracy with which a product
is made. Today we are primarily dealing with the latter.

We plan to show you production and control in pharmaceutical manufac-
turing. This will include in—process control as well as control of raw materials
and finished products.

We shall not take time to show you all our research laboratories. But
because one segment of them, pharmaceutical research, is so closely allied
to production we hope you will be interested in a look at this department.

Many companies of this industry in spite of being defined as phar-
maceutical manufacturers would be deseribed more clearly if they were called
pharmaceutical developers, manufacturers and marketers. This is because
many of our companies are much more than manufacturers. Nearly all of
them are also marketers of pharmaceuticals and of course many are also basic
developers of new products.

Speaking also for the industry there are those companies who have
adequate quality control and those who may not. The new laws should soon
start having their effects on the latter. A few years ago the Canadian Phar-
maceutical Manufacturers Association started advocating the adoption of laws
to give greater assurance that Pharmaceutical Manufacturers are equipped
and staffed to be capable of assuring quality products—and that they do
indeed carry out the necessary procedures. Our Association also asked for
compulsory registration of all producers to enable the Food and Drug Division
to know of the very existence of each one and thus be able to check up on
him.

We have obtained the new regulations on minimum standards but no
regulations requiring registration. The well established companies are hoping
that the less known organization may not be overlooked from the stand-
point of inspection.

Housed in these buildings and stretched across Canada is a group of
people representative of this industry that has-been nurtured and growing
since the turn of the century. This Canadian Company provides work for
Canadians and is the means of retaining and developing professional people
for the benefit of Canada. This group of people is in reality many teams but
because they operate so well together we refer to them as members of one
team. Their efforts have been responsible for great relief to mankind here in
Canada and elsewhere. They have directly and indirectly saved and prolonged
the lives of tens of thousands of citizens of this, and recently past generations.
They are supported, of course, only through the sale of our products here
and in foreign countries or by the licensing of our processes abroad.

On this display is a summary of some of the things you will see today.

Before  we start a tour of the plant and of the laboratories Mr. Earl
Dechene our chief control chemist will give you a few more details.

S s

e S————————
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APPENDIX “C”

PHARMACY RESEARCH
by

JOHN F. MILLAR, Phm.B., B.Sc.,
Chief Research Pharmacist, Charles E. Frosst & Co.

I have been asked to outline the function and duties of the Pharmacy
Research Laboratory in our industry. The position of this department in the
general organizational setup of a pharmaceutical company is best illustrated
?y reference to a chart. Here we have shown the principal activities and steps
hat are taken in the development of a new drug product.

; I would like to emphasize that this work requires the coordinated efforts
of several specialized groups of various kinds.

1 The three main phases of activity are—Planning, Investigation and Im-
?eme{ltation. You can see that Pharmacy Research is involved in both the
hvestigation and Implementation stages of progress.

First, I will discuss our function in the area of ‘Investigation’. Let us
assume that a new chemical created by the Chemical Research group has
E:?Sed through the many tests carried out in the Pharmacology Laboratori_es
ut'l]l:}g small animals and that data has been obtained to show the potential

Uity and apparent safety of the material as a new drug.

s At this point, consideration must be given to preparing the material in a
ief‘ﬂ. and convenient physical form for further work in evaluation of the
Ug in larger animals and ultimately in human beings.

& Pharmacy Research is accordingly called in as part of the team and as-
thgned the job of formulating the new drug into suitable dosage forms such
at further studies can be carried out.

b These dosage forms may be capsules, tablets, oral liquids, suspensions or
cnlectable solutions, depending upon the chemical nature of the drug con-
€rned and its pharmacological activity.
The problems encountered in this work are often quite complex, as a
frea§ many factors are involved in designing a product that will meet all our
€quirements for physical and chemical stability, shelf-life and acceptability
Y the patient, and ultimately lend itself to being routinely manufactured on a
Production scale.
th To illustrate the development of a pharmaceutical product, I will outli‘ne
he steps involved in an actual project of our own laboratory, concerned with
e formulation of an antibiotic suspension.
1i The project assigned by our research director, was to develop an _oral
pgluld for pediatric use, which would provide a high dose of penicillin in a
tas:“%'ible suspension. The type of penicillin to be used, was a newly developed,
re eless and almost insoluble salt which had been prepared in our chemical
Search laboratory.
prOCI\LOW one might think that this would be a fairly easy, stra'ightforward
J'u-ste P‘r? involving mot too many problems. You have a crystalline pqwsler,
a nemlx it with some water, add a little sugar for flavoring and there it is—
W product. However, things are never quite as easy as they may appear

On ; % 5
the surface. On examination of the physical and chemical properties of this
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material, one of the first problems encountered by the research pharmacist
assigned to the project, was that the drug is extremely hydrophobic—that is,
it has little or mo affinity for water and can not be easily wetted to form a
suspension. Thus the first part of the job was to find a suitable non-toxic
and physiologically inert wetting agent which would permit our penicillin
powder to be dispersed in water. Mr. Findlay will demonstrate the nature
of this problem.

Once a means had been found for dispersing the drug, the next step was
to ensure that the dispersion would remain homogeneous and not settle or
pack in the bottle. This part of the work involved a search for a compatible
suspending agent which would prevent agglomeration and sedimentation.
This aspect of a suspension is highly important with potent drugs and here is
an example of an unsatisfactory suspension.

The next phase was an investigation of the chemical stability of the
drug suspended in the basic vehicle which had now been developed. This
involved the cooperation of our analytical laboratory to provide microbiological
assays of many of the experimental formulas. In this work, we found that
the pH of the suspension—that is, the degree of acidity, was very critical for

maximum stability of the drug so that stabilizing agents (buffer salts) were’

added to control this factor.

Then, a good deal of attention was devoted to the selection of suitable
flavoring and coloring materials, so as to obtain maximum palatability and a
pleasing appearance for the product. This phase also involved extensive stabil-
ity testing and analytical work to perfect a final susperision formula which
would not deteriorate in terms of activity, flavor or color on long standing.

By the time all these data has been established, several hundred man-
hours had gone into the formulation of what was, essentially, a tailor made
vehicle to provide the physician with penicillin in the form of a stable, palatable
liquid suitable for administration to children.

Problems of similar or more often, greater, complexity are also dealt with
in the formulation of other types of dosage forms. For example, the develop-
ment of tablets is a highly specialized area of technology in itself and approxi-
mately half our group are involved in tablet research in the next two labs.

A tablet is a very convenient and useful form to provide the physician with
the means for precise dosage of the many potent drugs that are presently in
use. It can also be manufactured accurately by mass production methods, with
the equipment now available in the industry.

There are, however, many important details involved in the design of a
completely satisfactory tablet. The tablet making process in general, comprises
mixing the active ingredient with suitable inert diluents, binders and disinte-
grants, forming the mixture into small granular particles having free-flow
characteristics and then subjecting the granules to compressive forces to form a
solid object.

The essential requirement in nearly all tablet formulations is that the
finished product must be very sensitive to water and digestive fluids, so that
when a tablet is swallowed, the original particles of drug are quickly and
completely available for absorption in the digestive tract.

It is-evident that carefully controlled experimental techniques are required
to evaluate and select the proper additives in a tablet formulation to meet dis-
integration standards and other requirements.

';‘o illustrate the importance of this aspect, Mr. Findlay has a small demon-
stration of tablet disintegration to show you.
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To summarize, it is the job of the Pharmacy Research group to select the
Combination of ingredients required to accomplish all the required objectives,
<_Jf a dosage form, carry out the necessary physical and chemical tests in con-
Junction with the analytical laboratory and then submit the final product to
the pharmacology and medical research groups for biological evaluation.

Now, to refer again to the chart. When all the investigational work has
been completed, the data from each stage is combined into a new drug sub-
Mmission which is sent on to the Food and Drug Directorate for their examina-
tion. If the submission complies with the FDD requirements, the new prepara-
tion may then be sold subject to the provisions of the regulations.

When clearance has been obtained and a decision has been made to go
ahead with the manufacture and marketing of the preparation, we then move
%nto the stage of Implementation and here again, Pharmacy Research is
nvolved.

At this point it is our function to draw up a manufacturing formula based
on our laboratory work, for use by the production departments to make the
Product on a large scale. This document specifies the raw materials, the pro-
Cessing directions and the product specifications for quality control and becomes

€ master record for all future production of the product.

Another function of our group is to continually review and assess products
We already have on the market in the light of newer developments that have
been discovered in our own laboratory or reported by other workers in the
field. In this way, we have a continuing objective to upgrade our older
Products in terms of quality improvement.

Our Pharmacy Research group at the present time comprises 12 technical
People, 8 pharmacists and 4 technical assistants. It is the largest lab. group of
its type in Canada and we believe, one of the most progressive.

May 28, 1964.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

FripAY, June 5, 1964.
(8)

‘The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 9:45 am. today. The
Chairman, Mr. Harry C. Harley, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Coté (Longueuil), Enns, Francis, Harley, Howe
(Hamilton South), Marcoux, Orlikow, Prud’homme, Rynard, Slogan, Whelan,
and Willoughby—(12).

In attendance: Mr. John C. Turnbull, B.S.P., Executive Director of The
Canadian Pharmaceutical Association, Inc., of Toronto.

The Chairman referred to a letter received from Mr. Claude Jodoin, Presi-
dent of the Canadian Labour Congress stating that his organization has decided
EO'C to accept the Committee’s invitation to submit a brief on the question of
_Safety of drugs”, but would like to make a submission on the cost and market-
Ing of drugs at a later date.

The Chairman announced that it has been arranged that the Committee

Visit the laboratories of the Food and Drug Directorate at Tunney’s Pasture,
uesday morning, June 9, at 9.00 o’clock.

He then read into the record the list of witnesses to appear before the
COrnmittee up to the 10th of July.

The Clerk of the Committee was instructed to supply copy of this schedule
to the Members of the Committee.

The Chairman introduced Mr. Turnbull presenting a submission on behalf
of The Canadian Pharmaceutical Association, Inc. It was agreed that the brief
taken as read, and Mr. Turnbull was questioned thereon.

Discussion concluded, the Chairman thanked the witness on behalf of the
Ommittee.
On motion of Mr. Francis, seconded by Mr. Marcoux,

Resolved,—That the Committee pay reasonable living and travelling ex-
Penses incurred by Mr. John C. Turnbull, B.S.P. of Toronto by reason of his
;?le’learance before this Committee; and that a per diem allowance be made to

! At 11:00 a.m. the Committee adjourned to Tuesday, June 9, for a visit
the laboratories of the Food and Drug Directorate.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

FripAYy, June 5, 1964.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we now have a quorum. First of all let me
iay that I have had some correspondence from the president of the Canadian
abour Congress, Mr. Claude Jodoin, saying that they felt that they would
11_0'0 submit a brief on the question of the safety of drugs but that they would
ike to appear before the committee when it is discussing cost.

Now, just briefly, I would like to go down our future schedule of meetings.
Next Tuesday we have arranged for as many of the members of the committee
Who wish to go to have a tour through the food and drug directorate. This is

ocated in Tunney’s pasture, which is at the end of Holland avenue, above
Scott street. It is about a ten to fifteen minutes ride from here. The Ontario
Pharmacists Association are going through at the same time and they are start-
Ing their tour at nine o’clock, which would mean it would be a little bit earlier
an we are used to. I have my car and would be glad to take anybody out who
Would like to go. We would have to leave here about a quarter to nine. Miss
: li“’al‘d has also a car and would be willing to take anybody out, and I am
Wre so have other members. So, instead of a regular meeting next Tuesday,
ae will go out to the food and drug directorate. This will give the men}bers
tn opportunity to actually see what the department does. If anybody wishes
2 g0, please be in front of the west block at twenty minutes to nine; that
11 give us more than enough time to get out there.

Mr. Exns: It is not too far from the new building, is it?

The CHARMAN: It is beside it.
m _On Friday, June 12 we will have Dr. R. F. Farquharson, chairman of the
isedlcal research council. I thought he would make an excellent witness. ¥—1e
m an ex professor of medicine at the University of Toronto, and is now chair-
§ an of the medical research council. I know a lot of members are interested
1 research.
a .Of} Tuesday, June 16 we have Dr. Morrell of the food and drug directorate
8ain in this room, and we will be able to continue our questioning of the
and drug directorate.
ciat'on June 19 we have the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Asso-
n ion. On Tuesday, June 23, we will have the Canadian Association of Con-
COLnterS, Mrs. Plumptre. On June 26 we will have Dr. R. Imrie of the poison
os rol centre. He is paediatrician in charge of the poison control centre at the
Pital for sick children in Toronto.
laboThe next two dates are blank. On July 7

ratories i
a briet herei and on July 10, Cyanamid of Cana

our visitor is Lederle reseal"ch
da Limited will be presenting

ulone of those two dates, and it is my suggestion we ask him to come on
Y 3, and perhaps leave June 30 blank until we are sure what will happen

on
the days surrounding July 1.

What we might do is to have the agenda circulated to the members.
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Mr. Exns: That is a good idea.

The CHATRMAN: Is it the wish of the committee to do what I have suggested,
that we invite Dr. Cameron, who is the gentleman in charge of the psychiatry
at McGill University, on July 3, and at the moment leave June 30 blank?

It is agreed.

Gentlemen, I would like to introduce this morning Mr. John Turnbull,
executive director of the Canadian Pharmaceutical Association. I am sure you
have all received the blue brief. It is a 16 page brief. I am not sure how many
of the members have studied it. I think Mr. Turnbull is willing to either take
it as read or to read it, whichever the committee wishes.

Mr. OrLIKOW: How much time have we got?
The CHAIRMAN: The house sits at 11 o’clock.
Mr. OrLIROW: Is it planned that we meet later?

The CHAIRMAN: It was not planned. It really depends on what happens.
Usually we have been able to finish with the witness in this length of time.
Perhaps today we will not be able to do so. I am not sure whether you are
available, Mr. Turnbull?

Mr. Turnbull says he is available this afternoon if the committee wishes
him to come back.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Subject to my usual reservation that we have this organiza-
tion back when we are going to discuss the question of costs, I think we can
finish this morning, as far as I am concerned anyway.

The CHAIRMAN: Have the members of the committee read the brief or do
they wish it read? We will take it as read.

(NoTE: The brief referred to follows):

We are pleased to present The Canadian Pharmaceutical Association* before
the Special Committee on Food and Drugs of the House of Commons. In so doing,
it is our aim to make known the views of The Association concerning matters
related to drug control and pertinent information respecting the distribution of
drugs and the provision of pharmaceutical services in Canada.

Identification and Orientation

1.1 The Canadian Pharmaceutical Association Inc., was founded in 1907 and
incorporated by Federal Charter in 1924. It is representative of the Provin-
cial Statutory Pharmacy Organizations in Canada and their over 8,000
registered pharmacists, excepting those of the College des Pharmaciens de
la Province de Quebec, which withdrew from constituent membership in
the Association effective July 1, 1962. Hence, the Association membership
is comprised of pharmacists in all fields of pharmaceutical endeavour in
Canada—community retail, hospital, teaching, industry, production control
and distribution, government, armed forces, etc. In addition to the repre-
sentatives of each Provincial Statutory Pharmacy Organization, there are
seated on its Council the delegates of the Canadian Conference of Pharma-
ceutical Faculties, the Canadian Society of Hospital Pharmacists and the
C.Ph.A’s Section of Industrial Pharmacists. For the sake of clarity we
would point out that the latter bears no relation to the Canadian Phar-
maceutical Manufacturers Association which is an organization of certain
companies involved in the manufacture and distribution of pharmaceutical
products in Canada.

*Nore: The initials ‘C.Ph.A.’ which appear from time to time in this brief refer to the Cana*
dian Pharmaceutical Association, Inc.
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The views of Canadian Pharmacy concerning drug control and related
matters having an effect, direct or indirect, on the health and welfare of
Canadians have from time to time been made known by The Canadian
Pharmaceutical Association in presentations both to legislators and those
charged with the administration of legislation. The Association has detailed
these in extensive presentations made before various legislative committees
and Royal Commissions. In particular, we respectfully draw the attention
of the Special Committee on Food and Drugs to the Briefs presented by The
Association before hearings and meetings of (1) The Royal Commission on
Government Organization, July 31, 1961; (2) The Restrictive Trade Prac-
tices Commission, October 24-27, 1961; (3) The Royal Commission on
Health Services, May 25, 1962; (4) The Special Committee of the Royal
College of Physicians and Surgeons reviewing new drugs, September 27,
1962; (5) The Royal Commission on Taxation, May 2, 1963. In addition, The
Association assisted during hearings of the Ontario Select Committee on
Drugs and has published views on its Report. Too, Pharmacy’s organizations,
in every province, have extended the wholehearted co-operation of the
profession to provincial legislators and provincially orientated committees.

This presentation, then, will, in the main, attempt to recapitulate many
of the matters which have been discussed previously and, where possible,
update the facts and figures believed to be of particular interest.

Pharmaceutical Legislation

Although the British North America Act clearly designates health mgtters
as a provincial responsibility, drugs, as such, are not specifically mentioned
and thus, legislation pertaining to them involves matters of concern to both
Federal and Provincial Governments. Federally, legislation based on con-
stitutional power in relation to Criminal Law is intended to prgtect the
consumer from health hazards and from fraud and deception arising from
the sale of drugs. Provincial legislation concerns itself with matters respect-
ing property and civil rights and deals more specifically with the actual
distribution of drugs and professional control over them.

It is the belief of The Association that the Food and Drugs Act and its
Regulations is conscientiously administered by knowledgeable and capable
bersons operating within the severe limitations of a restrictive budget of
money and personnel. Canada’s population is increasing and its rpanufactur-
Ing industry expanding, and, due to the scientific and technical aspects
involved, drug production has become most complex. Thus, we.ha\./e for
Some time emphasized the need for a well defined departmentalization f’f
food control and of drug control and we are pleased that, to a gertam
extent, this is taking place. Drug control matters should be specifically
handleq by those who have a special competence in the field .and who can
Work outside the problems besetting those who are responsfple' for food
control and do so with a complete understanding and apprematlon of all
scientific, technical and economic aspects. The Association restates its
Tecommendations:

(1) Exclusive of the Proprietary or Patent Medicines Division, the divi-
sions of the Food and Drug Directorate are the Scientific Services,
the Inspection Services, the Administrative Services, and five
regional divisions. We recommend that in each of these divisions
there be a more clear-cut differentiation between the personnel
involved and the duties of such personnel in respect to food control

and to drug control.
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(2) We recommend that consideration be given to the establishment of
either or both of the following:

(a) In addition to the present Deputy Minister (Medical) there be
a Deputy Minister (Pharmaceutical)—qualifications: Ph. D.
degree, with undergraduate or graduate training, or preferably
both, in a Pharmacy faculty.

(b) Either the Director or an Associate Director of the Food and
Drug Directorate should possess qualifications as outlined in (a)
above.

(3) Scientific Services: We recommend (a) that the central laboratory
services division include, in addition to the present pharmaceutical
chemistry section and other existing sections, a pharmaceutics sec-
tion, and that an essential requirement for technical staff in these
two sections be undergraduate, or preferably graduate, training in
a Pharmacy faculty and, further, that such individuals be classified
within the Civil Service as ‘pharmacists’; (b) that the technical
staff in each regional laboratory include one or more pharmacists,
so classified.

(4) Inspection Services: We recommend (a) that all members of the
central inspection staff whose responsibilities include the inspection
of drug manufacturing plants have at least a minimum qualification
of an undergraduate degree in pharmacy, and (b) that inpection
of retail pharmacy establishments at the regional level be carried
out by inspectors who have an undergraduate degree in pharmacy.
In this connection, we draw attention to the fact that this is the
policy followed in the Division of Narcotic Control and that a success-
ful record of enforcement has resulted.

Quality and Quality Control

Quality related to a drug preparation is something which must be built
into it and cannot merely be tested into it. In recent months, stringent
regulations have been written so that products being dispensed by phar-
macy practitioners will be know as meeting certain minimum quality
standards, at least. Full governmental supervision over manufacturing pro-
cedures should never be necessary and, indeed, is impractical from a
manpower viewpoint but it is the strong view of the Association that only
under a system of licensing at the federal level can the authorities be
assured that they have the means of scrutinizing manufacturing facilities
and control procedures. It may be argued that licensing for such purposes
falls within the constitutional right of the provinces. If this is correct, it
can be readily seen that a somewhat heterogeneous set of ten different
licensing regulations might be written relative to a nationwide problem.
We believe that provincial legislators would, in the interests of the citizens
of Canada, readily relinquish provincial prerogatives in this regard if made
aware of the problem.

The degree of quality control on drug products that is mandatory under
present regulations, is not such as to give absolute assurance to the pharma-
cist that any given batch of the product of all manufacturers will meet
required specifications and indeed, community pharmacies and institutions
cannot possibly individually equip themselves to quantitatively examine the
multiplicity of drug preparations which they handle nor could they and, i
turn, the consumer, finance such operations.
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Correction of Potential Hazards

Secret formula drug preparations sold under the Proprietary or Patent
Medicine Act are registered under a licensing procedure administered by
the Food and Drug Directorate. The Association continues to recommend
that in the best interests of the consumer, the labels of all medicinal prep-
arations should bear the common names of all active ingredients. Further,
the Association expresses its extreme concern relative to advertising per-
taining to medicinal products which does not give proper attention to the
supplying of information which should be known to the consumer of poten-
tially dangerous medications.

It is recommended that a more rigid screening of promotional claims
concerning drugs and drug preparations be instituted. Of particular signifi-
cance to those involved in the prescribing of drug therapy as well as those
who render pharmaceutical services is information concerning toxicity and
possible adverse and unpredictable side reactions.

There is evidence that the ever-increasing number of potent and poten-
tially hazardous products, both drug and non-drug, on today’s market,
require poison control information to be available on a 24-hour basis from
one central source, in addition to the present decentralized locations across
Canada.

There are, at the federal level, various pieces of legislation in addition
to the Food and Drugs Act which deal with substances hazardous to
health (such as disinfectants, pest control products and additives to
veterinary preparations) and which impose certain restrictions concerning
same, The failure of these to apply sales restrictions equally to all distribu-
tors has contributed to a lack of proper public recognition of the dangers
involved. There is a great need in Canada, federally and/or provincially,
for legislation—such as a “Hazardous Substances Act”’—which properly
controls all the many substances which do not fall naturally within
the scope of existing control legislation or which may be used for pur-
Poses other than those for which the legislation is intended (e.g.—distribu-
tion and control of methyl hydrate, an extremely dangerous poison having
common consumer, business and industrial uses, is controlled by the
Excise Act).

The C.Ph.A. supports the recommendation of the Canadian Medical
Association to the effect that information regarding toxicity hazards be
closely associated with advertising material and further suggests that
basic information regarding dosage and toxicity might well appear on all
labels and/or inserts of the manufacturer’s package of drug preparations.

The recent unfortunate occurrences which necessitated the re_ca-H- of
certain drugs from the Canadian market, point up the need to.mmate
procedures not presently in force whereby the Association and, in turn,
the associations of the provinces across Canada will be informed at the
earliest possible time when the matters regarding the questionable safety
of a drug arise subsequent to its release for general therapeutic use. Also,
it has been well demonstrated that there is a need for some central agency
to which physicians in private practice as well as in institufcional prac.-
tice may informally or otherwise report untoward drug reactions. In this
Way a toxicity information centre may receive, collate and distribute
Information on such reactions and effects of all drugs as well as industrial
and household agents.
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Review Committee and Boards

The Association, through its constant and long-standing liaison with
the federal authorities and in particular the Food and Drug Directorate,
is well aware of the need for a constant review of all matters respecting
drugs in Canada. It is the firm belief of The Association that all matters
and recommendations pertaining to drug control measures should be
implemented by moves arising from consultation with groups such as the
Canadian Drug Advisory Committee of the Department of National Health
and Welfare. This Advisory Committee, meeting at more frequent and
regular intervals, could, we are convinced, serve a much expanded role.
It is essential, too, that ad hoc committees and expert committees and
similar bodies working with reference to the Canadian Drug Advisory
Committee benefit from the availability of information dealing with
technical and professional aspects of Pharmacy.

Expressions of opinion concerning pharmaceutical matters by those
possessing no special competence in Pharmacy cannot be accepted as
expert. The Association is of the firm belief that if the public good is to
be fully served, pharmacists must be appointed to serve in advisory, admin-
istrative and staff capacities on committees and boards charged with the
health and welfare responsibilities.

New Drugs

Canadian drug legislation is well respected throughout the world. Pro-
cedures relative to the introduction of new drugs are sound. The Food
and Drug Directorate quite rightly does not function as a certifying agent
for the efficacy of drugs which it approves for marketing in Canada. A
criterion as to effectiveness should be that the manufacturer of a new drug
be required to support, with substantial evidence, the claims to be made
for it. It would be desirable for such evidence to result from clinical investi-
gations conducted under Canadian authorities.

A serious deficiency, however, in the legislation and/or its regulations
is the failure to require a manufacturer to first hold a license from the
federal authority before he may market a new drug. It is believed, too,
that specific authority should be provided by the Regulations to enable the
Directorate to cancel a ‘certificate of compliance’ and to immediately stop
all sales of a drug.

Sources of Drugs

Canada, drugwise, is a primary source of very few materials or sub-
stances. Its primary supplies, at least, must be imported for further
processing or packaging. The drug products stocked by pharmacists are
mainly those mass-produced according to standards which equal or surpass
the standards laid down in official reference texts. Drugs today are potent
and highly specific and, hence, play an important and significant role in
the therapy of the ill and diseased as opposed to the mere palliative effect
expected of them in yesteryears.

Patents

We cannot share the opinion that has been expressed by some that patents
respecting drugs be abolished. The Association is of the strongest opinion
that Canada’s patent legislation must be such as to provide for the enhance-
ment of an active, self-sustaining and ever-growing pharmaceutical indus-
try within our boundaries.

b
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Canada’s patent legislation recognizes that the inventor of a drug is
entitled to the same protection as is accorded to originators in other fields,
provided that the usable end product of his invention is freely available
to meet the needs of Canadians. It is the opinion of the Association that
patent protection should extend to a drug’s production process regardless
of its country of origin and provided, also, that in due course, but not
exceeding a period of three years or other suitable period made necessary
by the nature of the drug, it should be produced in Canadian-based manu-
facturing facilities. As at present, patent holders should have the right
to license other producers. Compulsory licensing provisions of the Patent
Act should continue to be exercised to facilitate legal production by Cana-
dian companies.

Nomenclature

The present system of naming drugs can result in a sir_xgle entity having
at least two non-proprietary names—a chemical or botamca} name, as well
as a common, generic, proper, official name—and in additlol}, tpe brand,
trade or proprietary name registered by a manufacturer or distributor.

The C.Ph.A. believes that the originator who successfl_ﬂly establishes
his right to a process patent should be accorded the priyﬂege .o_f a pro-
prietary or brand name. It is suggested, to remove confusion arising from
a multiplicity of proprietary names, other manufacturers who subseq}lently
market the same entity, whether by license arrangements or otherwise, be
restricted to the established, non-proprietary name or the originator’s brand
name by license.

The choice of proper names for new drugs is very important and it is
recommended that Canada maintain the closest possible liaison with tl}e
World Health Organization and with the United States Pharmacopoelia
Nomenclature Committee. The latter periodically publishes “United States
Adopted Names” (USAN). Preparations which combine two or more drugs
Possibly present a difficult problem; nevertheless, their naming according to
a common reference designation should be studied.

The physician and the pharmacist judges a product firsthand in the light
of the established goodwill and reputation of its maker, his method of
doing business and his ability to market products which meet certain stand-
ards of purity and potency, be they their official minimums or standards of
excellence exceeding such minimums. To the practising pharmacist, the
reputation and “ability to perform” of the manufacturer is extremely
important. The name of the manufacturing distributor and his brand-name
designations are convenient, sound reference points.

Brand Versus Generic Names

10.1 The Canadian Pharmaceutical Association does not subscribe to nor

accept the thesis that drugs having the same generic name, with or without
an added brand name, are necessarily therapeutic equivalents. There is a
great variety of dosage forms in which modern medicinals can be p‘resented
for use. While many physicians may be inclined that a drug is satisfactory
as long as it is pure and present in the requested amount, it, unfortunately,
Is a fact that the efficacy of a prescribed drug may be markedly altered by
Mmany circumstances. This arises from factors, mainly pharmaceutical, such
as the physical state of the drug, the vehicle in which it is present,
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variables in compounding procedures, methods used to reduce irritability
or to slow down rate of absorption or cause the drug to be released at
certain levels of the gastrointestinal tract. ‘Availability’ of the drug merits
as much attention today as we have been accustomed to paying to its
purity and potency. A physician must be able to anticipate consistent
results in keeping with his evaluation of a drug as observed in his previous
therapeutic uses of it.

10.2 To the pharmacist, prescribing by chemical or common name designations
permits dispensing of known reliable brands or non-brands, enables him
to better utilize his own professional training and, at the same time, permits
him to carry a less extensive inventory. However, it is completely fal-
lacious to assume that all prescriptions or even the majority of prescrip-
tions could be written by generic terminology. One survey of 844 actual
prescriptions shows that 79 were written using generic terminology while,
of the remainder, 45.56% might possibly lend themselves to the supplying
of a non-proprietary product although 13.619% were for brands for which
no other preparation was available. (ref: C.Ph.Jnl., 94,5p.22) In another
analysis of almost 3,500 actual prescriptions, it was found that in only
6.699% did the prescribing physician see fit to write using generic
terminology. (ref: R.T.P.C. Drug Hearings, p.1008)

10.3 Although a statistical review of the Association’s latest edition of “Com-
pendium of Pharmaceutical Specialties (1963)” has not been undertaken,
such a review of the 7,776 pharmaceutical products monographed in the
first edition indicated that only 25.85% represented single ingredient prod-
ucts available in customary dosage forms which are marketed by more
than one company and which could conceivably be prescribed by generic
designations. 430 different active ingredients were represented by these
2,010 products.

10.4 Hence, it is erroneous to conclude that even one-third of all prescrip-
tions could be written in generic terminology, as no figures related to
potential utilization of the drugs so classified are known.

Advertising, Promotion and Information Services

11.1 Many promotional methods are utilized by drug manufacturers and
distributors to place their names and those of their products before practi-
tions in the health professions. The distribution of samples, now legal only
under certain specific circumstances, is of continuing concern to pharma-
cists, inasmuch as members of a profession having specific knowledge of,
and legal responsibilities concerning drugs have no control over this aspect
of their distribution.

11.2 We feel that a clear distinction should be maintained between the
promotion of a drug during the initial or introductory stage and its sales
promotion after it has come into widespread use. The proper type of
promotion during the introductory phase can constitute a very useful
service to the prescribing physician and to the dispensing pharmacist. We
believe, however, that such promotion requires a special competence and
should only be carried out by knowledgeable persons having special train-
ing in Pharmacy or Pharmacology. Possibly some type of certification
should be considered.

11.3 Sales promotion, on the other hand, may vary widely as to the method.
Because a considerable degree of dissatisfaction appears to exist regarding




FOOD AND DRUGS 103

present methods, it would seem reasonable that an effort be made to estab-
lish certain minimum standards and we believe that medicine, pharmacy
and industry, working together, can study and bring forth an acceptable
code.

11.4 While advertising and promotion account for a goodly promotion of the
cost of drugs, we believe that such activities have, in turn, influenced
eventual economies brought about through mass production to meet greater
demands.

11.5 Information on drug preparations is available from many sources and
in a great variety of forms ranging from purely scientific to consumer
material. First class, factual information in summary form concerning every
drug specialty preparation available on the Canadian market, is contained
in the Association’s publication, “Compendium of Pharmaceutical Special-
ties (1963)” and the Supplements thereto. Thus, in this complete reference
text, a busy physician and pharmacist is able to find essential information
on all products.

11.6 Previous mention was made of the need for a central clearing house from
which information respecting hazardous substances could continuously
flow. It is obvious, too, that a complete “Drug Information Service” which
would bring together every piece of available information on each and
every drug would serve a great purpose in Canada. Such a service is being
advanced by the Canadian Society of Hospital Pharmacists. That Society
has carried its discussions beyond Pharmacy’s organizations and is review-
ing its proposals with medical and hospital organizations. It will not be
inexpensive to create or maintain, but for such a worthy and essential pur-
pose, it is believed that its creation would prove to be an investment in the
betterment of drug safety and in therapeutic efficiency in Canada. This
proposal merits the attention of foundations and governments which have
money available for its development.

Economics and Drug Safety

12.1 There are many matters of economics which are, of course, of signifi-
cance in any study related to drug safety. This Special Committee on Food
and Drugs is aware that other groups and committees have given advanced,
specific study to ‘dollars and cents’ matters pertaining to the manufacture,
distribution and sale of drugs in Canada. Quite rightly, the Committee is
concentrating its attention on the solving of problems which will provide
for greater safety respecting the use of drugs and respecting the protection
of the public against the misuse and abuse of them.

12.2 The Association will not, therefore, in this brief detail its opinions re-
garding the undesirable and unfair 119 federal sales tax which is applied
against sales of drugs prepared for use by individual citizens at a time
When their earning power is often reduced. Nor shall we detail the govern-
ment’s responsibility to share the purchasing of needed health care by
Providing 1009 personal income tax relief relative to such purchases.

12.3 Pharmacy in Canada—as practised by those who have assumed pro-
fessionally orientated, individual responsibilities and who have not allowed
themselves to be subjected to the adverse influences of outside, non-

harmacy pressures—provides and will continue to provide a first class,
Teadily available, ethical service with built-in, inherent safety procedures
ay in and day out.
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12.4 From the commercial retail viewpoint, a retail pharmacy is not ‘big
business’. The community pharmacist has a particular stake in good busi-
ness policies. Any tendency, influenced by indiscriminate merchandising
practices or otherwise, toward the lowering of standards must be resisted
by organized Pharmacy in that such would not be compatible with pharma-
cists’ efforts to instigate minimum standards of pharmaceutical practice
and, most certainly, lower standards should not be tolerated by the public. h
The modern-day range of ‘other merchandise’ which one may find in a ||
retail pharmacy subsidizes the economic wellbeing of the pharmacy prac- !
titioners therein and, in turn, provides for a most essential ‘no compromise’
standard with regard to the selection of drugs and the manner in which
the professional, pharmaceutical services will be rendered.

12.5 A prescription is not an ordinary item of commerce or trade, nor is it
a merchandising commodity. It is the tangible, end result of pharmaceutical
services ordered for a specific patient to meet a specific need as diagnosed
by a medical practitioner. It is the pharmacist’s primary responsibility in
all areas of practice to render a complete prescription service, including
the many activities which fall within the important area of personal, pro-
fessional judgment related to the drug therapy which has been ordered or
which the consumer may deem to request for purposes of auto-therapy.

12.6 Academic standards required of pharmacists before registration to prac-
tice in one or another of Canada’s provinces equal and, indeed, surpass
those of most other countries. Hence, pharmacists working in our com-
munities, in retail or in hospital, or in industrial endeavours and in gov-
ernment service, are well qualified to provide an ever-increasing high
standard of service which makes the wonders of modern drugs safely and
efficiently available in our nation.

12.7 The Canadian Pharmaceutical Association firmly believes that the Cana-
dian scene and way of life must be fully acknowledged in any discussion
related to drugs and pharmaceutical services, their safety, their quality,
their efficiency and their economic aspects. The raising of present high
standards to encourage greater industrial development without undue,
burdensome regulation of procedures conducted within the confines of
ethical, professional principles, will prove to bring development advan-
tageous to the general public. Simultaneously, safety procedures, already
highly developed will undoubtedly be bettered and we shall continue to
benefit from the rather fantastic pharmaceutical ‘explosion’ of recent years
in which our free enterprise system has given us specific means of success-
fully fighting many deadly diseases.

13.1 The Government of Canada, representative of the individual citizens of
our nation, the officials charged with the administration of our laws respect-
ing the professions and respecting commercial activities, and the public,
generally, are assured of the desire of the Canadian Pharmaceutical Associ-
ation, representatives of the profession in all of its aspects to be of continu-
ing assistance in all matters having to do with the enhancement of health
and welfare, particularly with regard to the safe and economical availability {
of drugs required by the ill and diseased.

13.2 We have welcomed this further opportunity of discussing drug matters.
We deem it a privilege to work with this Special Committee on Food and
Drugs of the House of Commons. Of necessity, the representative problem
cannot be discussed in depth in a brief such as this, but you are assured
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that the Canadian Pharmaceutical Association would be pleased to assist
in the obtaining of further information which may provide desired clarity
of any particular point.

THE CANADIAN PHARMACEUTICAL ASSOCIATION, INC.

PRESIDENT: J. K. Lawton, Ph. C,,
Halifax, Nova Scotia

PAST-PRESIDENT: A. W. Matthews, B.S.P., M. Sc., Ph.D.
Vancouver, British Columbia

FIRST VICE-PRESIDENT: J. L. Summers, B.S.P., M.Sc.,
Saskatoon, Saskatchewan

SECOND VICE-PRESIDENT: C. R. McClean, Ph. C,,
Rothesay, New Brunswick

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: J. C. Turnbull, B.S.P.,
Toronto, Ontario

The CHAIRMAN: The meeting is open for questions.

Mr. Enns: On the first page, Mr. Chairman, in the terms of identification
°f the group you mention the Quebec association has not been a member
Since 1962. Is there any liaison between the Quebec group and the rest of the
association?

Mr. J. C. Turnbull, B.S.P., (Executive Director, the Canadian Pharmaceutical
fssociation, Inc.): Almost certainly, sir, there is a liaison with our colleagues
In Quebec, but they are not officially represented on the Canadian Pharma-
Ceutical Association council at the present time.

. Mr. Enns: Would their views have been any different than what is con-
tained in the brief as far as this subject matter is concerned, or is this an unfair
Question to ask?

Mr. TurNBULL: I do not believe I have the right to say that their views are

€ same or are not the same. Possibly it is best to say that they would
prObably agree, but I am unable to make such a statement.

Mr. Exns: I did not really want a committing statement. I wondered if
!Zhere would have been any difficulty with them. However, you have r}ot b.een
N any way in consultation with them regarding the presentation of this brief?

Mr. TurnBULL: Not on this brief.

Mr. SrLocaN: On page 3 you say:

We recommend that in each of these divisions there be a more f:lear—
cut differentiation between the personnel involved and the duties of
such personnel in respect to food control and to drug control.

What are the difficulties you are encountering now, and why do you make
recommendation? -

Mr. TurnsuLL: This is a long standing recommendation. We are very
Dl'.eaSGd to see that many moves are being made towards a definite differenti-
ation between food control and drug control. This is on the basis that only

9se people who have specific responsibilities for a specific problem can give

this
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it the necessary attention day in and day out. This is not to say that drug
problems are not receiving their share of the attention in the food and drug
directorate organization because there is evidence that they have given very
fine attention to it. However, the personnel involved up until a few months
ago have had to wear two hats, they have had to look after drug control and
food control. As we well know, if a food problem comes up in Canada or in
an area of Canada, it must be looked at very quickly. If it is a problem
of poisoning or contamination, or something of that nature, it has to be dealt
with very quickly. Personnel have to be placed on such a problem immediately
and they therefore cannot continue with their work on drug problems. Also,
we feel very strongly that people who are properly orientated in drug problems
and in pharmacy problems should be asked to look after those particular
problems in Canada.

Mr. ENNs: Would these problems not go together? If there is contamination
of a food product would not the person who has a background in pharmacy
also be knowledgeable in food contamination, and similarly the person who
is training in the other area would not he also have a pretty good competence
in both areas?

Mr. TURNBULL: He may have a degree of competence in both, but this does
not, in our opinion, allow him to devote attention to both. We are suggesting,
just as the Department of National Health and Welfare has found it necessary
to have a deputy minister of health and a deputy minister of welfare, that it is
necessary to subdivide some of the divisions, in other words, these men do
have a competence in both fields. It would be very difficult for them to devote
sufficient attention and to work efficiently in both fields.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: Mr. Chairman, do you wish us to try to follow this
page by page, or do you want me to jump from here to the back pages all in
one question? I think it would be better if we dealt with it page by page. In
respect of page 4, paragraph (4) you mention an undergraduate degree in
pharmacy. What do you mean by an undergraduate degree in pharmacy?

Mr. TurNBULL: I hold a bachelor of science and pharmacy degree from the
University of Saskatchewan, and this is considered as an undergraduate de-
gree. It is not a masters degree or a directorate degree. So, the undergraduate
degree we are indicating here would be a bachelor’s degree.

Mr. WiLLoucHBY: Is that not really a graduate degree? You do have your
degree in pharmacy?

Mr. TurNBULL: Yes. I believe, university-wise, they term it as an under-
graduate degree. It is not a degree obtained in a school of graduate studies.

Mr. SLocan: Do you not feel that there are sufficient personnel in each of
these divisions so that presently these inspection services are adequately
separated at the present time.

Mr. TurNBULL: It is my understanding that inspection services presently
are being expanded tremendously, and we are pleased to note that many
pharmacists are being employed to undertake this work. Up until the past
while the food and drug directorate has worked under a very severe restriction
in respect of both personnel and money and we just have not been able
to get across the story that more pharmacists should be looking after the
drug problems in the directorate.

I do not know whether or not that answers your question, Dr. Slogan,
but I believe now there are something like 70 new inspectors. I am not quoting
tchis number from a factual knowledge of the situation but I do believe there
1s something like that number, and many of them are pharmacists, who are
undertaking the pharmacy activities of inspection and control.
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The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions up to half way down
Page 5?

Mr. OrLikow: Yes, Mr. Chairman. On page 5, paragraph 4.2, it is recom-
mended that a more rigid screening of promotional claims concerning drugs
and drug preparations be instituted. What do you mean by that statement?

ere are these promotional claims usually found? Are you thinking in
terms of advertising either in the printing media or T.V. for the general public
or in terms of advertisements beamed toward the doctor, who is the one that
writes the prescriptions?

Mr. TurRNBULL: Possibly that sentence best goes with the preceding para-
graph, Mr. Orlikow, and relates more specifically to the modern type of con-
Sumer advertising, the advertising which is promoting, shall we say, the
Uninitiated consumer to take more and more medication on a self medication
basis without properly presenting a message which instils a bit of caution
into the mind of the public relative to the consumption of drugs generally.

That paragraph goes on to discuss the promotion and promotional claims
related to drugs generally and, particularly, those which might be prescribed
by a physician and dispensed by a pharmacist. In this respect we firmly believe
Fhat some way must be found to provide the physician with essential basic
Information relative to each and every pharmaceutical product and that some
Information and precautionary statements should be available very readily
to the practising pharmacists.

Mr. OrLikow: What I am trying to get clear in my mind is this. Are you
Concerned with the advertising which is available, say, in the daily newspapers
or on T.V., to the public in general or are you referring to prescription drugs?

Mr. TuRNBULL: Both, sir.

. Mr. Orukow: That is, prescription drugs which the public can only get
if the doctor writes a prescription?

Mr. TURNBULL: Both.

i Mr. OrLiKOW: In each case this is the advertising of promotional material
Which goes to doctors.

Mr. TurNBULL: Well, in both instances. Let us remember that the patent
Medicines are available in any outlet whatsoever. They are not restricted
to retail pharmacists; they are available from the supermarket shelf and from
the smokeshop. You can take it on and on and on. Also, there is the type
of television advertising, for example, which you see, that creates the urge
o buy and buy immediately, and this is being watched by our young people
and our children. These people are passing by the low shelves in the super-
maljket. There is something in their minds that is gradually creating almost
a dlsrespect for medication and the dangers of medication.

Mr. OrLKOow: Could you give us some illustrations?

Mr. TurnBULL: I do not think that I would care to name any px:oducts
8 I think this is rather unfair. However, can I take it on a general basis?

Mr. OrLKOW: Well, without naming a company can you give us an
€xample of the type of product to which you are referring?

¢ Mr. TurnBULL: These products which contain bromides, for example;
hey should not be on the consumer market. There was a time—and I can
Tecall this from my university training, and I am sure the physicians who
are Present here this morning will also bear me out in this connection—when
v;‘c’mldes contributed to possibly one fifth to one quarter of the patients

O were hospitalized in mental hospitals. But, I do not think these figures

Stand yp today, thank Heavens.
20849-1—3
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Mr. ENNS: My question ties in with your point on quality control and
the recommendation you make for licensing. It seems to me that we should
not pass over this section without some reference to your recommendation in
this regard. When you recommend licensing does this mean that you are
reluctant to see the continuing availability of drugs and patent medicines in
such places as supermarkets and such other places other than established drug
houses.

Mr. TurNBULL: The two matters are not related. I would answer your
last question possibly first. Yes, we in pharmacy are reluctant to see the
continuation of patent medicines on the supermarket and smoke shop shelves.
This is not from any desire to obtain a monopoly in the sale of such items;
far from it, but we are becoming increasingly concerned with a number of
potent drugs that are now part and parcel of the formula of some of these
preparations. And, as I said earlier, the type of advertising which is being
used and the creative advertising which is now being done is beginning to
create in the minds of the consuming public the thought that these are very
innocuous preparations from a danger point of view, having considerable value,
and they are beginning to look upon all drugs in the same light. Possibly
this is the reason we have come in on these studies which you are undertaking
in respect of safety. It is our thought the consumer is not looking upon them
as being anything serious.

Mr. Srocan: I think this same section applies to something I was
advocating and on which I was putting questions to the other witnesses who
appeared before us. My contention is that the food and drug directorate is
doing a very good job so far as protecting the public is concerned, but that
the benefits of this work is not getting down to the individual pharmacists
and the individual practitioners who follow medicine. My contention is there
should be a body, perhaps a medical research council or some like body, which
represents all pharmaceutical associations, manufacturers and the medical
profession, which would set out specifications for each drug so far as quality
control is concerned and so forth, and that they then do license the manu-
facturers and apply closer inspections so that they see that these specifications
are met; also, that they allow the manufacturer to place on the label that
these certain drugs meet specification numbers so and so, thereby enabling
the brand name because they would be assured of the quality of the drug. Do
enabling both to prescribe products more on their generic name than just on
the brand name because they would be assured o fthe quality of the drug. Do
you feel that such a body would be of assistance to the individual pharmacist
and practitioner, and perhaps would do something to reduce the cost of drugs?

Mr. TurNBULL: May I deal with licensing first, because I believe this ties
in with the whole thing. There have been many discussions regarding the
licensing of manufacturers of pharmaceuticals in Canada. Our views on this
are supported, in the main I believe, by the pharmaceutical manufacturers in
Canada, with certain exceptions of course. It has been indicated to us that
there are certain constitutional problems in respect of federal licensing of a
person manufacturing drugs. We find this very difficult to understand because
certain areas of the business may be licensed; for example, the Food and Drug$
Act does provide for the licensing of that part of the manufacturing which
produces injectibles and biologicals, and that type of thing. Also, we find it
very difficult to believe that the provinces should be forced to undertake 2
!icensing procedure by which they, shall we say, could control industry that
1s not in their particular province but is represented by branch offices, or
employees of the company.

) Also; very readily you can see that if the ten provinces were to come up
with some kind of licensing regulations, we would have a real hodgepodgé
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and a very heterogeneous set of regulations which undoubtedly would hamper
good regulating procedures in Canada, and also add to the cost of same.

Therefore, we feel, even if it is truly a constitutional problem, if it is
Properly described to our provincial legislators, they would be pleased, in the
interest of the Canadian public, to give over their rights, or temporarily farm
them out in a manner similar to the manner they gave over the income tax
commission rights, and that type of thing, a few years ago.

We feel that only in this way can we honestly expect authorities such as
the food and drug directorate to be able to identify each and every man-
ufacturer of drugs in Canada, and in turn take the necessary steps to ensure
that the minimum specifications as outlined in the Food and Drugs Act, for

example, are being met by all these people who place drugs on the Canadian
market.

I am not too sure of our view concerning a specification label. The Food
and Drugs Act lays down certain minimums which a drug must reach quanti-
tatively. Specified in that act there are various references which contain
minimum standards which a drug must reach. So, physicians and pharmacists

know that quantitatively drugs on the Canadian market do reach a certain
Mminimum standard.

Qualitative standards, I think, are something different, and it would be
almost impossible for any directorate, or any committee, or board, to rule on
the qualitative part of a specific drug. These are not peas where we can label
them as fancy, choice and standard, for example, so that the housewife knows
What type of can of peas she is buying or what she can expect to find inside the
can,

I think the onus should be placed on the manufacturer to continue to
Mmarket the best possible drugs. If he chooses to go above the minimum
Standards that already are set, I believe this should be left with the man-
Ufacturer; indeed, as one manufacturer puts it, this is the priceless ingredient
of his particular products.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Are you suggesting it would be virtually impossible for
an organization like the food and drug directorate, given staff and using a
Ilcensing system, to be able to ensure, not for the benefit of the public because
the public is not directly concerned, but for the benefit of the doctor and
bharmacist, that the product of any manufacturer—provided he has the
facilities for inspection, producing, let us say, reserpine tablets, or promazine—
Meets the standards required for safety and health.

Mr. TurnBULL: I am suggesting that this presently exists; but it should not

€ necessary for a government agency to have to certify that everything the

Manufacturer puts out is fit and proper. This responsibility quite rightfully

should rest with the manufacturer. If he is unable to maintain such standards

of periodic inspection, that manufacturer should not have a continuing licence.

Also, if I may say so, I do not think it is humanly possible for any agency

to certify that the basis of evey drug appearing on the Canadian market is up

0 a certain standard. I do not think they can do that any more than the

Policy force can certify that every car going down a street is staying within
the 30 mile an hour speed limit.

Mr. OrLIKOW: That is not the point at all. No matter how much staff you
have, no agency is going to see that every product put out by any drug com-
Pany is perfect. However, the issue which we come back to every time we have

Witnesses here is—and I am not being too critical of the doctors or the
Pharmacists—

An hon. MEMBER: Why not?
20849-1—23
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Mr. Orrikow: I will be when I want to. One of the reasons given that
doctors prescribe a brand name of a product is that they believe that product
produced by a large company is of a quality which they honestly can recom-
mend to their patients. I am not questioning that. The question is, if we had
adequate inspection and licensing, would that not give protection to the patient?

I have here some examples of the kind of thing which is going on right
now. I do not wish to become involved in a long discussion about prices,
although we will do so at some future time; I just wish to put to you that this is
important. Here we have a promazine product put out by Wyeth which they
call sparine. It is listed at $10.50 a hundred for a 25 milligram tablet. Then,
there is a similar product put out by a company named Empire which lists at
$1.50 for 100 tablets. My point is that this is a product which is being used
very widely, and I am speaking from personal knowledge. Doctors are pre-
scribing it. Surely a saving of this proportion would be very important to a
patient or customer. I do not blame the doctor if he does not know whether
or not Empire is a reliable company, if no facilities are provided by anybody,
including the government of Canada. I do not blame the doctor for writing
a prescription calling for the Wyeth product. However, this is the type of
thing which can cause difficulties and is the question we are trying to come at.

Mr. RYyNARD: We are getting into the matter of costs now. Surely today
the committee is discussing the matter of safety and not the matter of costs.
You are introducing a new factor. Surely this committee today is dealing with

safety.

Mr. OruikOow: I only raise this—

Mr. Rynarp: This is only wasting time. You are raising something which
will come up later.

Mr. OrLIkow: Mr. Chairman, I do not agree at all.

Mr. Rynarp: I did not expect you to.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, the point I am trying to make is, if there are
any legitimate, honest arguments which this organization or any other can
bring forward against licensing for any reason, I would like to hear them, and
while I am here I am pointing out one of the reasons why licensing might be a
good idea.

Mr. SLoGgAN: There may be a slight misunderstanding of what we mean.
We feel the food and drug people are doing a good job; but this is not getting
down to the large pharmacists and doctors. I understand there is a body which
presently is looking into the possibility of what I suggested; at least the medical
men intimated that. Are you acquainted with any discussion which is going on
in that direction at the present time?

Mr. TurNBULL: There are many going on, sir. I am not too sure of what
specific group you are thinking.

Mr. SLoGAN: I am not sure what the group is called, but I understand that
the medical men told us there are discussions going on between the food and
drug directorate and the medical profession, the pharmaceutical association,
and so on, regarding the matter of specifications, or something like that.

Mr. TurNBULL: Yes, this is true. Presumably you are referring to the Ca-
nadian drug advisory committee which is appointed to work with the food and
drug directorate. Also, of course, there is the government organization known as
the Canadian standards organization which deals with drugs and many other
items such as paint, tools, and anything else purchased by the government.

The C.G.S.B. has brought forth specifications for the manufacturer of drugs,
and }'xas very stringent rules on the acceptability of the drugs that they will
obtain from the manufacturer, and in turn,- with the acceptability of that
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manufacturer for future drugs, if he does not come up to the expectations of
the government. This is the government, and possibly we should indicate that
it is a regrettable situation, to have standards for purchasing by the govern-
ment and not to extend the same standards to the drugs which are going to be
purchased by those whom the government represent, namely, the public.

Mr. Srogan: Do you feel that the pharmaceutical association would be as-
sisted if such specifications were made? There would be a certain element
of quality control in those specifications which could be ultimate, but there
would have to be a certain range. When the Canadian Medical Association was
before us they told us about a situation in Alberta where apparently without
regard to the medical or the pharmaceutical associations the government there
Passed a law whereby the individual pharmacist could substitute in a prescrip-
tion a generic name of a drug without consultation with the physician who
Wrote the prescription.

Mr. TurNBULL: The legislation in Alberta is basically as you outlined it,
yes, except that you used the words that he might substitute what we have
come to know as a generic drug if he so see fit. He may substitute a drug either
by generic name or brand name, if he so sees fit. However under normal pro-
cedure or practice of the profession there have been very few difficulties encoun-
tered in this respect; and the pharmacist is very well aware that the physician’s
choice of a drug by company or by brand name is usually based on some very
definite idea, and he will meet the physician’s order where possible.

Mr. Srcocan: Where would this place the pharmacist should he in fact
Substitute another brand name for the one specified if there should be a reaction
in the patient and the patient should bring a law suit against the individual
Pharmacist who has substituted a drug without reference to the medical doctor?
Does this not lay him open to a legal charge?

_ Mr. TurnBULL: I do not believe there has been any test case or any such

Situation arise which has gone to the courts. There has been a test case be-
Cause of a substitution itself, but under the particular circumstances it was
Successfully prosecuted.

Mr. SLogaN: You mean that the pharmacist was found guilty?
Mr. TURNBULL: Yes.

Mr. Srocan: The other point I was trying to make was that apparently
the action of the government in Alberta in bringing out this law, was, in their
Opinion, to lower the cost of drugs to the patient; but because of the onus placed
On the individual pharmacist in making a substitution, the medical association
Seemed to feel that if the pharmacist was going to make a substitution, he would
Certainly make a substitution of a better brand name or of a higher cost
drug, because he would not want to take the responsibility of substituting a

drug with the quality of which he was not perhaps as confident. Could this
€ true?

Mr. TurnBULL: If I were in practice and I ran into a situation of that
Nature I would be inclined, where it was necessary to substitute and the
Physician could not be contacted, to dispense a product which in my opinion
fould be suitably substituted and cause no difficulty, and indeed perform as
¥ felt the other drug would perform. This would not necessarily mean that
' was a more expensive preparation, and indeed I do not see any particular
Yeason why it should be. The criterion is not one of dollars and cents. The
Criterion is the pharmacist’s faith in the product of a particular company.

) .Mr. SLoGAN: The fact is that it is only normal, as you and I know, for
he individual practitioner, whether he be a pharmacist or a doctor, to choose
Tand which is better known and in which he has more faith. Usually these
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brand names are higher priced than some unknown brands. I think that the law
passed in Alberta is perhaps having an opposite effect to what the govern-
ment there intended it to have.

Mr. TurNBULL: I do not believe that there is any indication of it having
the opposite effect. That is the experience up to date. I believe that it is not
possible to attain the purpose for which it was designed, namely, that of driving
down the cost. It does provide the means for freer activity in the practice of
pharmacy and in the use of medication.

Mr. SLoGAN: If there were placed on all these generic brands which have
been passed by the food and drug directorate the fact that the specifications
have been set up by the pharmaceutical and medical assocations, do you not
feel that individual druggist would feel far freer to prescribe some of the
lesser known brands which might be substituted?

Mr. TURNBULL: Those specifications are already written in the Food and
Drugs Act.

Mr. SLOGAN: Speaking as an individual dentist, I know that I have a
preference, because I want to prescribe what I feel would do the best job
for my patient, and I want the drugs that have the highest quality. Without
those specifications on the label do you feel that the individual pharmacist is
in a position to substitute a lesser known drug? Because if he does know
about it, and does not know all the quantitative standards, would this not seem
the case? He does not know the importance more or less of the quality controls
in the production of the drug, and he is not aware of anything other than by
consulting with the food and drug directorate.

Mr. TURNBULL: To express a personal opinion here, I honestly do not be-
lieve that any board or group could act as a certifying agent for drugs. The
minimum standards as specified in the official references which are legal in
Canada provide for the basic minimum standards in a drug preparation. Every
practitioner in medicine, every pharmacist or dentist is assured that these
minimum standards, these quantitative standards are being met to the best of
the knowledge of the authorities, who are continually taking samples—several
thousand samples across the country—and testing them each year, and
quantitatively testing them.

This makes no reference to the efficacy of the drug preparation and the
availability of the active ingredients of the formula, nor can it make any
reference to the fact that product “A” and product “B” which contain the same
drug are going to produce the same expected physiological reactions, in the
same patient, or in the patient being treated by the physician. This is be-
cause of the character of the pharmaceutical formulation, the various means
used to reduce the rate of absorption, or to create intestinal irritation and that
sort of thing, by the use of that drug in the human body.

Mr. SLogaN: Do you not think that the food and drug directorate should
get into the field of the clinical study of drugs, and that they could have an
inspection of and access to the results of the research done in the individual
companies, and that they would know the rate of absorption, and could set
certain standards for qualitative analysis? I do not mean that they should be
exactly the same, but they could prescribe some range within which they
could approve the specifications?

Mr. TurnBULL: First of all, my answer to your first question is no, I do
not believe the food and drug directorate should become a certifying body as
to the efficacy of any particular drug preparation and any particular drug
manuafcturer or distributor.

_ Sgcondly, yes, the directorate could provide a great service in the clinical
investigation and study of a drug.
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And thirdly, the present regulations are fairly new, governing the in-
troduction of new drugs in Canada and are such that the qualitative control
procedures are pretty well outlined in the new drug submission made by the
introducer, the manufacturer introducer of a particular new drug.

And these, coupled with the new regulations governing the physical
facilities and to some extent the personnel who must oversee the drug produc-
tion, get into qualitative control, and they do cover all the needed minimum
standards in keeping with the rest of the food and drug legislation.

Mr. Srocan: In other words, you suggest the food and drug directorate is
presently perhaps doing this? I still maintain that pharmacists and medical
doctors prescribe well known brand drugs. I think we could ask the individuals
around this table and find that that is so, but how can we overcome this
situation? How can we assist the individual doctor and pharmacist who would
like to prescribe a particular drug, in this regard? I do not want to be involved
in the question of cost, but I refer to a drug which is less costly but of the
same quality, but in respect of which he has no way of being familiar. He
does not want to accept the responsibility himself in this way. How can the
government assist in this regard so that these less well known drugs become
known in spite of perhaps the lack of publicity or staff on the part of the
manufacturing company? These drugs may be qualitatively superior to some-
thing the doctor is presently prescribing.

Mr. TurNBULL: I do not know the answer to your question, sir. All I can
say is that I think it would be a terrible thing for us to undertake, as possibly
Yyou suggest, to find a way in which we can help the individual practitioner
to prescribe other than the products of the leading research-orientated manu-
facturing companies if the individual practitioner does not wish to do so or
does not wish to move away from relying upon those people in whom he has
the greatest faith.

: Mr. SLoGaN: The reason the individual practitioner has the greatest faith
In certain companies is the fact that the government has failed to convince the
brofessions of pharmacy and medicine that the quality is there. The govern-
ment has failed miserably in this way and the difference which exists in respect
of the cost of drugs is a direct result of that failure. Perhaps the government
IS convincing itself that the quality does exist but it is failing to pass that
Information down to the level where it could best be used. I feel for that reason
that the government should get into this field. I do not think there is any problem
in this regard. This involves a matter of increasing the staff and co-operation
between the various professions. I am sure the individuals involved want to
Co-operate in this direction now, and I think they have indicated that they do
Want to co-operate. I do not think this would be a terrible thing. I do not think
anyone has to be forced to do this.

Mr. TurNBULL: I do not believe that this information is not known to the
Profession of pharmacy, for example. :

Mr. OrLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, I have been trying to break into this dis-
Cussion. It seems to me as a result of my experience as a pharmacist that
Pharmacists at least in the cities—I do not know about the rural areas—really
blay a very small, if any part at all, in this regard. The situation may have
thanged during the last ten years, although I doubt it, but pharmacists ten
Years ago certainly never or hardly ever used any product except exactly that
Product which the doctor prescribed, not just as a drug but by the brand name.

O pharmacist would make a substitution without referring to the doctor. Am
I right in this regard?

Mr. TurnBULL: Yes, I believe you are right. It is a fact that the pharmacists
do thig for many reasons, some of them ethical. In addition, the prescribing
Physician in 90 per cent of the cases at least has some reason for stipulating
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a certain drug as opposed to another product. We know this. He knows the
results he obtains with brand A, let us say, as opposed to popular brand X.
He knows what to expect, what chain of reaction he is going to see in his patient,
and if he does not see it he knows why he is not getting this reaction.
We know this fact is in the physician’s mind. We know also that a man may
prescribe even some penicillins in injectable forms in an aqueous substance or
in oils, whatever it may be, and it is going to react differently. I can recall
from my own practice that one physician always prescribed a particular peni-
cillin in an aqueous substance because he knew exactly what he wanted. We
knew the company product that he wanted, and knew that he wanted it because
he could not get the necessary and expected reaction by using another com-
pany’s product.

Mr. SLogan: Is it not a fact that one of the reasons why a doctor prescribes
a brand name is that he has received some samples in the mail or because some-
one has visited him and explained the glories of that particular brand?

Mr. TurNBULL: Certainly someone has taken the trouble to outline to him
all the advantages of a particular product that he has to sell. It may well be that
that individual does not outline some of the disadvantages or potential hazards
or dangers of that product, but this is gradually taking place and I hope as a
result of this committee’s study there will be more emphasis placed on the
safety and side reaction phase of the situation.

Mr. SrocaN: The doctor really does not have an objective judgment which
he can make in respect of various brand names because he is not in a position
to judge.

Mr. TurNBULL: That is true except that the doctor does know something
about the product as a result of his personal experience in using it.

The CHAIRMAN: Doctor Slogan, I do not think it is fair to ask the witness
to answer for the medical profession.

Mr. Scocan: I should just like to make one further statement. My con-
tention is that because the individual practitioner is not in a position to make
an objective judgment there should be a body in Canada in which he has faith
to make that judgment for him and put the information on the label so that
he is prepared to accept it. At the same time that practitioner would still have

a choice after using the drug but at least he would be prepared to use the
lesser known ones.

Mr. TurNBULL: 1 believe that T would support your proposition tempered
with the thought that I cannot see even three expert minds agreeing on the
decision that one man might make in respect of a product manufactured by
any individual company, or group of products of all companies. In other words,
I do not think that anybody could reign over such a situation. I truly believe
that to be the situation, sir. This is a very involved situation.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Willoughby I think you indicated you had a question?

Mr. WiLLoUuGHBY: Before I ask my question, Mr. Chairman, I should like
to say that I think the difficulties involved in the subject which has just been
discussed could very briefly be answered in this way. Only the very large com-
panies can possibly afford to do the testing and checking of toxicity and potency
of drugs and make them as reliable as the medical man desires. I think, there-
fore while some of these unknown companies could possibly sell a substance
cheaper it would be very difficult for them to compete with the research depart-
ments operated by the long and larger established companies. I think that is
one fact the medical man must keep in mind. I think the medical man does keep
this fact in mind in recognizing a specific firm when writing prescriptions in
respect of so called reliable drugs. I think that situation probably indicates some
of the reasons for the situation that has been discussed.

e e

———
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Before we move to another subject I should like to refer to something
that was mentioned in passing in respect of the hazards attendant in selling
drugs over counters in non-licensed establishments such as ordinary stores
which are not under the supervision of pharmacists. I should like to know
whether or not, and I think this is extremely important, this situation comes
under federal or provincial jurisdiction.

Mr. TurRNBULL: This is under both jurisdictions. Under federal legislation
there are certain products, and these are products which are governed by the
Food and Drugs Act, which may be sold under pharmacy control only. This
legislation is supported by provincial legislation. In federal legislation there is
also a Proprietary or Patent Medicine Act. All these products are licensed and
basically are of the same formula preparation. You will find in the majority of
provincial pharmacy acts a blanket exemption extended to these particular
Products allowing them to be sold in pharmacies and in non-pharmacy outlets.

; Mr. WiLLOUGHBY: As far as the retailing of these products is concerned it
1s a provincial question?

Mr. TURNBULL: Yes.

Mr. WIiLLOUGHBY: We as a federal committee cannot suggest legislation
which would effect the provinces as far as these outlets are concerned?

Mr. TURNBULL: If you agree with us that this is a definite problem, then I
think that the work of the provincial people, who are most anxious to do
something about this problem, could be supported by a statement by this com-
mittee. You cannot write the legislation yourself, no.

3 Mr. WILLOUGHBY: We could not recommend that the House of Commons
Institute such legislation?

Mr. TurRNBULL: No, but you could recommend that the necessary steps be
taken at the provincial level to provide the necessary protection for the con-
Suming public in respect of these items.

The CHAIRMAN: I think it is true that we can make any recommendations
we wish. We certainly made recommendations in our report on insecticides and
Pesticides. We recommended certain things to the provincial governments,
recognizing them as the authorities, but hoping that they would follow our
Suggestions.

. Mr. WiLroucHBY: I recognize that there is a problem in respect of pesti-
cides and insecticides but I referred more specifically to patent medicines which
are being sold.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, I think at some stage of our proceedings we
are going to have to have a look at the advertising which is permitted in this
field. I believe that advertising comes under federal jurisdiction. Certainly
advertising comes under the jurisdiction of the B.B.G. in some respect, and if
In our investigations we find that the type of advertising in existence tends to
Promote the use of a drug which is dangerous, we have the right to at least
Tecommend to the B.B.G. that it tighten up its regulations.

A The CHAIRMAN: Yes, advertising does come under the Food and Drugs
e

Mr. OrLikOW: Certainly we could do a great deal in that regard.

_ Mr. Marcoux: I certainly agree with Mr. Turnbull when he suggests that
1t would be impossible to check every item and every batch produced by every
drug manufacturing company in Canada, but does he think that perhaps by
Way of licensing or in some other way it would be possible for the food and

rug directorate to indicate to physicians and pharmacists in Canada that a
Company is equipped and is effectively carrying out all the required tests from

€ point of view of security in the sale of these things? This list of companies
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could and should be given to the doctors and dispensing pharmacists across
Canada. For example, we know that some companies will buy ingredients
from a well known company and will either sell them or only dispense them
under another name; and this is supposed to be good. Of course, the big com-
pany, the manufacturing company, will take a profit for the loss of profit they
make with their own products; but this should be known to pharmacists and
doctors. Those companies who use products not tested for quality and that sort
of thing should notify the doctors and the pharmacists. The prescribing doctor
should know which companies are complying with the regulations and which
are not complying with the regulations.
What is your opinion about that?

Mr. TurNBULL: I firmly agree with you that this would do the job. I think
only through a system of licensing can the necessary control be exerted be-
cause, in the first place, it requires that the manufacurer or distributor identify
himself very positively with the federal authorities. Possibly we do not have to
get involved in licensing; it could be a registration requiring an annual report.

I think another recommendation that we have been inclined to make for
some years is that the name of the primary producer of the drug, as well as
the manufacturing distributor, should appear on the label. Only in this way
can the pharmacist have any indication that one primary producer is conduct-
ing the technical tests of production of a certain drug that may be marketed
under another distributor’s label. This has certain shortcomings in that even
those companies who are large in Canada may have subsidiary companies or
parent companies producing their drugs for them in, let us say, United States
plants, in English plants and in Swiss plants. Where this does occur, I think, it
should be so stated on the label. Only in this way can the pharmacist know what
responsible manufacturer has produced this drug in its first stages.

Mr. OrLiIkOW: What would the pharmaceutical manufacturers think of
that suggestion?

Mr. TurNBULL: They would be extremely unhappy, sir. This all ties in
with economics. Economics are part and parcel of drug efficacy and drug effici-
ency and safety, but we can say in Canada that all drug preparations, subject
to spot inspections, are reliable, as Dr. Willoughby indicated; but they are not
all the same.

Mr. SLocAN: I noticed on page 14 that you state your association is not
giving its detailed opinions regarding the unfair 11 per cent federal sales tax.
Obviously, you oppose it. Do you suggest the government remove it?

Mr. TurnNBULL: Most definitely. We have led the parade in this.suggestion
for some 12 years and we are very happy that other organizations have seen
fit in the past two, three or four years to advance the same recommendations.
We make this recommendation on the basis that Canada is the only country
in the world, I believe, that taxes drugs required by the sick and ill.

We, in pharmacy, make this recommendation knowing that pharmacy
practitioners actually make a profit on the 11 per cent tax, because the mark-
ups are added after the sales tax is added at the manufacturing level. If it
is abolished pharmacists across Canada will lose many many millions of
dollars every year.

Mr. SLocaN: Are there any tariffs on drugs being imported in bulk?

Mr. TurNBULL: Generally there is a 15 to 20 per cent tariff. It varies,
of course. The taxes or excises are applied now to the finished packaging of
the particular product. This we feel is correct in that it influences Canadian
based industries. A company which imports, shall we say, a barrelfull must,
I upderstand, declare the method in which it will be distributed, and the
tax is put upon it at the package level.
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The CHAIRMAN: This is getting into the question of cost.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: Am I correct in my understanding that chemical mate-
rials available in Canada of high standard are protected by a tariff from
similar products being brought in from other countries, but that where there
is no chemical available in this country that import has practically no duty
on it?

Mr. TurnBULL: This I believe is correct.

Mr. OrLIKOW: We should get the tariff board down here to give evidence
on this.

Mr. TURNBULL: Some of these are imported as chemicals, not as drugs.

Mr. Francrs: I understand that drugs used for agricultural purposes are
exempt from sales tax. Is that right?

Mr. TurRNBULL: Not to my knowledge. If drugs used for agricultural
purposes are exempt and if those used for human purposes are not exempt
a ridiculous situation would exist.

Mr. Francis: Is it not so?
Mr. TurNBULL: Not to my knowledge.

_ Mr. Francis: It is my understanding that certain drugs used by vet-
erinarians are exempt from sales tax and customs duties.

Mr. TurNBULL: I am not too certain about sales tax but in so far as
customs duties are concerned there are only six drugs—not six classes, but
six drugs—which are exempt. They are cortisone, ACTH, liver injection for
bernicious anaemia, vitamin B-12, insulin and radium.

Mr. Francis: I just wanted to make this observation at this time. I will
look into it at some further point.

i Mr. WiLLouGHBY: At page 12 in paragraph 11.1, you make a statement
In regard to the distribution of samples. You state that:

The distribution of samples, now legal only under certain specific cir-
cumstances, is of continuing concern to pharmacists, inasmuch as members
of a profession having specific knowledge of, and legal responsibilities
concerning drugs have no control over this aspect of their distribution.

I would question whether or not that is correct on the basis that the medical
men themselves are responsible for the distribution of those drugs once they
are received as samples. What is the difference between distributing them
as samples and prescribing them through a drug store?

Mr. TurNBULL: Bill No. C-3, as passed by parliament some two years ago
amending the Food and Drugs Act, provided that no sampling of drugs would
take place except under certain prescribed conditions. Seme time later the
regulations were passed providing that sampling could be undertaken by
the manufacturer to physicians, dentists, veterinarians and pharmacists. Bill
C-3 also provided that no redistribution of samples could take place except
under prescribed conditions, and there are no prescribed conditions in the
Tegulations which indicate that redistribution can take place by anyone.

However, in the administrative procedures governing the administration
of the regulations it has been indicated that such redistribution could be under-
taken by physicians, veterinarians and dental practitioners.

Under the pharmacy acts of our legislation governing the practice and
Profession of pharmacy, pharmacists have the primary responsibility to control
and look after drugs. In this particular instance they may receive samples
of drugs; regardless of how dangerous they may be or how innocuous a
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particular preparation may be, as for example in a cough drop, but defined as a
drug because of the use to which it is to be put, the pharmacist may not
redistribute that particular preparation which is under his control as a sample.

We are of the opinion that the necessary control has been somewhat short-
circuited by these interpretations and that the people who had a legal respon-
sibility to control them have had that prerogative taken away from them by
a piece of federal legislation.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions, gentlemen?
Mr. SLocaN: I move adjournment.

Mr. WiLLOUGHBY: There is one other question that is not too relevant to
our discussion here, but I would like to put it forward because I get a great
many complaints from individuals about this. I am told that individuals can
obtain their prescriptions more cheaply at the departmental stores which have
pharmacists than at regular pharmacists. Is this just a cutrate situation?
How do you account for it?

Mr. TURNBULL: Every person, including those involved in the practice
of pharmacy, has his own awareness of the value of his services. If one
pharmacist, for example, who is an individual in private practice chooses to
downgrade, dollar wise, the services which he feels he is rendering, that is a
prerogative of his, I am afraid, and if a man chooses to charge what he feels
the services are worth, in keeping with the control that he is exercising over
the drugs and the type of service that he is rendering in a community, then
I feel he is quite right. It is not what so many think it is—that anyone is
necessarily profiteering and someone else is cut rating.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: At some time we will have this organization back and we
will then be able to discuss the aspect of cost.

I would like the pharmaceutical association to know that I for one am
interested in what happens to the price of drugs when they move from where
they get the drugs to the consumer.

Mr. TurRNBULL: We have on many occasions appeared before the committee
in discussion groups, commissions, and what have you, during the past few
years to review these particular problems, and indeed I had initially prepared
myself to come before this committee this morning on that basis. We are only
too pleased to have the opportunity of discussing these matters if the committee
sees fit to do so.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, there is just one small question. We would
require a motion that the committee pay reasonable living and travelling
expenses incurred by Mr. Turnbull to appear before us and that the usual per
diem allowance be paid to him.

Mr. Francrs: I would be glad to move that this be done, and I would
also like to incorporate our thanks to him.

Mr. Marcoux: I will second that.
Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: We thank Mr. Turnbull for coming here, and we look
forward to having him here again when we discuss the question of costs.




HOUSE OF COMMONS

Second Session—Twenty-sixth Parliament

1964

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

ON

FOOD AND DRUGS

Chairman: Mr. HARRY C. HARLEY

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE

No. 5

FRIDAY, JUNE 12, 1964

WITNESS:

Dr. R F. Parquharson, M.B.E, M.B, D.Sec, LL.D, M.D, F.RCP,
F-R.C.P.(C), F.A.C.P., F.R.8.C., Chairman, Medical Research Council.

ROGER DUHAMEL, F.R.S.C.
QUEEN'’S PRINTER AND CONTROLLER OF STATIONERY
OTTAWA, 1964
20851—1



SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON FOOD AND DRUGS

Chairman: Mr. Harry C. Harley
Vice-Chairman: Mr. Rodger Mitchell

and Messrs.
Armstrong Gauthier , Orlikow
Asselin (Richmond- Horner (Jasper-Edson) Prud’homme
Wolfe) Howe (Hamilton South) Roxburgh
Basford Jorgenson Rynard
Casselman (Mrs.) Macaluso Slogan
Coté (Longueuil) Mackasey Whelan h
Enns Marcoux Willoughby—24 !
Francis Nesbitt
(Quorum 8)

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.

CORRECTION (English copy only)
MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE NO. 3—Tuesday, June 2, 1964
On Page 63, the sentence on lines 39 and 40 should read:

Of course, dangers always will exist and great care will be required.




VISIT TO LABORATORIES OF THE FOOD AND DRUG DIRECTORATE
DEPARTMENT OF NATIONAL HEALTH AND WELFARE

5 TUESDAY, June 9, 1964.

y The Special Committee on Food and Drugs visited the Laboratories of the
Food and Drug Directorate at 9.00 a.m. this day.

_ Dr. L. Greenberg, Chief of the Biologics Control Laboratories, made some
Introductory remarks, after which the members went through the laboratories
of the Food and Drug section where explanations were given and questions
asked about the work done by the Directorate to safeguard the health of
Consumers.

Publications of the Consumer Division of the Food and Drug Directorate
Were distributed to the members.

At 10.30 a.m. the visit was concluded and the members returned to the
ouse of Commons.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.

i e A

119
2085113






|

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Fripay, June 12, 1964.
(9)
The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 9.40 a.m. this day. The
Chairman, Mr. Harry C. Harley, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Francis, Harley, Howe (Hamilton South),
Macaluso, Mackasey, Mitchell, Roxburgh, Rynard, Willoughby—(9).

In attendance: Dr. R. F. Farquharson, M.D., M.B.E., Chairman, Medical
Research Council.

The Chairman welcomed Dr. Farquharson and invited him to comment on
the present status of medical research in Canada.

Dr. Farquharson made a statement about the various aspects of medical
Tesearch; he was questioned thereon, on the status and functions of the
Medical Research Council, and on related matters.

. The Chairman thanked the witness on behalf of the Committee for his
ln‘Ejeresting and knowledgeable presentation, and at 11.05 a.m. the Committee
adjourned to 9.30 a.m. Tuesday, June 16.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.

121






.
t
i
!
I

EVIDENCE

FRripAY, June 12, 1964.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. There is no business before
the committee this morning to I will get right on with the introductions of our
Witness for this morning.

I would like to introduce to the committee Dr. Ray Farquharson, who at the
Present time, is the chairman of the Medical Research Council here in Ottawa.

Dr. Farquharson is a most qualified gentleman. I think several of the
beople here in this room, including myself, had the pleasure of having Dr.
Farquharson as our professor of medicine at the University of Toronto. There-
fore, we would like to welcome you, Dr. Farquharson, and to thank you for
coming.

! I wonder if I could start off the questioning by asking Dr. Farquharson
if in his present position he would like to comment upon the present status of
medical research in Canada.

Dr. R. F. FARQUHARSON (Chairman, Medical Research Council): Mr. Chair-
Mman, there is always some medical research wherever good doctors have
Practised, and every doctor that thinks hard about his work does some re-
Search as he goes along.

In many of the fields of medicine the research done by the doctors as they
Practice in their every day work advances knowledge greatly. But, beginning
before the turn of the century people began to do more and more experimental

Tesearch and this experimental research has grown and grown.

i The first most striking research in Canada came with the discovery of
Insulin. You notice I said “the most striking research” because insulin could
nhot have been discovered if there had not been a great deal of research done
along that line before Banting and Best came along with the experience ac-
Quired in extracting tissues and the like. And, they made an insulin that could
b? used in diabetes for the first time, a treatment that was highly effective in
diabetes,

__Since that time there has been a tremendous amount of work done on

1abetes. It is growing and growing because the diabetic patient, living on and
On, gets a number of complications that are more common in diabetes than
in any other condition.

The discovery of insulin in Canada was a tremendous stimulus to medical
Tesearch and a number of private persons gave money to support medical re-
Search in our country just as they have been doing in the United States. But,
Ours was a less wealthy country and our wealthy men were slower in getting
Starteqd in giving money for this purpose. Between the two wars there was quite
an extension of medical research but relatively little was done with federal
8overnment money. The federal government in one department or another
8ave some money for the study of tuberculosis but it was not until 1939 that
the research council organized what is called an associate committee on medical
Tesearch which was placed under the chairmanship of Sir Frederick Banting,
Who chose as his fellow members of the committee a number of people promi-
fent in medicine in Canada.
th The initial budget in 1939 was $59,000—and this was rather interesting—
1 € American National Institutes of Health which now have such tremendously
arge sums for medical research gave also in 1939 to first grants for extramural
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medical research i.e. in universities and hospitals, beginning with a budget
of $90,000. This American budget was not nearly as large proportionately as
that of the Canadian N.R.C., we were spending a good deal more per capita
and still more per gross national product than N.I.H. was doing. But N.L.H. in-
creased rapidly and our government slowly increased its money for research.

In 1947, the National Research Council changed the associate committee on
medical research to a division of medical research, and by that time it had a
budget of about $200,000; its budget proportionately was about the same as
the budget of the N.I.LH. By 1955 our budget had risen to several hundred thou-
sands of dollars and the N.LH. was giving about 50 per cent more on the basis
of gross national product than our country was doing. In the last ten years the
N.I.H. has zoomed up its grants, so that is giving very large grants for research
all across their country and some money for research in Canada, when they feel
that giving this money for research in Canada really will help the research effort
of the United States and of the world. That is, they do not give it just to help
Canadian research; they give it because they beleive that it is worth their while
to pay for this research to be done in Canada by competent men. The amount
of money they gave to Canadian research reached to a maximum of about
$1,800,000 per year in 1963. But, their whole budget for support of research in
their own country outside of government institutions had by this time amounted
to about $800 million a year, a very large sum.

By this time they were giving on the basis of the gross national product of
the two countries about six times as much for medical research as was being
given by federal granting bodies in Canada. Our Canadian budget for medical
research had increased steadily. The associate committee on medical research
had become the division of medical research; and in 1960 the division of medical
research of the N.R.C. was replaced by the Medical Research Council which is
still closely associated with the National Research Council. Our budget has
increased from $890,000 in 1957 to $5,100,000 last year, and it is just under
$7 million for the current year. Now, that is a very significant increase in the
budget and it has resulted in a tremendous increase in research effort in Canada.

There are large research laboratories in most of our universities and hospi-
tals; and increasing numbers of men of high quality are engaged in medical
research in Canada. Our medical research effort is very much greater than it
was. But, medicine is advancing at a great rate and every new discovery, such
as the discovery of insulin which, as I said, came along in 1922, when I was in
my final year in medicine, results in additional needs for research.

I saw the first person to be given an injection of insulin. This research on
diabetes led to so much more research that there are now thousands of people
in the world working on problems of diabetes.

The same thing happened with every new discovery. Each opens doors for
research that will at first increase knowledge and, later, sometimes after a
year or two and sometimes after a generation will lead to great improvement
in the treatment of the patients with various diseases. There are many diseases
for which we have no good treatment. But, fortunately, we have now many
effective remedies.

However, there is no method of treatment which is not capable of causing
harm. And, one of the things that has to be done with all medical research is to
study not only the value of the treatments that are being given but also the
dangers. Fortunately, the dangers are not numerous in most instances. But, one
never knows when beginning to use a new drug, what danger there may be. I
will give an instance of that later. But, I am answering the chairman’s question
and I am wandering a bit afield.

I pointed out that the research funds of the M.R.C. have increased greatly
at the Medical Research Council. It is now up to almost $7 million. The depart-
ment of National Health and Welfare, through a different system of suppOft
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for research in universities and hospitals limit its support to work that is more
connected with immediate health problems and public health problems and the
like. It gives about $3} million a year for medical research and the defence
research board gives about $500,000. So, in the current year there will be used
for medical research in the universities and hospitals of our country about $11
million from federal funds. At the same time, the Americans will have on the
basis of their national research product spent just about six times as much.

Of their funds in the past six years N.LLH. have awarded to Canadian
workers increasing funds reaching about $1,800,000 per year by 1963. Since
then they have started not, because of lack of value of the research, but for
reasons of their own, which include some unwillingness to give funds outside
their own country, to reduce the funds that they have been giving to workers
in Canada and other foreign countries. This creates quite a problem for our
research-granting bodies because when some people have had large funds from
N.ILH.—one research worker has had considerably over $100,000—and when
Such sums are suddenly cut off it becomes an embarrassment to the research
Worker and a responsibility of the M.R.C. to try to make a first class worker
as much as possible of the American grant that is being discontinued in order
that he may carry on with his work.

We knew that the N.LLH. funds awarded to Canadians were going to be
reduced and we have tried to have available the necessary funds to keep the
Work going. How much can be given to make up for loss of American grants,
Temains to be seen. Our critical problem is that whereas our research support
has increased greatly, and is increasing, the need for research is increasing and
the number of people who are highly qualified and capable of doing good
;‘esearch also is increasing; it has been increasing more rapidly than are our
unds.

You might put it this way: the success of our government in stimulating
and supporting research has been great enough that it has increased the
number of workers doing good research and has increased the demand more
. Tapidly than the funds have increased. That is the financial side of it.

I mentioned some of the problems about the diabetic. When insulin was
discovered, naturally every doctor that was using it thought that diabetes
Would no longer be a great problem; but they did not know that the diabetic
Who had some hereditary tendency to become a diabetic also had hereditary
tendencies to suffer from certain degenerate diseases, and when insulin was
given to maintain a fairly normal blood sugar, the patient might still go on
to have related complications in the eyes, kidneys, blood vessels and many
Organs. Similarly, treatments for other disorders which at first seem to give
Virtually complete recovery, may later be shown to be inadequate in some
Tespects.

It is one of the interesting things in medical research that insulin was
discovered in Canada in 1922, or, rather, became available in 1922. Dr. Minot
of Boston who discovered the liver treatment for pernicious anaemia was a
diabetic and not likely to live very long. Insulin kept him alive and well enough
to discover liver treatment for pernicious anaemia in 1926 and also for many
Years after that.

When the liver treatment for pernicious anaemia was discovered, it was
thought there might be some dietary defect. Soon it was shown that the
Stomach of these patients could not absorb a particular essential substance.

fter 15 years it finally was found that the substance in the diet that needs
to be absorbed was a substance called B-12. The amount of B-12 actually needed
O relieve the disease is extremely small. It is necessary to give only one
licrogram per day by injection to keep a person completely free from perni-
C€lous anaemia. This now can be given by injections about once a month. It is
cuStomary, however, to give much more than that. There are 1,000 micrograms
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in one milligram and 60 milligrams in one grain, and five grains in an aspirin
tablet; a quantity of B-12 the size of an aspirin tablet given per day would be
enough to keep 300,000 people free from pernicious anaemia. One can hardly
imagine anything working in a smaller amount.

This discovery of Minot’s that liver contained a substance which would
cure pernicious anaemia gave a tremendous stimulus to the research of the
blood forming organs and associated disorders so that now there are thousands
of people all over the world working in this big field. Disorders of the blood
forming organs occur in a small proportion of people given certain drugs, and
this is important when new drugs are used. One never knows whether a given
person may become sensitive to a given drug. Every person will not do so; if
every person became sensitive to a drug it would never come into use.

To give you an example, around the turn of the century a drug called
606, or salvarsan, was introduced in the treatment of syphilis, and for a very
long time was the best treatment. After using this drug for a period of be-
tween 20 and 25 years, it was found that a few people suffered a very peculiar
condition of the blood. The white cells would be reduced, and then there were
certain changes in the bone marrow. A number of people died of this disease
because they had developed this type of sensitivity to salvarsan.

Any new drug may have the potential ability to cause allergic diseases
of one kind or another in a small proportion of people. When penicillin was
discovered by Fleming—and later produced in larger quantities by Florey and
his associates, the British found they were unable to manufacture it in the
quantities that were needed during the war. They brought over their knowl-
edge to America and the United States pharmaceutical industry co-operated
with them wonderfully. During the war they produced it in such quantities,
beginning in 1943, that sufficient amounts were available for the treatment of
the allied soldiers wounded or suffering from many illnesses and diseases in the
Normandy campaign.

We all thought that penicillin was a wonderfully safe drug—and it is. It is
also a wonderfully efficient one; it did not take any length of time to learn that
you could treat pneumococcus pneumonia, streptococcus infections, and many
others, with remarkable results. It immediately cured a number of persons; there
was not the slightest doubt of its efficacy. It has been the greatest discovery
of the age for the treatment of infection but it does not cure all infections. It
has led to a tremendous increase in the search for other antibiotics which are
substances derived from the growth of organisms, they come from living orga-
nisms and are useful in the treatment of infections because they either destroy
or prevent the growth of the bacteria which cause disease. There are not anti-
biotics for all diseases, but the number of effective antibiotics has increased
tremendously. The pharmaceutical houses are the only places where this search
can be conducted on a large scale. It is tremendously expensive to do it, and
the universities neither have the men nor the wherewithal for it. However,
that is another story.

What I started to talk about in respect of penicillin is that first we thought
this drug was an entirely safe drug; but gradually we found some persons
became sensitive to it. Sometimes the sensitivity took the form of a skin erup-
tion; a dermatitis developed which might last for six or eight weeks, but it
was not very serious. However sometimes when penicillin is given by injec-
tion to people who have become a little bit sensitive to it, it creates what is
called a severe anaphylactic reaction, a type of reaction to proteins which had
been recognized many, many years before.

Pepicillin can kill a sensitive person in a very few minutes. For example,
a certain patient was being treated with penicillin for a skin infection caused
by staphylococcus. He became a little sensitive to it and treatment was stopped-
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He went to a doctor who was thoroughly competent and who performed a skin
test on him with penicillin, by putting a little penicillin. in a small abrasion
in the skin to find out whether the patient was sensitive. The test was negative.
Then the doctor gave an injection of penicillin whereupon the patient died
in five minutes. Such sudden death comes only once in several thousands of
persons being given penicillin.

This situation was not recognized till several years after penicillin had
been introduced and thousands of lives had been saved. That is an example
that I would point out about a new drug. One does not know whether it is
safer for sure, just from the result of testing it on animals. One does not know
if it is safe, for use, even when it is given to a thousand human beings. One is
always on the lookout for any adverse reaction which is peculiar to a particular
patient when any new drug or even an old drug is administered. It took twenty
years to ascertain that “salvarsan” did this sort of thing, and it took only a
few years to find instances in connection with penicillin.

But any allergic reaction requires not only an individual who is capable
of reacting, but also exposure for a certain length of time to the drug in ques-
tion or to other offending substances. For example, in this part of the world
we are all exposed to ragweed pollen beginning about the middle of August
each year. About ten per cent of the people in this country ultimately suffer
from hay fever from exposure to it. A few begin to be sensitive to it in their
early childhood. Some people have to be exposed to it for very many years
before sensitivity appears. Some people never become sensitive to it.

For example, one of my colleagues became sensitive to it when he was
40 years of age. He had never had ragweed fever before. But now at well
over 60 he is no longer sensitive to it.

Any new drug may have a capacity to produce some type of allergic
reaction. Such allergic reactions may be as mild as hay fever, or as serious
as acute anaphylaxis. Research must be continued in this field to study the
sensitivity reaction in all its aspects. It is one of the very big problems of
medical research today. This problem is tied in with another problem where at
first it might not appear to have any similarity. I refer to the transplantation
of tissue from one body to another, for example, blood may be regarded as a
tissue; there are certain blood groups; and if blood is transfused it is necessary
to give blood from persons of the appropriate blood group, or the patient will
react against it. That is one type of adverse reaction.

Suppose one wishes to graft skin. It is almost impossible to give skin
from another person, and to have it grow on the person who is receiving it—and
some of my colleagues in this committee know this well—the surgeon must
take healthy skin from some other part of the same body with which to cover
the denuded area.

Another study much to the fore now is the transplantation of a healthy
kidney to a person dying from advanced kidney disease. If this could be done
easily, it would be a very wonderful thing. Most people can get on for many,
Mmany years, sometimes until old age, with only one kidney. But when kidneys
were first transplanted, every transplanted kidney finally shrank up and died.

he surgeon can make an excellent transplantation and join up all the arteries
and veins, the kidney will live and may do its job for a little while, only to
shrink up later and be of no use.

Then it was found by a famous Englishman and others that if certain
cells of the body are destroyed or greatly reduced, particularly those that have
to do with development of reactions against transplanted tissues, namely the
IymDhocy’ces the ability of the body to react against transplanted tissues is

ecreased. These cells can be greatly reduced by X-ray treatment and by the
use of certain drugs.
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Attempts to transplant kidneys have been successful in a few instances,
sometimes for as long as six months, and sometimes for a longer period, but
the problem is to find some way of keeping the lymphocytes and similar cells
reduced and keep the person alive. There is a great deal of work to be done.
Hundreds of thousands of dollars are being spent on this one problem of try-
ing to find some way of gradually getting the body to accept a kidney from
another person. The best results come when kidneys from an identical twin is
transplanted into his fellow.

That is an example of the type of fundamental research which must be
done in this very broad field. I do not know how much of our money in the
medical research council goes to the study of such transplantation problems,
but it is a significant sum. All great research progresses slowly, a step at a time.
It is done by imaginative people being given money and freedom to study
as they see fit, given a chance to try one approach after another. It is sur-
prising how wonderfully knowledge has increased by this slow process. Usu-
ally important practical applications come after the basic understanding has
been achieved. Sometimes it comes about as the result of good luck, as in the
case of the discovery that eating large amounts of liver would cure a patient
with pernicious anaemia.

The point I am making with this rather long discussion is that when you
have competent people to do research it is important to give them funds, to
give them the freedom to work, to give them places to work and to hope that
they will have the breadth of understanding to realize that they can learn a
great deal by talking to people engaged in practice. It is a great thing for
people to learn from one another. Even medical research workers who are
most informed in special fields and have great knowledge can learn by asso-
ciation with good practitioners who tell them of their problems.

I could go on like this, but I think I have gone on too long. I will now be
happy to answer any questions the members wish to ask.

Mr. Macrasey: Doctor, I appreciate your very excellent examples. As
most members of this committee know, I am not a doctor or a druggist but I
am interested in your remarks in respect of diabetes for a personal reason.

I might say that the first time in many, many years I was ashamed to
be a Canadian was during the trip we took to the Hotel Dieu, at which time
we witnessed the deplorable conditions under which Dr. Genest works in
respect of his clinical research on hypertension. I think they are bloody dis-
graceful. I do not know whether that is parliamentary language or not, but
I know I would be the first Liberal to cross the party bonds if I thought I
could support some motion from anywhere in the House of Commons which
would do something to put funds at the disposal of humanitarians such as
Dr. Genest. We have no excuse for this situation because we have one of the
highest standards of living in the world.

The facts you gave us and the facts given to us by Dr. Genest were cal-
culated on a per capita basis. It is time we took our heads out of the sand
and realized the value of research and the deplorable conditions that exist.
I do not know whether the drug companies are contributing enough to clinical
research for men such as Dr. Genest, but one thing that struck me during
Dr. Genest’s remarks was the fact, as he suggested, when history is written
for each century, such as the industrial revolution, the humanities, cultural
advances, the 20th century will be referred to as the greatest century for
medical discoveries. Dr. Genest indicated in very choice language, which I
appreciated very much, that Canada will be way down on the list in respect
of what it has accomplished. I think perhaps if this Food and Drug committee
does nothing else but forcibly bring these deplorable conditions to the attention
of the people who have money,—whether that involves the Department of
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Health and Welfare or some other department—, so that they place more
money at the disposal of these research laboratories, we will have done some-
thing great.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: That is a very good point you have raised because
the research councils up to this time have not had funds available for
buildings. That has been considered the responsibility of the Universities and
Hospitals. Requests have been made that funds be supplied by the federal
government for buildings at universities but this request has not been met
as yet.

Dr. Genest, of course, receives funds from the Medical Research Council
for the operational support of his research. It is only fair, however, to point
out that even in the United States, which has much larger funds available
to support operational research, only in the last year or two has it given any
significant funds for buildings at either hospitals or universities. When the
United States government was increasing the funds by leaps and bounds it
did not increase the amount for buildings.

There is a peculiar circumstance in United States government policy which
does not exist in our government policy. When the N.LH. puts in its budget
to the United States government it asks for a given sum of money. The request
goes before the House of Representatives and the Senate and very often the
amount of money has been increased to a point that it is greater than can be
used well at once. One year the amount granted was increased by $100 million
which was about 30 or 40 per cent more than the N.ILLH. had requested. That
situation could not happen with our system of government.

The point is that even with those large funds they do not give funds for
buildings. They feel that this is the responsibility of the local universities.
Last year the N.L.H. budget included $50 million for buildings but there are
almost 90 medical schools in the United States and if that amount is spread
around them all it would not spread very far.

That government has given huge funds for other facilities including
tremendously expensive equipment that is now needed in certain types of
research. For instance, in medical research, electron microscopes are becoming
Very important. An electron microscope costs $40,000 and may be out of date
in five or ten years.

I feel that our government has come along further than some others. The
United States has gone very much further than we have. Sweden has always
been ready to give from its relatively small income a great deal for research.
Great Britain gives somewhat less, not much more than we give. It is very hard
to compare these things. Some of the smaller European countries are very
great in their support of medical research. We have to keep in mind that
this effort has been made in the last ten years. Ten years ago the United States
gave about as much for research through the government, as we did. But
through local foundations and their wealthy corporations, they were giving
far more than did Canadians.

When I came back from Boston in 1928 to take my position at the
University of Toronto I was tremendously struck by the difference between
Canadian corporations and United States corporations in respect of their
Willingness to give money for medical research. There was a little federal
Money available in Boston but there were many corporations that would give
Money freely.

Mr. MAckrASEY: I have just two more questions to ask and I promise then
to remain silent. I have received letters from men in the research field who
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indicate some alarm about the fact that they have had to rely almost exclu-
sively, or primarily, on contributions toward research made by our friends in
the United States. As a Canadian I am perhaps a little ashamed again in this
regard.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: That is true.

Mr. MackASEY: These people are afraid that perhaps these research funds
are not going to be as readily available next year as they have been in the
past. I wonder whether you people are aware of this situation. I am sure you
are but I should like to know what steps have been taken to compensate or
offset the possible damming up of the revenue?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: I made mention of this fact in my earlier remarks.
Most of those funds come from the National Institutes of Health. I use the
initials N.I.LH. because that is common parlance. There are a number of insti-
tutes which direct their efforts toward certain types of research such as cancer,
heart and general science as well as mental, childhood and maternal diseases
etc. These different institutes are under the direction of Dr. James Shannon
with whom we have full communication. As I pointed out, they gave about
$1.8 million a year ago and we have cut that figure by approximately $300,000
to $400,000. We have not been able to compensate entirely for that cut but we
are looking after as large a part of it as we can. We have confidence that the
government will come to our assistance.

Mr. MACKASEY: That who might come to your assistance?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: The government.

Mr. MACKASEY: On what do you base this confidence?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: Maybe I have more confidence than you.

Mr. MackAseY: I ask this subjectively because I am part of the govern-
ment; we all here are part of the government, and we either pay lip service
to this committee or we become involved in it, as I am afraid I have become
involved in it, regardless of party lines. I am not interested in party lines; I
just want to see more money put at the disposal of research.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: This is a difficult question for me to answer in my
position now, but last year our budget increased from $4.3 million to $5.1
million. For the current year our budget has increased from $5.1 million to
$6.93 million. I think the trend is for more money, and I think responsible
people understand the needs.

Mr. MackASEY: Who prepares the budget? This may seem to be a rather
ridiculous question, but who sets the ceiling on the budget? Do you people ask
for more than you want, in the traditional manner? Who sets the limit?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: This is a function of the treasury board. Up till last
year, as you know, the treasury board was chaired by the Minister of Finance
but there has been a change in that organization. I am not just sure how it
will work. However, the officials of the treasury board have the difficult job
of trying to fit in all the increasing budgets of all departments. It is natural
that the medical research council, looking at its situation and its needs, would
like to obtain great increases. Our case is presented each year and I think it
may receive increasingly favourable consideration.

Mr. MACRASEY: My only comment is that we seem to be able to find money
for bridges, world fairs, and fancy things like that, but when it comes to re-
search there is insufficient money. It is possible that within the government
there are insufficient people lobbying or insufficient people who are dedicated.
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Mr. FARQUHARSON: Perhaps I can answer your question by quoting Dr.
James Shannon, head of N.ILH. He pointed out in an address given some ten
years ago at the CIBA conference on medical research in London that in the
United States many influential people became aware that their government
lacked funds for medical research and that they were behind many other
prominent governments, such as the government of Great Britain. He pointed
out that between the two wars there became an increasing awareness through-
out the people of the United States that all research was important, and
particularly medical research, and that the government had responded to the
increased desire of the people to have medical research.

Mr. MAcCKRASEY: Thank you very much.

Mr. MiTcHELL: May I ask a supplementary question arising from that?

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mitchell.

Mr. MrrcHELL: I would like to get some background from Dr. Farquharson.
You and your staff are part of the national research council or the Department
of National Health and Welfare?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: We are the medical research council. This was formerly
part of the national research council but in 1960 the government, by order in
council, established the medical research council as virtually an autonomous
subsidiary of the national research council.

Mr. MIiTcHELL: Your funds, therefore, come through the national research
council?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: We appear before treasury board at the same time as
the national research council appears and our budget is listed with their
budget.

Mr. MrTcHELL: May I go on from there? What staff do you have in your re-
search department and what qualifications do your research men have in
different lines?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: I should like to point out first of all that all our funds
for research are spent through the universities and associated hospitals and
institutions. We have no laboratories of our own at the present time.

Mr. MiTcHELL: That is what I am getting at.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: That may come later, but we have none at the present
time. Our money is given as grants in aid of research which are applied for by
People from Halifax to Vancouver working in universities and hospitals, and
some other institutions. Our job is to distribute our funds to the best advantage
of medical research. This is done by a council which is appointed to do so, and
this council has representatives in different fields of research across the country.

he council also obtains the aid of committees of experts in many different
fields.

Mr. MriTcHELL: Would you obtain any grants, doctor, from any phar-
Maceutical houses when a new product is being marketed and on which they
Would ask your research experts to work clinically?

~ Mr. FARQUHARSON: They do not give money to the M.R.C. for distribu-
tion, but some pharmaceutical houses give money to different workers in dif-
ferent university centres, hospitals, departments of pharmacology and so on,
Which deal with drugs, as you know.

Mr. MrTcHELL: But, would you say, not to any particular volume?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: It is not a large volume, no. It is usually for a highly
Sbecific purpose that is not broad in its research efforts. The real research

that will matter in the long run is broad research which tries to find out
about the body and its functions in health and in disease, and that is expensive
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research very often. The expenses are growing because instruments that were
unthought of a few years ago are wonderfully valuable and equally expensive;
and more men are trained to use them.

I am not worried of the Canadian research effort provided it receives the
support it requires. We have people who are competent and interested in
doing it, people who want to do it in Canada. I am not afraid of some people
going to the United States because the transfer to the United States some
persons of this type of person is one of the best things that has happened. These
people are our best ambassadors abroad, and we are beginning to get some
very good ones in return. We are getting more Americans who want to come to
Canada than was the case in the past.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Willoughby.

Mr. WiLLouGHBY: Dr. Farquharson, in your original commission report
you suggested that our expenditure in research is only one to ten in comparison
with the United States, but now we have raised it to one to six. Is that correct?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: Yes.

Mr. WiLLouGHBY: In other words, for us to be competitive with the United
States we should increase our research money to $45 million from $7 million—
if we are to compete in the same calibre of research.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: If we were to have the same amount of funds as the
United States we would have to increase by about six times. I said the medical
research council budget was just under $7 million. In this calculation I used
also the funds given by the Department of National Health and Welfare and
by the defence research board; and those funds, together with the funds of
the medical research council, come to about $11 million, and we would need
approximately six times that figure.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: You have answered one of the questions that I was
going to ask you and that is in reference to the relationship between the
medical research council and the national research council. You have said that
the medical research council is almost autonomous. Why do you say that it is
almost autonomous?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: The report of the committee I chaired recommended that
there should be established a medical research council, an autonomous, inde-
pendent medical research council. The thought was to have a medical research
council act. The government went this far: by order in council they set up
a medical research council as a virtually autonomous body. The medical
research council makes its own decisions but it uses National Research Council
buildings and services.

Mr. WiLLouGHBY: Are the funds controlled by the national research
council?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: The funds are placed at our disposal entirely.

Mr. WiLrLougHBY: At the disposal of which council?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: The medical research council.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: So you have complete control of the finances?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: Yes.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: You spoke of a ﬁgure of $15 million, or something like
that, that should be donated to assist in the construction of buildings for
research areas.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: I think in my report, which was given in 1959, it was
recommended that in the next three to five years there should be $39 million
given for buildings. That need has increased. This has never been regarded 8%
a federal function. Our committee reported to the federal government. We were
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set up by the federal government. That was before I was chairman of the
medical research council, but I was already the director of the medical division.
We recommended that this money should be provided.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: You have not received any grants of that type?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: We did not recommend that it be necessarily given
through the medical research council. There are certain difficulties in gov-
ernment. We recommend that some way be found to give it for this purpose.
We were willing to take it if the government wished to give it to us but we
were willing that it should be given through the Canadian universities founda-
tion. We were willing that it should be done in any way, but we were not
stating the political method; we were describing the need.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: You still have not received it?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: No. Locally, many buildings have been built but the
needs are great and the cost of equipping these buildings with modern in-
struments is going up by leaps and bounds. ;

Mr. WiLLoucHBY: If you did have a building program that would provide
buildings, is there a proper co-ordination between the different centres so
there would not be duplication and overlapping in one subject?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: That question is often asked. If one had no overlapping
it would be bad because people need colleagues working in their field; two
people cannot really work in exactly the same way. Let us suppose that some
person makes an application to carry out a certain project, then one of our
committees—and we have very capable committees consisting of members from
the universities and hospitals—may say that this project has been carried
out three times and has been well done. The question is answered. We give
that information to the man and he does not obtain the grant for that
Purpose.

Mr. WiLLouGHBY: I see; there is a control.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: It is not complete control but there is advice, if you
like. We do not give money to do something we know has already been done.
In cases of people working on the same subject, we sometimes suggest that
they collaborate with one another.

Mr. WiLLouGHBY: I have one last question. Do you feel, in the ecircum-
stances, that actual drug research should be left to the pharmaceutical com-
Panies and that the clinical side should be carried out by the universities?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: I would never stop a man in a university from dis-
covering a new drug, but when it comes to the job of getting that drug pro-
duced it is often very difficult to do in quantity, as was penicillin. In the
case of penicillin, no person had ever been in the field before and it was
difficult to produce it in quantities, but the drug houses have tremendous
blants for doing this, plants that no university or hospital could equal.
The same thing has been the case for producing other new drugs from growths
of minute organisms, i.e. antibiotics. The universities cannot begin to cope
Wwith it. However, the universities and people in the hospitals have to try out
those drugs; they have to try them on animals first and then they have to
try them on human beings where it is justified to do so. I make a great
Point about that. I as a doctor—although I am no longer in practice—would
Not try any drug, no matter how good it promises to be, which any pharma-
Ceutical house or any other person asked me to try unless I think my patient
May gain something by getting that drug, and neither would you. This is one
thing that a lot of people do not appreciate. No self-respecting doctor is going
0 try one drug after another. No matter how eminent a worker he is and

Ow valuable he thinks a drug is, there are always potential dangers in its
use. I do not believe in giving a drug that might not help my patient, and
20851—2
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therefore I will not submit my patient to being a guinea pig. This is one of the
difficulties of getting proper tests done. Every man who is responsible for the
care of patients must make sure that he does what is best for his patient from
his own point of view. I am willing to test a new drug that promises a lot
and to test it very carefully, but I am not willing to spend my life testing
one after another.

Mr. WILLOUGHBY: The point I was making was that the cost of producing
drugs is so great that the money now allotted for the medical research council
should not be spent to such a great extent on that angle but more on the
clinical angle.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: The good drug houses do it so wonderfully well.

Mr. MAcAaLuso: Dr. Farquharson, talking about medical research at uni-
versities, McMaster University has a nuclear reactor. This department has
been involved in medical research dealing with atomic research. Does the
medical research council contribute funds to their research?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: Most of their money comes from the national research
council because they have no medical school. Some funds do go from the medical
research council to them as well.

Mr. MacaLuso: Is there a difference in priority of funds from the medical
research council, because that university has no medical school as yet and is
doing quite a bit of medical research, in fact it is pioneering in the field of
nuclear medicine?

Mr. FaArqQuHARSON: There is a good deal of collaboration between the two
councils, and sometimes the national research council says, “We think you
should take this over”, and sometimes we do it, and sometimes we do not.
Sometimes we say, “We think you should take this over”. There is much collab-
oration. I know McMaster university very well and I know that everything
that Dr. Thode does he does well.

Mr. MacaLuso: I concur with that wholeheartedly. I know that the uni-
versity will very shortly be putting up its own medicine school. The pioneering
work they are doing, as far as the nuclear field in medical research is con-
cerned has broken ground in this country.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: They made tremendous advances there.

Mr. MacALuso: Connecting that with, say, drug research, the drug houses
themselves have more facilities and more personnel to carry this out on a large
scale than a university. In this field of nuclear medical research which McMaster
is carrying on, what part would drug research play?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: I do not think they are doing much. The whole field
of radio biology is one that needs greater development in Canada. In the United
States huge funds have been allotted for that purpose, and much of the work
that they do does not need to be done over again, but in every country there
must be people who are working on the effects of radiation; there must be
people who understand it not only from the point of view or defence but from
the point of view of industry. There are going to be accidents, and the study
of changes induced by radiation and how people may be affected and how they
may be helped is very important. We have a good deal of work in Canada
going on, on that subject, and as we train more people in that field there will
be many more working on this. It is one of the fields that will progress and
which needs highly trained people. This is a very good point.

Mr. MacaLuso: It is, at the present time, one of the fields where more funds
can be directed from the federal government.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: Men are being trained for it, and there is as much
trouble in getting good trained men as there is in getting the money. If we gave
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all the funds in the world, we would still be held back by the lack of highly
intelligent, highly gifted in imagination and highly trained people.

Mr. MacaLuso: Right now personnel are coming from universities that are
conducting that type of research.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: They are increasing in numbers every year. Up to this
time the opportunities for trained men have been increasing more rapidly than
the funds for their support or buildings for them to work in.

Mr. RyNARD: First of all, I would like to compliment Dr. Farquharson on
presenting a complex and complicated problem in layman’s language.

Mr. RoxBURGH: Hear, hear.

Mr. RynarD: I think all of us in the professional field can learn a good
lesson from him.
I would also like to ask him what the top researchers are paid in Canada?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: That is a very good question. Those who work in uni-
versities and are paid by the universities at their own scale which varies in
amount. An approximate figure—not the absolute top but an average figure
for a well established man in full time work in university, doing a great deal
of research,—would be $15,000 a year; there are many working for a good deal
less. There is a great variation in the United States, as there is in Canada.
In the United States, in some universities, the salaries are as low as any in
Canada, but there are some salaries which are very much higher than any in
Canada. There are a few heads of departments at universities who get $20,000
Qrdm(:ire, and a very few getting substantially more—but there are very few
Indeed.

Now, regarding what the medical research council pays, the M.R.C. began
e_ight years ago when it was a medical division, to pay the salaries of a
limited number of research workers. This was before the N.LH. began
to do so. They have expanded their programme much more rapidly. Our
Present scale has a top of about $16,000. No person has reached that top yet
because the men we pay, are still relatively young. We call them medical
Tesearch associates. They are applied for by the university, the university
uUndertakes to provide the facilities, and M.R.C. offers according to their age,
experience and excellence, if you like, a given salary. They are not appointed
until they have several years experience after their six year course, and it
Varies from about $9,000 to $16,000. The one who was appointed first, a highly
€minent person who has been there longest, is getting just under $15,000.

Mr. RyYNARD: You have noticed, Dr. Farquharson, that there is great
Unanimity in this committee, and my friend, Mr. Mackasey, stated that very
Well when he said that we were all together here to support anything that
Would add to research. I am just wondering if we should not as a group
Support increased pay for those researchers. Here is Dr. Farquharson’s stating
their salaries. I am not picking out any one man, but, for instance, Mr. Ouimet
8ets $40,000, and yet all of those fellows who are in medical research have
a tough time. A lot of them work alone with their own problems. It would
Seem to me that those people are grossly underpaid. I think we as a group
here, regardless of politics, ought to support increased pay for those researchers.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: May I interrupt, Dr. Rynard? We make it a rule that
We offer our scale to the universities and the university may say, “This should
be higher”, and they may pay more, or they may say, “We do not want them
to be paid this much” because there are a number of universities which have
& scale considerably lower and they say it would disturb relations in their
Universities if the M.R.C. scale were paid. Then we pay on the scale they ask
Us to pay. If they ask us to pay more we do not pay more than our scale but
We do not mind if they increase it. In the United States the scale goes up
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to $25,000 and in Canada it goes up to $16,000. But, they do exactly the same
thing with regard to the university and sometimes they give people as little
as our lowest. If one is working in a university it is necessary to keep roughly
within the university scale. I may say that our scale going up has helped the
universities to raise their scale. You have raised a very good point there, Dr.
Rynard.

Mr. RYNARD:I remember when Dr. Waltham Walters was head of research
for some ten years in the United States. This is about 10 years ago and he said
that they were experiencing great difficulty in obtaining competent researchers.
I am wondering if this same condition exists today in Canada and in the
United States?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: Well, our present rates appeal to many people who
are dedicated to research; they do not ask for large salaries but they do ask
for security. And, M.R.C. on behalf of these people pay the universities all
the costs in respect of their pension fund.

Mr. RyNarD: Do you experience any problems where you have a researcher
working and he has a very definite plan you have approved of, and then he
wants to go off on a side plan, something he feels that it is necessary to do?
And, in this connection is there any red tape which holds this up?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: No. We tell him to go wherever he wants to go and
to tell us after he has done it. But, we say, “Do not delay; go wherever your
research leads you.”

In the medical research council we have a great advantage which is not
enjoyed by the department of health. We have free use of our funds without
any restriction on accounting. I should say these funds have to be accounted
for but we can do this after they are used.

Mr. Mackasey: Do these funds have to be accounted for to you or to
treasury board? For example, take Dr. Genest; if he wanted to deviate and
suppose he was going to hire two girls at a total salary of $5,000, which was
approved, and then he wanted to change his mind and have just one man at
$5,000, would this be in order?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: Do you mean if he' wanted more money?

Mr. MACKASEY: No, but he wants to take the money which has been
approved and use it in a different way?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: We tell him to use it in any way he likes. Treasury
board does not make any such restrictions on us.

Mr. RoxBURGH: Mr. Chairman, I just want to ask one question because
the bell is ringing.

In dealing with medicine we are dealing with the people of the world
and that means people in every country in the world. I want to say very defi-
nitely that I am in full agreement with plenty of money being provided for
research in every line, especially in medicine; but you made a statement earlier
that the United States, which is a wealthy country, gives so much, and Canada
gives only so much. You went on to say that Great Britain did not put the effort
into research which it might in proportion to the wealth of that country.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: I did not mean that. I said they did not spend nearly
as much as the United States.

Mr. RoxBURGH: This concerns the peoples of the world. We have NATO.
Mr. FARQUHARSON: Yes.

3 Mr. RoxBurcH: Has any effort been made to have a world wide organiza-
tion into which all countries would put their money according to their national
product on a percentage basis, because this affects every person in the world,
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every little country, and every large country. If there is not such an organiza-
tion, would not such an organization be able to do more if the wealthy countries
would contribute according to their means. This would be a world wide organ-
ization. The experiments, whatever they may be, would be carried out in the
different countries of the world. Has any thought been given to such an
organization?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: NATO has given some special scholarships, and some
funds have been given through the World Health Organization. However,
research in general has to be continued on a national basis, except that the
United States, through its National Institute of Health, has distributed funds to
many countries in the world.

Mr. RoxBURGH: This has to do with all of the people of the world. Do you
not think that every country should be involved, such as Africa and others?
Here we have all the different countries, such as Great Britain, France, Russia,
and Germany all doing a certain amount of research within their own countries.
Do you not think there might be a world wide organization where every
country could play its part in this?

Mr. FARQUHARSON: I would like to say one thing about that. Finally, the
most important thing is to have the men who can do the research, and in so
many of the countries there are no persons trained to do it.

Mr. RUTHERFORD: They could be trained with the extra money that the
other countries are not putting in at the present time.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: They could be trained but it takes time to train them.

Mr. RUTHERFORD: I am thinking of the future. NATO has started it in one
direction, and we were forced into it.

Mr. FARQUHARSON: The first thing is to obtain men who are trained. We
train a lot of persons from those countries.

The CHAIRMAN: If there are no further questions, I would like to thank Dr.
Farquharson for his appearance and for giving us his time and his knowledge.

The meeting is adjourned until Tuesday, when we will have with us
Dr. Morrell of the Food and Drug Directorate.






\

HOUSE OF COMMONS
Second Session—Twenty-Sixth Parliament

1964

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

ON

FOOD AND DRUGS

Chairman: Mr. HARRY C. HARLEY

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE
No. 6

TUESDAY, JUNE 16, 1964

WITNESSES:

Dr.C. A. Morrell, Director, and Dr. L. I. Pugsley, Associate Director, both
of the Food and Drug Directorate, Department of National Health and
Welfare.

ROGER DUHAMEL, F.R.S.C.
QUEEN'S PRINTER AND CONTROLLER OF STATIONERY

OTTAWA, 1964
208531



SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON FOOD AND DRUGS

Chairman: Mr. Harry C. Harley
Vice-Chairman: Mr. Rodger Mitchell

and Messrs.

Armstrong Gauthier Orlikow
Asselin (Richmond- Horner (Jasper-Edson) Prud’homme

Wolfe) Howe (Hamilton South) Roxburgh
Basford Jorgenson Rynard
Casselman (Mrs.) Macaluso Slogan
Coté (Longueuil) Mackasey Whelan
Enns Marcoux Willoughby—24
Francis Nesbitt

(Quorum 8)

Gabrielle Savard, ;
Clerk of the Committee. [




MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TuESDAY, June 16, 1964
(10)

The Special Committee on Food -and Drugs met at 9.45 a.m. this day. The
Chairman, Mr. Harry C. Harley, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Asselin (Richmond-Wolfe), Francis, Harley,
Macaluso, Mackasey, Mitchell, Roxburgh, Slogan, Whelan (9).

In attendance: From the Food and Drug Directorate, Department of
National Health and Welfare: Dr. C. A. Morrell, Director; Dr. L. I. Pugsley,
Associate Director; Dr. Frank Lu, Head of the Pharmacology and Toxicology
Section; Dr. R. C. B. Graham and Dr. D. C. Jessup, Pharmacologists; and Miss
E. M. Ordway, of the Consumers Relations Section.

At the opening of the meeting, it was moved by Mr. Francis, seconded by
Mr. Macaluso, and

Resolved (Unanimously)—That this Committee pay reasonable living and
travelling expenses incurred by Dr. R. F. Farquharson, M.B.E., M.D., by reason
of his appearance before the Committee.

The Chairman read into the record a letter received from Dr. Jacques
G?nest, M.D., F.A.C.P,, F.R.C.P. (C), Director, Clinical Research Dept., Hotel-
D}eu de Montréal, and referred to another one from Cyanamid of Canada
Limited with reference to the visit of the Committee to the Lederle Laboratories
at Pear] River, New York, on the 7th of July.

_The Chairman then welcomed back Dr. C. A. Morrell and thanked him for
having his department show the members of the Committee the laboratories
of the Food and Drug Directorate.

Dr. Morrell was questioned about the facilities of the Directorate to carry

On its work, the quality control of the raw material in the manufacturing of
d,rUgS, the inspection services, the qualifications and training of personnel,
Ceénsing, labelling, sale of patent medicine, regulations on quality control, etc.

.The questioning concluded, the Chairman thanked Dr. Morrell and the
Officials of his department for their appearances before the Committee.

At 11.00 a.m. the Committee adjourned to 9.30 am. Friday, June 19th.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

TuUESDAY, June 16, 1964.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I believe we now have a quorum.

Before we move on to our witness this morning, as you all remember we
had Dr. Farquharson with us last week, and Dr. Farquharson, while being the
chairman of the medical research council and therefore a civil servant, did
have to make a special trip up here to Ottawa. I would therefore like to have
a resolution that we pay the expenses of Dr. Farquharson for this trip.

Mr. Francis: I would so move.
Mr. MacaLuso: I second the motion.
The CHAIRMAN: All those in favour?

Motion agreed to.
It is agreed that Dr. Farquharson’s expenses will be paid.
Before we continue with our examination of Dr. Morrell, there are two

letters I would like to bring to your attention. The first one is from Dr. Jacques
Genest which reads:

Dear Doctor Harley:

I want to tell you how pleased I was to have the occasion to meet
the members of your committee and to show them our clinical research
department where part of our activities is devoted to the evaluation of
new drugs.

I wish also to thank you for your kind invitation to testify before
your committee in Ottawa. I am at your entire disposal if you feel
that at any time I can contribute something on any aspects of evaluation
of new drugs, the protection of the public in relation to it and the ap-
propriateness of using trade or generic names for drugs.

I wish you success in your work and please convey to your mem-
bers my best regards.

(Signed) Jacques Genest, M.D.,
FACP., FRCP.(E)
Director, Clinical Research
Department.

The second letter is from Cyanamid of Canada Limited giving a brief
Outline of our trip to Pearl river. We will be leaving Uplands airport at eight
o'clock on the morning of July 7, and we will be returning here at approxi-
Mately 9:30 p.m. on the same day.

There is a letter in the mail to every member of the committee asking
Whether they do or do not intend to be on that trip. We have to clear our trip
With the Department of External Affairs, and therefore it is important that
We know fairly soon how many are going. It is a courtesy for our govgrnment
0 let the United States government know that one of our committees is going
down there.

Gentlemen, I would like to welcome back Dr. Morrell, the director of the
f‘?od and drug directorate. I would just like to thank Dr. Morrell for having
his department show our members through his food and drug laboratory at

Unney’s pasture. We enjoyed the trip very much, and we thank you for
an°Wing us to go through it when it was already set up for visitors.
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Dr. C. A. MorreLL (Director, Food and Drug Directorate, Department of
National Health and Welfare): You are welcome. We should have asked you
down sooner, I think.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, the meeting is open for questions. We will go
on from where we were approximately a week to ten days ago.

Mr. MAckASEY: Mr. Chairman, I have a series of questions which I would
like to introduce immediately because they are fairly lengthy. I have based
them on my study of three or four reports we have had, including, of course,
our very informative meeting with you a week or two ago. I know that you
will not necessarily have all the answers at your fingertips. If I can get them
today, fine, if not, too bad. With the Chairman’s permission, my first question
would be: How many manufacturers or distributors of prescription drugs are
there in Canada? '

Mr. MoRRELL: By prescription drugs you mean all drugs excluding the
proprietary or patent medicines? There are 485 manufacturers and distributors
of this type.

Mr. Mackasey: I am not familiar with the terminology, but how many
of the others would there be?

Mr. MorreLL: You mean of patent medicines? I do not know. I can find
that out for you, if you wish.

Mr. MACKASEY: Yes, if I could have this information. I know it is not
your department which deals with it.

Mr. MorreLL: Yes, it is. We register proprietary or patent medicines.

Mr. MACKASEY: My second question is: How many drug businesses have
been inspected by the food and drug offices?

Mr. MorreLL: We do it by the calendar year. If I could give you the
number that were inspected in 1963, would that satisfy you?

Mr. MackAsEyY: That would be ideal.

Mr. MorreLL: The quality control regulations which are now in the
Regulations of the Food and Drugs Act were introduced in March 1963, and
during the calendar year 1963 there were 183 plants inspected.

Mr. MackasEy: With the personnel at your disposal, is it possible to
cover all these people at least once a year?

Mr. MorreLL: You mean the 485 manufacturers? No, it would not.

Mr. Macrasey: What increase in personnel do you think you would need
to do this job adequately, or would you say that once a year is too frequent?

Mr. MorreLL: It is not adequate in my opinion, Mr. Mackasey. When you
go for the first time and you find that things are reasonably satisfactory,
that there is no serious deficiency, you might well let that one go for a year
or two, but I must point out that we are just starting and there is a good
deal of corrective work to be done by a good many manufacturers, so that
more than one visit a year is certainly necessary at this time. I do not know
whether double the number of staff would be adequate or not, but it would
be something in that order.

Mr. MacrASEY: You agree that at the moment you do not have sufficient
staff, numerically at least, to police and inspect them at least once a year?

Mr. MorreLL: Definitely not.

Mr. MACKASEY: In your inspection of the 183 plants, did the facilities of
any of these manufacturers or distributors fail to meet the standards that you
have set out?

Mr. MorreLL: Yes, quite a few. I want to point out to you that we have
a marking system. There are a number of points which are critically examin
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‘flnd a certain mark given to them if it is a major point, and then the inspector
Judges from what he sees how many marks he shall give for that. For a
manufacturing plant to be considered satisfactory, they must get 90 per cent
of the total marks assigned, and there are a good many below 90 per cent.

Mr. Mackasey: Dr. Morrell, has there been any attempt made as yet or
has there been any opportunity as yet to compile the basic reasons for failure
to meet your standards? Are they categorized into any common deficiencies,
or are they a wide range of deficiencies? ;

Mr. MorReELL: The most common deficiency is apparently the lack of ade-
quate analytical controls over the raw or crude drugs coming into the plant,
and in some cases the lack of adequate analytical control of the drug from
the raw product to the finished product. In addition to that, perhaps running
a close second, are deficiencies in sanitation, in the qualifications of the per-
Sonnel, in the adequacy of the records kept, and that type of thing. These
are the areas in which the manufacturers are losing the most marks, if I can
pbut it that way, or are failing most often.

Mr. MACKASEY: Am I fair in assuming, therefore, that those manufacturers
or factories which do not have proper analytical control must rely on their
Source of supply?

Mr. MorreLL: They rely on their supplier. Sometimes they have relied
entirely on the supplier. One of the requirements in the regulations is that
they check their crude material in line with the specifications that they may

zlave set up or that are in pharmocopoeias. The identification of them is essen-
ial.

Mr. MAcCKRASEY: If these raw materials came from Europe and then went
to a manufacturer that does have analytical control, what safeguards are there
other than in your offices, for instance?

Mr. MorrReLL: That manufacturer may check his final product even though
he does not check his raw materials. I would think, however, that this is not
Teally adequate. The greatest concern we have, I think, is with raw materials
Coming from abroad. I do not want you to think that Canadians are that much
better than anyone else, but we do know about Canadian production, and I might
Say that most raw materials do come from abroad—I am including the United
States and the United Kingdom when I say “abroad” because they are outside
of our jurisdiction. The majority of our raw materials for pharmaceuticals in
Canada do come from outside of Canada. In cases where the drugs are not
checked our concern depends, of course, on the country from which they come.
If they come from countries where we have some reason to suspect and to
believe that the controls are not as good as they should be, then we are greatly
Concerned. If they come from the United States, the United Kingdom or Switzer-
land, or some such place where there is a very reasonable, or even excellent,
Manufacturing drug industry, we are not quite so concerned. However, we
think that as a matter of course, anyone who is putting up crude drugs into a

Nished pharmaceutical form which is going to be administered to a patient

Zhould check his raw material before he compounds it into a pharmaceutical
Tug.

Mr. MackaseEy: You agree that there is a possibility of some of these raw
Materials coming in from areas in Europe, other than the United Kingdom,
Whose sources you are usually concerned about, being used in conjunction with
Ingredients that do not meet your standards and have no analytical control.

hat would be double-barrelled trouble.

Mr. MogrreLL: It compounds the difficulties.

Mr. MackasEY: Again you will have to lead me because I am not too

familiar with the process. I am not a doctor but I am trying hard. The one thing
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that struck me at the meeting when we toured your place is something that
a doctor explained to us—and he did an excellent job. He said that a finished
product can also be very dangerous if for instance it does not dissolve at a rate
at which it is supposed to dissolve. To come back to these people who do not
have analytical control, who depend on the appearance of the finished product,
we cannot really use that as a sole standard, can we?

Mr. MogrreLL: The finished product itself? Oh no, I do not think we can
because even if you have a pharmacopoeial drug—by that I mean an official
drug for which a standard and a monograph is laid down in British and United
States pharmacopoeia—even though the tests that are laid down, and with which
the drug must comply if it is to meet the standards, are complete, you must
know something about the manufacturing processes in order to anticipate
or predict the possible impurities that may occur in the manufacturing process,
and these do not always show up in the tests that are laid down in pharma-
copoeias; you must go beyond that to be absolutely sure.

Mr. MAcCKASEY: To get away from that point, we could say therefore that
this is one area of control that is lacking owing possibly, and very probably, to
your shortage of staff, and secondly to the lack of proper facilities which you
discovered within these manufacturing plants.

Mr. MorreLL: We have discovered, as we anticipated, that some of them
do not carry out the tests, and our efforts are now directed to getting them to
correct this.

Mr. MAcKASEY: What action have you taken so far against these types of
manufacturers whose facilities are unsatisfactory?

Mr. MoRrreLL: This being the first year in which they have had to comply
with these regulations, we have followed the usual procedure of inspecting and
first of all pointing out to the management where they are deficient in our
opinion. Discussions are held with the management by the inspector who makes
the study of the plant, and he points out to the management what he thinks is
wrong. That is the first step. Then, if there are more significant and serious
deficiencies, we have sent a warning letter. Where these deficiencies are signif-
icant, a second visit has been made following fairly shortly the first one, to
make sure that the manufacturer is correcting the deficiencies that we have
found. I can say from the reports that I have had that a great deal of progress
has been made. They know that they must eventually do this and they get right
down to it.

Now, this coming year—this would be the second year—our attitude will
be very much different because they will have had time now to correct these
deficiencies. It takes time to remodel a building, which had to be done in some
cases, and to get new equipment and money. They should have had time to
do this by now and we will be much stiffer this coming year than we were in
the first round last year. This may lead to prosecutions.

Mr. MACKASEY: I have two more questions. One was pretty well answered
but I will repeat it. Are schedules of inspections of premises and facilities of
manufacturers and distributors of drug products set up, and if so how frequent
are the inspections? Obviously from your original answer it appeared that you
had nine months to visit 183 plants out of 485.

Mr. MoRRELL: It was really 11 months. We had made some inspections
before the regulations came into force. Some manufacturers were consulted in
setting up these regulations. We had many meetings with them, so that they
were aware of exactly what was coming. We started it 11 months ago rather
than nine months ago.

Mr. MACKASEY: That makes it a little worse. What would the ideal schedule
be, in so far as you are concerned? How frequent should be the inspections?
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Mr. MorreLL: We lack two things: we lack numbers and we lack experience
and qualification in inspectors. We have had to hire them. We are trying to get
Pharmacists, but when we offer them $5,000 and they can get $6,500 in a drug-
store, you can see that the competition is very tough. We have even taken a
man right out of the school of pharmacy. You cannot expect him to know
everything and he has to learn it after he comes into our employ. I can say that
the manufacturers have been very helpful in this respect by agreement and
discussion with us. A number of the larger companies have said, “You can put
a man in our plant for two or three weeks to study our methods of quality
control, and then he can go on to another company to see what they do”.

Mr. MACKASEY: My last question is: How many inspections of drug manu-
facturers facilities outside of Canada which supply drugs to Canadian manu-
facturers have been carried on by inspectors of the food and drug directorate?

Mr. MoRRELL: We have done none so far in the pharmaceutical field. I want
to be sure that when we send an inspector to Europe he really knows his
business, because I think he would have to. In terms of other drugs under the
Food and Drugs Act, the biologics for example, we have an inspection scheme.
The manufacturer is licensed to produce a biological product. This requires a
Yyearly inspection, and I think we have 17 European plants, including the British,
and 17 United States plants which have been licensed, so that there have been
34 inspections. This has been going on for many years because we have had
licences for many years, and so we have inspectors who are quite familiar and
Wwell qualified. I have no hesitation in sending them to Europe. I hope that in a
Year or two, if we can, we will have someone over there looking at the
Pharmaceutical industry.

Mr. MackrAsey: Thank you very much, Dr. Morrell.

Mr. MAcALUSO: Dr. Morrell, you mentioned 485 manufacturers and distrib-
utors. What inspection, if any, has been made with respect to these distributors
and what type of inspection has been made?

. Mr. MorreLL: We want to find out what they are doing. A manufacturer,
In our terms, is a man who really does some processing and puts it into dosage
forms. If you or I wanted to put up a drug under our names, we would be
called manufacturers in terms of the definition under the regulations, although
We might hire someone else to do it for us. There are a number of custom
Manufacturers in Canada to whom we could apply and get them to produce
our product in capsule form or other dosage form according to our specifica-
tions, They would be willing to do that for a price. We would then put it
Under our names. However, we would be the manufacturer although we did
Dot do the manufacturing ourselves. Those, in a general sense, are distributors,
and I think you would probably not call them manufacturers but distributors.
the case of distributors, we want to know what they do, who does their
Custom work for them and how it is done. We want to know as much about
hem as we would like to know about a firm such as Ayerst which have their
:WI’E compounding facilities. We want to know who does what, where, and
O forth.

Mr. MacaLuso: I am thinking of one distributor in Hamilton with whom
Lam familiar. This gentleman obtained some of his products, drugs, pharma-
Ceuticals or whatever you wish to call them, from the West Indies or from

maica, or some place like that. He has brought some in and I believe he
88 run into some trouble with the food and drug directorate. Is there any

YPe of inspection carried on in regard to drugs coming from the West Indies

or from J amaica, and are they checked by the food and drug inspectors when
€y come through customs?

Mr. MorreLL: We would check them if we have a laboratory man avail-
able, We do not check all of it. Again, we are short of staff.
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Mr. MacaLuso: You agree that in a case like that there is no analytical
control or inspection and there is therefore a danger there?

Mr. MorreLL: Yes, there is a danger there.

Mr. MacaLuso: In these inspections that are carried out, or that have
been carried on since last year, what type of inspection is involved, what is
the process of this quality control, does the inspector check the machinery
and all the steps in the processes, or are there certain standards that must
be met, does he analyse the product?

Mr. MorReLL: Perhaps I could give you in general terms what I am reason-
ably certain an inspector does when he goes to a plant. He may find out what
they are manufacturing that particular day, what is being run through their
machinery. He will start at the beginning. He will want to know from where
their raw materials are received and the room and place where they are re-
ceived. He will start from there. He will find out, for example, whether the
raw materials are what we would call quarantined, that means the raw
materials are brought into a room and they are not allowed out of there
until the plant chemist or the control people are satisfied that they are what
they are. This is one of the things we are trying to get over to all manufac-
turers, that is, to bring their materials in and keep them in a certain place,
and not allow them out into the plant at all until the quality control people
are satisfied they meet the specifications or standards under which they have
been bought—these may be pharmacopoeial standards or some other standards,
but they should be checked. This is one thing the inspector will inquire into,
and he will want to see the actual release for the particular drugs that are
being used in the manufacture of the pharmaceutical that is going on that
particular day.

Then he would want to see a formulation card. The manufacturer should
have a card or sheet of paper telling exactly how much of each ingredient
will go into that finished drug, and it will all be calculated on the size of the
batch that he is making. Our inspector will want to see that, and he will
want to see who signed it or okayed it. He will want to see who made the
weighings, he will want to talk to him and he will want to know how he
made the weighings, for example.

When he is satisfied with that, he goes on to see how the various ingredients
of the products are sent out into the plant. They should be marked separately.
You have so many white powders, and it could be very easy to make a mistake
and put in more of one powder than another, so each container of the ingredient
should be marked.

Then it comes to the point where it is mixed. He will want to follow right
down through the production line to the finished product all of the operations
concerned with the production of that particular pharmaceutical. He will want
to know if they take off samples from the production line at this stage. He will
want to know what they do about their labels, who keeps track of the labels.
Strangely enough this is a very important point of the manufacturing process,
because we have found drugs on the market which have been mislabelled. This
is a fault of the man who looks after the packaging and labelling. The labels
should therefore be only released by someone with knowledge, experience and
authority. You do not send a workman to get you 5,000 labels. They have to be
counted out, and if they are not used they should be returned in case they are
mixed up with some other bottle or dosage. This is important.

Then, of course, they want to know what controls there are on the finished
product. There should be a test of the product as it is in the bottle or the dosage
to be sold. That will take him again to the analytical laboratory.

This is a good way of seeing all the things around the plant. He will se€
whether, for example, there is a lot of dust rising from the mixing machines:
If there is dust, he will see whether it is confined to a room and whether the

=l
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dust cannot get into some other drug. He will have a chance to look at the
sanitation, cleanliness and good housekeeping of a plant. This is very important.
If you have good housekeeping, everything is arranged in an orderly manner
where the manufacturing supervisor can tell you, “I know exactly what that is;
it is always kept there”, then there is less chance of accidents or errors.

Then, of course, he wants to know what package inserts, and so on, are
put in the package. He wants to see everything about that particular drug
which he has followed through. He then takes a look at the records in the
general office, what records are kept of that product. The new regulations
require that records be kept, and if there are not any records for that particular
batch because they have not been sent out yet, he will say, “Let me see last
year’s batches”. The records are spelled out in the regulations.

Then, he will want to know what are the qualifications, technical or other-
wise, of each supervisor—is he a pharmacist, is he an engineer, is he a chemist?
He will want to know how many years experience he has had, how long he has
been on his job. All of these are important. He will want to know whether he
is a bacteriologist, if he is on parenteral drugs which are injected. He will
want to know what is done about parenterals, are they filled into vials, are
they sterilized, what tests are made to show whether they are sterile, what
tests are made to show that the area in which they are filled is proper and
adequate—this is a ticklish business.

These are in general the procedures followed by an inspector. It will take
two inspectors a couple of days or more to go through a plant, depending on
how big it is—it might even be longer.

Mr. MacaLUSO: Inspection is made as far as the containers are concerned.
Would a product be filled into containers in a separate room?

Mr. MorreLL: The injectables are filled in a separate special room.
Mr. MacarLuso: What about the pills being put into bottles?

Mr. MORRELL: You mean a pill to be taken by mouth, or a capsule? They
have machines which make tablets by the millions. We want to know, also,
Whether these machines have been cleaned since the last operation which may

ave involved totally different ingredients. We will want to see this and to

See what they do and who does it, because you might carry over some other
Material into your first lot of tablets until it got sort of washed out with the
Incoming material. That would not be very good. So that the mixing machines,
Or the granulation as they call it, must be carefully cleaned before they are
Used for a different type of product.

Mr. MacaLuso: I have just a few more questions. You mentioned before
that you are lacking two things in the inspection field, that is there is a lack
Of personnel and a lack of experience and qualifications. You said you are
Obtaining pharmacists who had just graduated. Take, for instance, a graduate
Pharmacist who comes out of a pharmacy college. He has to be trained in this
tyD_e of inspection work. What type of training is carried on? How is he
Tained for that type of work in the directorate?

Mr. MORRELL: There are two kinds, as I mentioned before. Some of the
larger pharmaceutical manufacturers have offered to train our men, or to give

em experience for maybe two weeks in their own plants. Then he will go on
O another plant for perhaps another two weeks. That is one type of training
on the job. Then, following that, he will go with a more experienced inspector,
and watch him conduct the inspections. It is again on-the-job training. There
are very few special courses that are available. I do not suppose there are
';lny in inspection. There are courses in pharmaceutical manufacturing, and I
hink some of the pharmacists on the committee can check me, but I think all
b Armacists must take some courses in their university education dealing with

Armaceutical manufacturing. There are therefore some basic principles that
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they already know, but most of it is on-the-job training and experience. In
our laboratory here in Ottawa, we can give them some hints and some short
courses. We have them once a year. They spend two weeks, or sometimes longer,
going from one laboratory to another. Our own scientists can tell them things
to look for, things that they have found in their analytical work, and things to
watch for when they are in the plants, so that there is also that form of
training.

Mr. MAcaLUso: From what I hear, there is quite a vacuum here, not only
in the lack of personnels’ experience, but also I understand that one of your
restrictions is the low salaries which you are able to offer them. If you were
able to offer them from your budget a greater salary, would this help to alle-
viate the lack in numbers?

Mr. MorreLL: You would undoubtedly get more applicants, and you could
recruit more.

Mr. MacaLuso: I was wondering whether the following thought occurred
to you—as I am sure it has—of starting inspection on a planned basis. This is
really a new field for the directorate, in a sense. For instance, the health and
welfare has inspectors in food and meat processing plants where there is a
veterinarian on duty. We have government inspectors who see to it that food
does not go out of there unless it is stamped as government approved. My
thinking is that perhaps this is what is needed here. I do not know whether it
is practical. At the present time it is not practical because of he lack of per-
sonnel. However, has it ever been discussed that in each manufacturing plant
there should be a government inspector who would study it at all time?

Mr. MorreLL: It has been suggested. I think there has been much dis-
cussion pro and con regarding the feasibility of this. There is no question that
even in meat inspection this is helpful, but you cannot guarantee the absolute
safety of the product even if there are resident inspectors. I am loath to have
people say that a drug is guaranteed by the Food and Drug Directorate. I do
not see how we can guarantee it. There are many subtleties, and we have
not the facilities to detect differences.

Mr. MacaLuso: I do not mean a guarantee of the safety of the drug as to
its side effects.

Mr. MorreLL: But you cannot put “government approved” on a drug.

Mr. MacaLuso: I was thinking more of the inspection of general pre-
cautions which you outlined, such as analytical control to see that tests are
made, that labels are not misplaced, to see there is quality control as far as
raw materials are concerned, that sanitary precautions are taken, that ma-
chinery is cleaned, and that analytical inspections are made. I agree it is
impossible to put “Canada approved” on a drug and that therefore its safety is
guaranteed. :

Mr. MoRrReLL: My own personal opinion is that if we were able to send
an inspector into every plant without specifying the exact date or time—every
two weeks for example—we would accomplish the same thing.

Mr. MacaLuso: That is not possible because of the lack of personnel.
Would you suggest that your problem there would be solved if you could
give higher salaries and obtain more personnel?

Mr. MORRELL: I think our main problem is lack of numbers. We need
trained people, and that is our biggest obstacle. Of course, salaries are involved-

Mr. MacaLuso: How would you suggest going about obtaining this typé
of personnel?

Mr. MoRrRReLL: We must get the authority to have positions for them-
Secondly, we must get salaries that will attract them and keep them. Certainly
we must provide them with adequate training. Training takes time. The
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laboratory people cannot take a day or two off to train personnel without that
day or two being taken away from other work. :
Mr. MacALUSOo: Maybe a training school should be set up in the directorate?

Mr. MoRRELL: We have really made serious and desparate efforts in the
last few years to have our own training programs, and I think we have made
some progress. I do not call it a school, but I think we should have a training
program that is more formal, that is more systematic, and that is more thorough
than we have had over the past years.

Mr. WHELAN: First of all, Mr. Chairman, I think that some mention was
made here, and my impression was, that we had inspectors in all our food
processing plants. This is not correct.

Mr. MacaLuso: I did not say that.

Mr. MoORRELL: We do not have them in our meat processing plants, either.
When a meat processing plant does an interprovincial trade, they must have
federal inspection.

Mr. Macaruso: I did not intend to convey the impression that each food
processing plant has government inspectors.

Mr. MACKASEY: It is nice to hear Liberals arguing like that.

Mr. WHELAN: Mr. Chairman, it is annoying to me to hear a repetition
of everything we heard and saw in Montreal. I myself have found time to
leave Ottawa to go to Montreal to see these drug manufacturing plants, and
it does not please me to listen to a repetition of all this.

Mr. MacaLuso: There are those of us who perhaps did not attend that
meeting because of sickness. You do not get as much information from looking
at the physical structures as you do from questioning someone who is experi-
enced.

Mr. Francis: I do not think we have to go into all that.

Mr. WHELAN: We went into more than the physical structures. Everything
was explained to us in complete detail on that trip. All this was very educa-
tional, and even someone from the legal profession would have found it edu-
cational.

There are seven committee meetings this morning, which is the height of
idiocy as far as I am concerned because it is impossible for us to attend com-
mittee meetings twice a week as well as carry on our other responsibilities.

Mr. Francis: There will be seven on Thursday.

Mr. WHELAN: The Chairman should work it out with chairmen of other
committees so that we do not have people running around looking for members
to make a quorum. Pretty soon we will have to reduce our quorum to three.

The only question I really wanted to ask is whether the drug manufac-
turers themselves do not do a certain amount of manufacturing in their own
drugstores?

Mr. MoRRELL: Yes, in a small way.

Mr. WHELAN: Is there any inspection there at all?

Mr. MoRRELL: It is very slight. There is a check of prescriptions at times.

Mr. Francis: This is declining.

Mr. MoRRELL: We may know the percentage of compounded prescriptions.

Mr. Francis: Is it one per cent?

: Mr. MiTcHELL: I would say that we still make plenty of compounded pre-
SCriptions, probably 10 per cent.
.~ Mr. MorreLL: A couple of years ago I saw that 80 per cent of the prescrip-
tions were not compounded. That would leave 20 per cent for something.

Mr. MrtcHELL: I was playing a little safer than that.
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Mr. WHELAN: Do you not think, Dr. Morrell, that most of the drug firms
themselves are really responsible people and very conscious of their responsi-
bility to the public they are serving?

Mr. MorRELL: Many of them are, there is no doubt about that. You saw
some who were. -

Mr. WHELAN: I know this is true in the food processing industry. There is
not an inspector there at all times when food processing is under way, but
they do not know when one is liable to pop in on them. The cans are marked
in such a way that they can check them right back to the product’s origin
through the serial numbers. These people can come in and test samples out of
cans at any time. The manufacturers are conscious of the fact that the packs
can be ruined by unsanitary conditions.

Mr. MorreLL: There are all kinds of people in business, just as there are
all kinds of people everywhere. I suppose we are there to check the wrong
type. Our purpose is to see that they accept their responsibilities.

Mr. WHELAN: What I meant was that I do not think it is really necessary
to have full time inspectors on the job.

Mr. MorReELL: No. I also feel that way. There may be some plants where
a full time inspector might be useful, but not in the bigger plants. I think that
if we drop in on them much more frequently and at unspecified intervals,
this would do the trick as well or maybe better than having a resident in-
spector.

Mr. RoxBURGH: I have missed a number of meetings and possibly this
information may have been given before. How long has inspection of chem-
icals in production plants been going on?

Mr. MorreLL: We have only had the regulations which would give us the
authority to do something for a year. Our inspectors have seen plants before
and been in them, but if we felt uneasy about them our only recourse at that
time was to take some of the products and see if we could find anything wrong
with them.

Mr. RoxBURGH: You had no right to go into a plant?

Mr. MogrgeLL: I think we had the right to go into a plant and we could
tell the manufacturing superintendent that that was not good enough. He
would say, “That is your opinion. In my opinion, it is all right”. We could
not get any further than that argument.

Mr. RoXBURGH: Did you ever enforce the right to go into a plant?

Mr. MorreLL: We have enforced the right to go into a plant. I am now
thinking of a food plant.

Mr. RoxBURGH: I am talking about drugs.

Mr. MorreLL: I do not think we have ever had to do that. We have been
accepted by all drug plants. I have no recollection of our inspectors having
been refused entrance into a drug plant.

Mr. RoxBURGH: In other words, as far as Canada is concerned, it was
pretty much of a hit and miss affair up to within the last year, and even
within the last year, because of lack of personnel, it is pretty much of a hit
and miss affair.

Mr. MogrreLL: I do not like the expression.

Mr. RoxXBURGH: If you had enough money and if, as Mr. Macaluso sug-
gested, you had a training program, how long would it take you, do you
honestly think, to acquire a full complement of inspectors who could do the
job without going to excess?

Mr. MorreLL: My guess would be maybe three years.

Mr. RoxBURGH: Those are all the questions I have to ask.




FOOD AND DRUGS 151

Mr. MiTcHELL: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask Dr. Morrell one or two
questions. Earlier in our conversation there was a hint that some of these
manufacturers do not get the blessing from the department. I am speaking
of pharmaceutical manufacturers. What would your feeling be towards licen-
sing of pharmaceutical manufacturers to enable them to live up to your
standards, and those who do not, would not have the privilege of selling
their products to the Canadian public?

While you are answering that question, what would be your feeling
towards provincial licensing against federal licensing?

Mr. MORRELL: It is easy enough for me to answer the first one. I am all
for it. Firstly, one reason is that at least it should provide us with a means
of knowing just who is in business. Now, we have to scout around to find out
who is in business. Secondly, it gives a great weight of authority to whatever
we do when we have a licence. I am all for it. Whether it is legally possible,
I do not know, but if it could be done, it would solve more problems than
it would create for us.

Mr. MiTcHELL: You would prefer federal licensing rather than the hodge-
podge of overlapping different provincial licensing, is that correct?

Mr. MorgreLL: Do I have to answer that, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: I would say to the committee that we are anticipating
the calling of Mr. Curran who is the legal adviser to the department. He has
already been before this committee at one other time and he went into some
detail on the aspects of provincial and federal licensing. It would probably
be better to leave that question to him.

Mr. MorreLL: However, I believe that it would be possible to register
or license the manufacturer of particular drugs. We already have that authority
in biologics. I am told that to license an industry raises some constitutional
problems. We have had comments from the industry that a good portion
of the industry wants it, and their legal adviser said he thought it was possible.
However, there is apparently disagreement among the legal people on this,
as on everything else.

Mr. MitcHELL: What would be your feeling, Dr. Morrell, on the labelling
of the ingredients of a manufactured product going as far back as the
Supplier of the ingredient rather than the finished product under that manu-
facturer’s name?

Mr. MoRRELL: Let us suppose the manufacturer put his name down as
Smith and Company, but bought his ingredients from Jones and Company
and they were processed by Brown and Company. All that would be on the
label—manufactured from material supplied by Brown and Company and
by Jones and Company for Smith and Company, or something of that sort.
I have had that question put to me and I have thought, “What would this
%gtl)k like?” Maybe it would be useful, never mind what'it looks like, I do not

ow.

Mr. MitcHELL: We will not pursue that any further.

I have another question, Mr. Chairman. This committee is set up for the
Control and safety of food and drugs. This question has to do with the safety of
Patent medicines which come under the food and drug directorate. What is your

eeling towards making mandatory the labelling of ingredients in a patent
Medicine which is for free sale over any drug or grocery counter? The reason

am asking that is that some distressed mother can call me or a poison centre
Or her pharmacy and say, “Little Mary has taken a handful of these pills, what
are they, what can I do, are they injurious? Shall I rush her to the hospital or
shoulq 1 just give her a glass of hot milk or something like that?” This puts the

rson who is being asked the question in a difficult position if he does not
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know what is in the pills. If the manufacturer were forced to show the complete
amount of the products, not necessarily the dosage per pill but the names of
the drugs on the label, it would make it much easier to give a complete and
satisfactory answer to some mother who was very worried about the product
which had been taken. I know this has been mentioned before probably, not in
this committee but in certain meetings that you have been attending, and I
know that the people who manufacture these products would probably be very
much against this. I also know that your department has the formula at hand
of any of these drugs before a licence is granted. Do you feel it would be an
advantage to the general public and to the persons who would like to get this
information correctly?

Mr. MorReLL: Mr. Chairman, I think it is archaic to have any secret formula
medicines today. I think the great bulk of manufacturers of these products would
not resist a change. There are some smaller ones who might resist it simply be-
cause they are not aware of things that are going on, but we have, and I
think we will this coming year, recommend to the Minister a change in the
Proprietary or Patent Medicine Act. This will be one of the features which would
remove this so-called secret formula. As you know I think, Mr. Mitchell, there
is a schedule under the Proprietary or Patent Medicine Act of drugs which are
possibly dangerous which requires that the composition of these drugs must
be on the label.

Mr. MiTcHELL: Only that one drug?

Mr. MoRRELL: Or two, if there are two. There is a limited dosage, of course,
beyond which they cannot go in these particular drugs. In other words, there are
many patent medicines on the market which have a secret only with respect to
one ingredient. I think that is foolish. Secondly, all of the poison control centres
in Canada have been supplied by us with a list of all potentially hazardous in-
gredients in all patent medicines, so that if a mother calls the poison control
centre they have just to look at the card to see what is in there. It may not be
on the label but it is on that card.

Mr. MiTcHELL: You mean the product by name?

Mr. MORRELL: Yes.

Mr. MiTcHELL: For instance, “Mrs. Murphy’s chowder?” The formula would
be at your disposal and at the disposal of the poison control centre?

Mr. MoRReLL: It would indicate that it would contain ingredients A, B or C
which could be harmful. It does not say it contains chalk, sucrose or lactose
because they are not harmful, but the poison control centres will know it con-
tains A, B and C.

Mr. MitcHELL: There are not enough poison control centres readily at hand.

Mr. MorreLL: It depends on where you are. There are a lot of poison con-
trol centres in some provinces and not so many in others. This is for the province
to do. We have merely provided information to them and we collect information
from them on the poisonings.

Mr. MacaLuso: Dr. Morrell, I have a question on patent medicines. AS
you know, there are many stores which sell nothing but patent medicines-
When a prescription comes in, they just take it to the pharmacy up the street
which fills it out, and then they give it to the customer. I am familiar with &
couple of those. Personally speaking I am against anyone selling patent
medicines in a store where prescriptions are not filled out unless they havé
a responsible pharmacist available. That is my personal view. What is the vieW
of the directorate and of yourself as far as the selling of patent medicines i?
such stores is concerned where all they do is retail patent medicines? Som€
of these people represent themselves as pharmacists. Some of the customers
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do not know any better and they do not know that their prescription is filled
elsewhere. Is there any inspection made with respect to this type of vending
operation?

Mr. MoORRELL: With regard to your first question, the Food and Drug
Directorate has no authority to say who shall sell drugs in a province or a city.
This is provincial responsibility. Only the provincial pharmacy act, or the
regulations thereunder, can exempt proprietary or patent medicines from sale
in drugstores. This is exempted by provincial law, not by the Food and Drug
directorate. We could not do it even if we wanted to. It is a provincial matter.
My personal opinion is that there are places in various provinces where a
drugstore is not very handy, so that there is a store which sells such things as
simple headache remedies, or a simple laxative, or something that is supposed
to settle an upset stomach, or something which you use to rub on your sore back.
These are what I think of personally as home remedies, and I feel that there
ought to be some provision, and there is of course under the provincial phar-
macy act, for the sale of these in areas where a drugstore is not convenient.
I think that the provincial authorities feel this also.

Mr. MacaLuso: I am referring to patent medicines over and above these
home remedies.

Mr. MORRELL: These are really patent medicines that are supposedly home
remedies. There is pressure to get other drugs in there which we are resisting
as well as we can, but the great majority of them are what I describe as
headache remedies, or laxatives, or drugs to settle an upset stomach, or some-
thing to put on a sore back or muscle or sprain. They are rather simple things
that most people do have in their households. You can get these in pharmacies.
Patent medicines are also sold in some pharmacies.

Mr. M1TcHELL: They are sold in all pharmacies.

Mr. MacaLuso: What happens when a prescription is filled elsewhere?

Mr. MoRrreLL: I did not know this was going on.

Mr. MacaLuso: I know a particular case where it does go on. This is what
I am referring to. I think this should not be allowed.

Mr. MorgreLL: This man to whom you are referring does not fill the
prescription?

Mr. MacaLuso: He takes it elsewhere.

Mr. MorReLL: But he gives it to the customer?

Mr. MitcHELL: I would suggest that should be up to the inspector of the
licensing body under any provincial pharmacy act. The inspection is being
done but not as well as it should be. !

Mr. MAcALUSO: I have one last question with respect to regulations as far
as safety precautions which have been underlined in the Food and Drugs Act
at the present time is concerned. Were not these regulations which are now
In force brought about also with the co-operation of the manufacturing
associations or the larger firms which really helped draw them up themselves?

Mr. MoRRELL: And anyone who wanted to comment on them. They were

Sent out in a letter to many hundreds of them, not just to one group, but to
Mmany hundreds.

Mr. MacaLuso: Do you feel the regulations, as far as safety is concerned,
are adequate, or should they be enlarged?

Mr. MoRreLL: I am talking about these new regulations on quality con-
trol. We will know in a year or two whether there are loopholes in them that

WG} did not foresee. You can only tell by experience. Looking at them now, I
hink they are pretty good.

20853—2
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Mr. MacaLuso: They better be because that is all we have.

Mr. MogrgreLL: They are pretty good anyway in comparison with what
occurs in other countries. We are better off than some of the big countries
nearby.

Mr. MiTcHELL: I have a question for you, Dr. Morrell, but you do not
have to answer this if you do not wish. It may come under your department
or it may not. What do you think of the recent act in Alberta having to do
with allowing the pharmacists to substitute products on prescriptions? You
do not have to comment on that but please do, if you like.

Mr. MorgreLL: I think I will not, if you do not mind.

: Mr. WHELAN: I have one question I would like to ask you, Dr. Morrell.
When any druggist fills a prescription, is the person who receives that prescrip-
tion supposed to be able to trace that right back to the pharmacist?

Mr. MoRRELL: There is a prescription number on it and the name and
address of the store. It must be on the prescription label.

Mr. MrtcHELL: That is correct, also the number must be designated of
the type of medication that is prescribed. A prescription item in schedule G
indicates that it cannot be repeated anyway.

Mr. WHELAN: How can a store selling patent medicines get away with
fooling people that they are filling the prescription?

Mr. MiTcHELL: A patent medicine and a prescription are two different
things.

Mr. WHELAN: Mr. Macaluso says that they get their prescription filled
out elsewhere. The customers would be able to tell where the actual prescrip-
tion was filled.

Mr. MiTcHELL: Yes, and the persons who are party to that can be pros-
ecuted.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions?

Mr. SrocaN: I have just two follow-up questions to Mr. Mitchell’s ques-
tions a while ago regarding ingredients on the label or the name of the pro-
ducer. This was suggested by the pharmaceutical association in their presenta-
tion to us. In some way this might be a suggestion which has been made
regarding specification numbers but I do not think this has to be quite as
complicated as you explained. For instance, in the case of any pharmaceutical
item that has one major ingredient or one active ingredient, could it not just
have the generic name with the producer in brackets behind it? This would
enable the individual pharmacist to tell the medical doctor where the main
ingredients came from. There might be flavourings and other items in it which
would not necessarily affect the action of the drug. I believe the pharmaceutical
associations are advocating this. Do you not think this would be a good idea?

Mr. MorreLL: I think this could be done.

Mr. Srocan: I know it is complicated where you have a lot of main
ingredients, but most of them have one main ingredient. It would certainly
be a lot more enlightening to practitioners.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions, gentlemen?

We would like to thank Dr. Morrell for coming back. This is his third
visit, plus one visit of the committee to his laboratory. We would like to
thank him for giving us his time and the time of his department.

In closing, gentlemen, let me say that next Friday we will have the
Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association. They have presented a
50 page brief which they will be summarizing on Friday. I hope the members
will have a chance to read a portion of it. It is my understanding they will
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have many witnesses here, approximately 10 witnesses, to comment on any
Specific portion of the brief they have written. This may be a very good
morning. We hope members of the committee will be here on Friday. There
will not be too many other committee meetings on that day.

Mr. Francis: Would you accept the suggestion of Mr. Whelan that the
committee try to avoid Tuesday mornings? There are far too many meetings on
that day.

The CHAIRMAN: The steering committee will be pleased to consider this.
What other day would you suggest?

Mr. FranNcis: Monday morning.

The CHAIRMAN: A good many members are not here on Monday morning.

Mr. MACALUSO: It is fine for those in Ottawa but not for those who have to
fly into Ottawa.

Mr. WHELAN: I believe you can hold these meetings when the house is in
session. There are not many meetings in the afternoons.

The CHAIRMAN: There are some.

Mr. WHELAN: This morning I saw in the elevator the list which showed
seven meetings in the morning and only one meeting this afternoon.

The CHAIRMAN: If you get enough members interested in the debate in
the house, they will not come until the end of the orders of the day, which
Would be 3:30 or four o’clock. It is unfair to the witnesses when you cannot
tell them what time they should appear.

Mr. ROXBURGH: Surely we could get eight people here on Monday at
11 o’clock.

The CHAIRMAN: At 9:30 a.m.

Mr. RoxBURGH: You could call it later on Monday morning, at 10:30
Mmaybe. You would not have to stop at 12 o’clock. There are no meetings on
Mondays at all.

Mr. Srocan: The reason there are none is that you cannot get a quorum.

Mr. RoxBURGH: There are only eight members needed.

Mr. MacaLuso: If you made sure that only those members who are in-
terested in the subject are members of a particular committee, the difficulty
tould be obviated.

The CHAIRMAN: It would be impractical to change the dates now. We have
our witnesses lined up on specific dates until the end of July.

Mr. WHELAN: I do not see how in the world members in the house can
absorb these committee reports. When you finalize your submission to the

Ouse, how can they possibly digest all these committee meetings and seriously
Understand what is going on at these meetings when eight people decide what
should be done for the other 257 people?

Mr. MacaLuso: That is not the problem here, it concerns the whip’s office.
The CHAIRMAN: The meeting is adjourned to 9.30 Friday, June 19.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

FRIDAY, June 19, 1964
(11)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 9.50 a.m. this day. The
Chairman, Mr. Harry C. Harley, presided.

Members present: Mrs. Casselman and Messrs. Armstrong, Francis, Harley,
Howe (Hamilton South), Mackasey, Marcoux, Mitchell, Prud’homme, Rynard,
Slogan (11).

In attendance: Representing the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers
Association: Mr. Stanley N. Conder, General Manager, Ottawa; Dr. Arthur
D. Grieve, PhD., Director of Quality Control, Ayerst, McKenna & Harrison
Limited, Montreal; Dr. William K. MacDonald, M.D., Vice-President and
Medical Director, Schering Corporation Limited, Montreal; Mr. F. R. Hume,
Q.C., C.P.M.A. General Legal Counsel, Toronto; Mr. George C. Shannon,
Director of Manufacturing, Parke, Davis & Company Limited, Brockville;
Dr. Roger Gaudry, D.Sc., Vice-President and Director of Research, Ayerst,
McKenna & Harrison Limited, Montreal; Dr. J. D. McColl, Ph.D., Assistant
Director of Research, Frank W. Horner Limited, Montreal; Dr. John M. Parker,
M.D., Ph.D., Director of Research, Charles E. Frosst & Company, Montreal;
Dr. C. Walter Murphy, M.D., Medical Adviser, CIBA Company Limited,
MOntreal; Dr. Peter H. Nash, M.D., Assistant Director of Scientific Division,
and Medical Director, Abbott Laboratories Limited, Montreal; and Dr. Sidney

V. Deans, Product Development Manager, Pfizer Company Limited,
Montreal.

The Chairman introduced Mr. Stanley N. Conder who, in turn introduced
those in attendance, stating that they were at the disposal of the Committee
O answer questions in their particular fields.

On behalf of the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association,
Mr., Conder presented an extensive brief concerning Drug Safety in Research
and Manufacturing.

He then read a prepared summary of the submission.

b Mr. Conder, Dr. Grieve, Dr. MacDonald, Mr. Hume, Mr. Shannon and
T. Gaudry answered questions thereon, and on related matters.

At 11.00 a.m. the Committee adjourned to 2.00 p.m. this day.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(12)

H The Committee reconvened at 2.10 p.m. The Chairman, Mr. Harry C.
arley, presided.

Ma Members present: Messrs. Armstrong, Coté (Longueuil), Francis, Harley,
Ckasey, Marcoux, Mitchell, Slogan (8).

In attendance: Same as at the morning sitting.
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The Committee resumed consideration of the submission of the Canadian
Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association.

Dr. Nash, Mr. Conder, Dr. Parker, Dr. MacDonald, Dr. Murphy, Mr.
Shannon, Dr. Gaudry, Mr. Hume and Dr. McColl, supplied information to the
members of the Committee in relation to the manufacturing and sale of drugs.

Dr. McColl tabled two papers entitled: “INFLUENCE OF PATENTS ON
DEVELOPMENT AND DISTRIBUTION OF INSULIN”, by A.M. Fisher, and
“INSULIN: ITS ACTION: ITS THERAPEUTIC VALUE IN DIABETES, AND
ITS MANUFACTURE” (The Insulin Committee of the University of Toronto);
it was agreed that they be reproduced and distributed to the members of the
Committee. He read part of the first one into the record.

At the conclusion of questioning, Mr. Mackasey moved, seconded by Mr.
Mitchell,

Resolved,—That the submission of the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufac-
turers Association concerning Drug Safety in Research and Manufacturing be
printed as an appendix to today’s proceeding. (See Appendix “A”)

The Chairman complimented the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers
Association for its excellent brief; on behalf of the Committee he thanked the
associate members for having sent experts to supply information to the Com-
mittee, and through the Association, the Companies involved who took part
in this effort.

At 3.15 p.m. the Committee adjourned to 9.30 a.m. Tuesday, June 23,
to hear the representations of the Canadian Association of Consumers.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.
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The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we now have a quorum.

We have with us this morning the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers
Association and their representatives. I think the easiest thing for me to do
as Chairman is just to introduce the general manager of the Association, Mr.
Conder, who has his office here in Ottawa, and let him introduce the other
Witnesses.

Mr. S. N. ConDER (General Manager, Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufac-
turers Association): Mr. Chairman and members of the special committee on
food and drugs, on behalf of our Association, I wish to thank you for the oppor-
tunity of appearing before you on this important subject of drug safety.

We have as our delegation, a number of medical, scientific and technical
Personnel, who are authorities in their respective fields of endeavour. All are
€mployed by our member companies. These, our expert witnesses, are as follows:

T. Roger Gaudry, vice-president and director of research, Ayerst, McKenna
& Harrison Ltd., whose subject is basic research and metabolism; Dr. J. D. Mec-
Coll, assistant director of research, Frank W. Horner Ltd., whose subject is
Pharmacology; Dr. John M. Parker, director of research, Charles E. Frosst &

Ompany, whose subject is toxicology; Dr. C. Walter Murphy, medical adviser,
CIBA Company Ltd., whose subject is clinical pharmacology; Dr. Peter H. Nash,
assistant director, scientific division and medical director, Abbott Laboratories

td., whose subject is clinical investigations; Dr. William K. MacDonald, vice
President and medical director, Schering Corporation Ltd., whose subject is
foncluding remarks on the clinical aspects of drug trials; Dr. Sidney A. V.

€ans, product development manager, Pfizer Company Ltd., whose subject is
Product research and development; Mr. George C. Shannon, director of manu-
acturing, Parke, Davis & Company Ltd., whose subject is pharmaceutical manu-
acturing; Dr. Arthur D. Grieve, director of quality control, Ayerst, McKenna

Harrison Ltd., whose subject is analytical development and end product
tontrol; and Mr. F. R. Hume, Q.C., who is counsel to our Association.

Mr. Hume and I are here to assist your committee wherever possible with
Matters of a general or legal nature. However, the other members of our dele-
8ation are the ones expert in the area of drug safety as it applies to the pharma-
Ceutical manufacturing industry. They are prepared to answer and discuss any
qgestions you may have concerning their papers and respective fields of en-

avour.

As you know from our written submission, copies of which were delivered
ou last Monday, it consists of a series of papers prepared by the members of
Our delegation. In view of its length, and to conserve your time, I will merely
€ad a summary of the salient points contained in the submission.

Before doing so, however, I wish to apologize to the French speaking mem-
of your committee, for the delay in sending to you the French language
on of our submission. This should have been in your hands at the same time
s the English version but, unfortunately, we had considerable trouble finding

Mpetent translating assistance. )
ety he_ Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers ‘Associatlon represents 55
prmpa_mes engaged in manufacturing and distributing drugs‘ sold on doctors’

®Scription. Qur interests are those of domestic industry, in that the drug

Prodyctg we represent are made largely in Canadian plants, by Canadian

toy

berg
Vers;.

159



160 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

workers. It is estimated that our Canadian industry now employs some 12,000
Canadians at an annual wage bill of about $48,000,000.

Ours is one of the oldest trade associations in Canada. CPMA was founded
in 1914 and, this year, is marking its 50th anniversary.

Much has been said, and will be said, on the subject of drug safety before
your committee, by government and professional representatives. Our sub-
mission deals exclusively with drug safety as applied to pharmaceutical manu-
facturing, research, and control, within the Canadian industry. In this area,
we are expert.

It will be seen from our written submission that the art and science of
pharmaceutical manufacturing, in its broadest sense, is not a casual process. In
fact, few other products in the general field of manufacturing must meet the
exacting requirements which are the very foundation of the modern drug. The
medical science involved is such that the conditions of safety can be determined
only by trained personnel in manufacturing, in medical practice and in the food
and drug directorate.

As was mentioned in the preamble to our submission, we understand that
one of the primary decisions for your committee is to determine whether ade-
quate safeguards now exist to ensure that the community at large is protected
against unwarranted side effects, but is not prevented from access to required
medication.

Regarding this aspect of public protection, it may be said that the govern-
ment and the House of Commons decided, in 1962, to establish a parliamentary
committee, to investigate drug safety, as a result of the concern about the in-
troduction of new drugs arising from the unfortunate thalidomide incident.
Since then, the department of National Health and Welfare and its regulatory
agency, the food and drug directorate, have studied the situation in detail, and
have revised the directorate’s procedures and regulations concerning new drugs.
This, in turn, resulted in the recently promulgated new drug regulations.

Accordingly, the food and drug directorate now has in effect the legal
and procedural methods needed to ensure the degree of safety required to
protect the public interest. Equally important, it has also established the legal
machinery with which to withdraw from the market drugs which are shown to
be unduly toxic. This has been accomplished since the first special committee
was formed in December, 1962.

In studying the adequacy of these safeguards, care must be taken to ensure
that future discovery is not inhibited. In other words, an overly restrictive
approach to a life saving substance might well protect the general public
against some adverse side effect, but it might also prevent a patient from having
a medicament that is essential to his life.

In this respect, it must be recognized that potency is the very keynote of
modern drugs. Every drug which carries with it a biological value must in some
way have an effect on the body. Consequently, it is impractical to expect 2
potent chemotherapeutic substance to be effective and yet be without side
effect in susceptible individuals.

The earlier scientific breakthroughs, such as penicillin and the sulfon-
amides, may have very serious side effects in those who are sensitive to these
substances. It is a matter of medical record that some patients have died from
these drugs as a result of such side reactions. Yet countless thousands more
would have died had these products been withheld from medical use through
legislative edict. It may be said, and rightly so, that withdrawal has not been
necessary in these cases, as a result of the recognition and knowledge of the
side effects by the medical profession.

If we as a nation become overly restrictive in our legislation, and attempt
to replace the knowledge of the medical profession with too restrictive govern-
ment controls, we may well keep from the market the sulfonamides, penicillinS
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and cortisones of tomorrow. Dramatic though this may seem, we must never-
theless recognize the fundamental principle that science and medicine can
thrive only in a comparatively unfettered climate. If we bind too tightly the
hands of our researchers, scientists and manufacturers, the result will be a
loss of initiative, incentive and willingness to undertake experimentation. The
ultimate loser will be the patient who is now suffering from an ailment or
disease for which medical science has not as yet found the answer.

Profound knowledge, judgment and integrity are required to determine at
What time and under what circumstances a drug should be withheld from the
Practice of medicine. While the burden of this decision is being shared to an
Increasing degree by the food and drug directorate, the pharmaceutical manu-
facturing industry must still bear the major responsibility for balancing on
the one hand the need for public protection and on the other the need for the
tontinuing progress essential to new discoveries.

The individual papers contained within our written submission indicate
that our member companies are aware of this responsibility, and that every
effort within the limitations of modern science is being made to ensure drug
Safety at the company level. The required balance between efficacy and po-
tential toxicity is well considered from both the medical and scientific stand-
Points. It is also apparent that careful standards have been developed and are
being implemented in manufacturing and control.

_ As the focal point for industry action in the area of drug safety, our associ-
ation is striving to meet the increasing demands of what has become our new
€ra of pharmaceutical development. Through conjoint effort by specialists from
Our companies, we:

—have spent considerable time and effort to assist the special committee
of the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons during its investigation
into the safety aspects of new drugs;

—are continuing to co-operate with the Food and Drug Directorate in
developing new drug regulations and other safety precautions;

—are establishing a special Recall Service to provide a prompt and
effective means of recalling pharmaceutical products which must be
withdrawn from medical use;

—have taken concrete steps, through establishment of the Canadian
Foundation for the Advancement of Therapeutics, to improve and refine
the methods of evaluating drugs in Canada;

—will continue to work through the various sections within our associa-
tion to disseminate general information and that covering new procedures
which have a bearing on drug safety at the company level.

ing In this respect, we submit that our domestic pharmaceutical manufaci.:urin.g
W us_tI'Y, certainly that part of it comprising the members of our Association, is
Orking in the best public interest by ensuring Canadians of the newest and
Ost effective medication available, consistent with medical safety.
Y It is essential to drug safety, however, that the ‘gevernm.ent maintain a
icord_ of all those engaged in manufacturing and/or distributing pharmaceu-
@ls in Canada. To achieve this objective, we recommend that the food and
g directorate be enabled to institute a form of certification or registration of
thi Ufacturers, distributors and agents as a prerequisite to doing business in
S country,
Finally, we submit that adequate safeguards now exist in Canada in relation
th € original drug products discovered and manufactgred by the members of
anadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association.

Summation, we respectfully suggest:

(1) That the food and drug directorate now has in effect measures
required to protect the public interest in respect to the introduction
of new drugs, and older compounds which may be found to be
unduly toxic.
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(2) Care must be exercised in extending these measures on the grounds
that over-restriction may retard future discovery, and curtail the
introduction of needed medication.

(3) It must be recognized that a potent drug invariably carries with it
some form of side effect, and the decision for the use of such drugs
must be vested in the medical profession.

(4) In place of overly-restrictive legislation, it is recommended that the
decision as to the required balance between efficacy and toxicity can
best be determined through the present relationship between the
manufacturer, the food and drug directorate, and the medical
practitioner.

(5) And that the food and drug directorate be permitted to institute a
form of certification or registration of manufacturers, distributors
and agents.

All of which is respectfully submitted by the Canadian Pharmaceutical
Manufacturers Association.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Conder.

We all have a copy of the brief. Anyone who has any questions to address
to the witnesses may address them to the Chair, and whichever of the experts
before us in whose field the question falls will answer it informally from
where he sits.

Mr. RYNARD: Mr. Chairman, the drug parnate is recalled. Do you feel we
have adequate machinery set up to check this drug so it can either be discarded
or brought back onto the market?

Mr. ConDER: I would say that the legal machinery to implement the recall
is adequate as it now stands. However, an additional system is needed to imple-
ment the machinery with which to recall the drug. Machinery is being imple-
mented through what we call our recall service, in respect to a drug which may
be recalled from the market and placed under schedule H of the Food and
Drugs Act. Arrangements will be made through our companies to pick up these
drugs and have them returned.

Mr. RyNaArD: I do not think that you have fully grasped my question.

Do you think our machinery is adequate to get that drug back or to have
the drug recalled and taken off the market entirely, or to get it back into
usage? I have particular reference to parnate. There are other drugs involved
too. Parnate was called off in the middle of February and here we are now
in the middle of June. Surely for a drug which has been in use as long as this
there should be more adequate machinery to assess it, and to assess it more
quickly, because there has been a great deal of hardship. There is a great deal
of hardship caused not only to the medical profession but to the patients who
are taking the drugs when they are recalled. I do not believe we have taken
adequate notice of this.

I have had people calling me up from all over with respect to the drug
parnate. I know of a physician who was taking it. This causes great hardship
when people are depressed. I do not think we have taken adequate notice of
this. Why in the world should it take a pericd of almost five months? We still
do not know after five months whether this drug is coming back or not.

Do you feel our machinery can be improved so we can get a much quicker
answer than we are getting today?

. Mr. CoxDER: In other words, you are asking whether machinery can bé
improved to permit the re-use or release of a drug which has been recalled?
Mr. RYnNARD: Yes.

Mr. ConpER: I would say definitely yes, it could be improved. It could b€
speeded up because when we are dealing in the area of medication for patients—
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and my professional colleagues may have further comments to add to this—
administrative time should not be a problem.

Mr. RynaArD: This is the point. I feel it is entirely too long and it should
not take so long at all. I would like to hear some more comments on this.

Dr. ARTHUR D. GRIEVE (Director of Quality Control, Ayerst, McKenna &
Harrison Ltd.): There is a process under the new drug regulations for new
drugs which may be regarded as being in dispute to be referred to an impartial
body which can be created to study the matter.

Mr. Rynarp: This is exactly what was done with parnate.

Dr. WiLriam K. MacDoNALD (Vice-President and Medical Director, Scher-
ing Corporation Ltd.): On this particular point, if I am not mistaken, an ad hoc
committee was set up by the Food and Drug Directorate to study the parti-
cular question you raise. They have met, I believe, on several occasions. This
is a committee from outside the industry. Their decision on whether a par-
ticular product should again be made available has not been brought down.

I think, sir, that there might be many situations in which the value of a
drug to the medical profession and its potential problems with certain patients
might be difficult to evaluate. I would like to say that if I was on such an
ad hoc committee I would want to take a reasonable length of time to reach
this decision. After all, if they were to decide quickly to return it and then
the problems, let us say, for any drug became magnified, they would be in the
Same position as they were before; they would have to withdraw it once again.
I do not think it is a decision which can be made quickly in this particular
situation.

Mr. RyNarD: Mr. Chairman, certainly with the speed of communication

today they could get in touch with every psychiatric hospital across Canada—
and this is a psychiatric drug—and with every professor of medicine in 48
hours. This drug is used extensively in England and it was not recalled there.
It was recalled in the United States but I believe it has gone back on the
Mmarket. This idea of waiting five months seems to me, and it certainly seems
to .the public, to be an unduly long time. It also seems to be unduly long to
Quite a number of doctors who have spoken to me; and this is why I have
brOught up the matter.
. The CHAIRMAN: As I say, Dr. Rynard, I think the point that is being made
Is that this decision to either restore it or put it back on is not to made by the
Industry itself; it is a decision of Food and Drugs. These gentlemen really have
0O part to play in the decision whether it goes back on the market.

Mr. RynarD: I was just trying to get an opinion. This is something we
should know:.

Dr. MacDoNALD: The decision to withdraw this particular drug was taken
by the company in question after consultation with the food and drug
dll‘ectorate. and I think they have acted in extremely good faith throughout.

hey certainly at this point will wait until the ad hoc committee, which is set
= _t° judge this from a completely outside point of view, has rendered a
€cision. Once again, I think it is a manifestation of the desire of the member
COmpanies of this industry to leave no stone unturned to be sure of the safe
Usage of the products they produce.
e Mr. Rynarp: I realize this and I want to thank you for that answer, but
his js a drug that is life saving and substitutes are much more severe. I do not
.. 'OW whether you have agreed with me that this is a long, long time and that
1t seemg unreasonable to the public and to doctors, too.
L Mr. MircueLL: Mr. Chairman, I was going to ask questions on the same
ubJeCt> but Dr. Rynard seems to have covered it pretty well.
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After having read a news release of this particular product being available
again, or being considered to be available again by United States authorities, I
had wanted to comment upon it. Even though it had been withdrawn in
Canada, it was available to psychiatrists, and so on? Is that correct?

Dr. MacDo~NALD: It was available to hospitals.

Mr. MrTcHELL: For clinical use and so on?

Dr. MacDoNALD: Yes.

Mr. MiTcHELL: The reason for which I bring this up is that one of the
doctors in my area is being bugged by his confreres to release some of it to
them, but he did not wish to take the responsibility of doing so; it was avail-
able to him. I asked him to write to the directorate and see what their answer
would be, but I have not heard any more.

An another subject, Mr. Chairman. I asked a question of Dr. Morrell which
I would like to ask of Mr. Conder and his group. In your brief you mention
that licensing should be agreeable to the pharmaceutical industry. I think today
the industry is represented here by the leaders in the industry, but there are
many who are not leaders and I feel that licensing would be preferable to the
industry at large. Just what form it would take I am not prepared to say, but
it would control drugs at the stage at which we are trying to decide whether
they are safe or not. I think the leaders in the industry would have no objection
to this licensing

Another question is whether licensing should be looked after by the federal
government or the provincial governments. I favour the federal government
inasmuch as there would be an overlapping or hodgepodge of different regula-
tions if it were handled by a province or by all the provinces. What are your
comments on that, Mr. Conder?

Mr. ConpER: It would not be practical, sir, to institute a form of licensing,
certification, registration, or whatever word you wish to use, in this connection
at the provincial level because, as you point out, there would be considerable
overlapping of regulations. The laws concerning this form of legislation should
be uniform, and it should be implemented at the federal level. We have made
submissions to the Department of National Health and Welfare to the effect that
all companies should be registered. This includes not only manufacturers but
also distributors and agents, in fact anyone carrying on the supply of drugs in
Canada, aside from the pharmaceutical profession itself. We say this not
because registration, licensing or certification actually guarantees or ensures
the safety of the preparations issued by these companies, but because it does in
fact give the food and drug directorate a means of knowing absolutely everyone
who is engaged in the business of supplying drugs in Canada, and this is what
we are aiming at. We feel at the present time that the food and drug directorate
does not have this. It does not know everyone who is engaged in the business
in Canada today. This is no criticism of the food and drug directorate; they
would like to implement this themselves but they have been advised legally
that they do not have the right to do so.

We have approached the food and drug directorate with our own counsel,
Mr. Hume. We brought him to Ottawa and he made a considerable plea to the
food and drug directorate’s legal staff to the effect that it could institute a form
of drug registration. Their lawyer said, based I believe on a decision of the
Department of Justice, that it could not be done; that it was impractical. It is
not a fault of the food and drug directorate; I am sure they would like to see
this accomplished. The reason why it is not done is because of the difficulty i
overcoming what you might term a legal and administrative matter.
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A The CHAIRMAN: I was wondering if Mr. Hume would like to comment on
is. '

Mr. F. R. HUME, Q.C., (General Legal Counsel to C.P.M.A.): The difference
of opinion, if you could call it that, simply was the view of whoever was re-
viewing it and had his interpretation of the statute and recent amendments to its
regulation section, the section which gives the minister or the department or
the governor in council the right to make the regulations. Our view was that the
wording of the section was wide enough to include such a regulation. It was
Perhaps the more cautious view of someone in the Department of Justice that
this was not necessarily true. So I think the point merely is a question of
interpretation of that section. If it were wide enough—and parliament could
certainly make it wide enough if it decided it was in the public interest—then
this could be done.

Mr. MITCHELL: We will try to remember that in our recommendations from
this committee.

The CHAIRMAN: We will call the legal adviser from the Department of
National Health and Welfare for his opinion and also possibly someone from
the Department of Justice.

Mr. ConDER: I might add, Mr. Chairman, in connection with the view of
the Department of Justice that the food and drug directorate cannot do this
legally under the present set-up, we suggested earlier that the Department of
National Health and Welfare approach the ministers of health at the provincial
level in order to get their concurrence to transfer this responsibility to the
federal government.

Mrs. CASSELMAN: Reverting to Dr. Rynard’s question, Mr. Chairman, on
Fhe speed of returning withdrawn drugs to the market, may I ask if there is an
Immediate effort by the companies involved for further research or any assist-
ance to the committee in coming to some conclusion?

__ Dr. MacDoNaLD: There is no question that they would participate in pro-
Viding information to the ad hoc committee. I am sure that no company in the
Dosition of the type outlined would hesitate a minute to provide the ad hoc
Committee with every single piece of evidence they have with regard to the citu-
:tlon. They are just as anxious if not more anxious than anyone else in this

egard.

Mrs. CASSELMAN: Is there any emergency approach? Dr. Rynard mentions
the need for such drugs. Is there any emergency approach for getting them

ack into use?

Dr. MacDonALD: Not to my knowledge.

) Mrs. CASSELMAN: Could there not be something done to speed things up
In this way?

Dr. MacDo~aLp: I think one thing that has not been perhaps completely
Settled ag yet is the manner in which a company or a group outside could apply
5 8et a rapid consideration of the problem by an impartial group. If the ma-
. Nery were available, it might be helpful to establish a committee for hear-
g such considerations in this type of situation. This does not exist at the pres-
ent time,

Mrs. CasseLMAaN: Or perhaps there could be a standing committee for
®mergency purposes.
lik, Dr. MacDonaLp: In my opinion this would certainly have virtue. I would
€ to hear some other comments on it.

MI.‘- Rynarp: That was a recommendation of our committee a year ago.
Brien in his last presentation to this committee suggested that there should
4 special committee set up. We now wait a whole month approximately be-

Dr,
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fore a committee is appointed and then the committee goes on for month after
month. This is very disturbing. In view of the comments we have heard this
morning I think something should be done to bring this to a head. For in-
stance, we have heard what Mr. Roger Mitchell has said. A patient can be put
into a hospital and he can be given the drug; then surely a qualified psychiatrist
is capable of giving that patient the treatment outside the hospital. Those are
things that should be cleared up. If a doctor is qualified to treat a patient in
hospital, he is surely qualified to treat him out of hospital.

Mr. MiTcHELL: Is there not a committee now? I am sure Mr. Conder would
know. There is a drug advisory committee which is from outside the industry
and which is at the call of the department at various times. Could not that
committee be used for that purpose?

Mr. ConNDER: Possibly it could, but the Canadian drug advisory committee
is quite a large one. It has a pharmaceutical advisory subcommittee, however,
which might do this, but that comprises only a few people with diverse in-
terests. This whole situation would have to be looked into in considerable
detail from the administrative standpoint, and also from the technical and
scientific standpoints, before a decision could be made as to the correct method
of approaching the problem.

Dr. GRIEVE: When the latest regulations of drugs were under discussion
and the composition of the referee body, board or whatever you want to call
it, to which I referred a moment or two ago, the question was also discussed
whether this should be a permanent body—and by that I do not mean a body
in full time employment but one which is a fixed group of people—or one
which should be composed of specialists appropriate to the case that was up
for consideration at a given time. Both of these alternatives were considered,
and the trend of the discussion was that the second alternative was preferable
because in one instance the drug in question might be one in the field of
psychiatry, and in another instance it might be an anaesthetic, and so on.
Consequently, the discussion ran along the lines that it was better to constitute
this referee body specially, choosing those specialists appropriate to the case
in hand.

Mr. SLocaN: Mr. Chairman, first of all I would like to congratulate the
association on the amount of work they have put into this brief. It is a very
comprehensive brief, a very good one. My only regret is that we will have
insufficient time to do it justice. I would have preferred to have gone through
the various sections one by one, because there are some most capable men
here who should have the opportunity of expressing their views.

I would like to ask Mr. Conder how many members they have in their
association?

Mr. ConDER: We have 55 manufacturing companies, or companies engaged
in manufacturing and/or distribution.

Mr. SLocaN: To your knowledge, how many companies are there in Canada
which are occupied in the manufacture or distribution of drugs?

Mr. ConNDER: I do not know the exact number engaged in this field, and
I doubt whether there is any source in Canada that does. I would venture
that there are approximately 75 to 80 companies which you might term as
multi-line companies, which distribute drugs and manufacture drugs for distri-
bution to the national market. In addition to this, there is a considerable
number of what one might call small regional companies, in which the com-
pany manufactures certain forms of medication for a small section within 2
province or across a province as a whole.

The CHAIRMAN: If my memory serves me correctly, Dr. Morrell said in
his testimony that in their opinion there were 485.
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Mr. Srocan: This is strictly a voluntary association?

‘ Mr. ConDER: Yes. I might add one point. It is estimated that we represent
I approximately 85 per cent of the drugs manufactured in Canada.

Mr. SrogaN: This is a voluntary association? Are there any standards or
regulations or qualifications required for anyone becoming a member of your
association?

Mr. ConDER: Yes. You will notice in our submission in appendix B that
we give a brief review of our association.

Mr. SLoGaN: For the record perhaps you could just tell us about that.
Mr. ConDER: It reads:

The most important single requirement for membership is proper
quality control facilities. Our bylaws state in part that “. . . membership
is open to firms which manufacture in Canada, under proper conditions
for control of quality and standards, pharmaceutical preparations. . .”
In the case of a non-manufacturing subsidiary, then the parent company
must meet this requirement. In order to 